
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Licensing & Regulation Committee 
 

Date and Time 
 

Tuesday, 15th September, 2020 at 6.00 pm. 

Venue 
 

This meeting will be held virtually and a live audio stream can 
be listened to via www.winchester.gov.uk. 

 
Note: Owing to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and government guidance, it will not 
be possible to hold this meeting in person. The Council has therefore made 
arrangements under the Coronavirus Act 2020, and subsequent Regulations 
permitting remote meetings, to hold the meeting virtually. If you are a member of the 
public and would like to listen to the audio stream of the meeting you may do so via 
www.winchester.gov.uk  
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

PROCEDURAL ITEMS  

1.   Apologies and Deputy Members  
 To record the names of apologies given and Deputy Members who are 

attending the meeting. 
 

2.   Disclosures of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in matters 

to be discussed. 
 
Note:  Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests in accordance with 
legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 
If you require advice, please contact the appropriate Democratic Services 
Officer, prior to the meeting. 
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 10) 
 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 September 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/


BUSINESS ITEMS  

4.   Public Participation  
 To receive and note questions asked and statements made from members of 

the public on issues relating to the responsibility of this Committee.  
NB members of the public are required to register with Democratic Services 
three clear working days before the meeting (contact: 
democracy@winchester.gov.uk or 01962 848 264).   

 

 Members of the public and visiting councillors may speak at this Committee, 
provided they have registered to speak three working days in advance.  
Please contact Democratic Services by 5pm on Wednesday 9 September 
2020 via democracy@winchester.gov.uk or (01962) 848 264 to register to 
speak and for further details. 
 

 

5.   Review of Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Policy Phase 2 (LR535) 
(Pages 11 - 92) 
 

6.   Introduction of 'Pavement Licence' under Business & Planning Act 2020 
(LR534) (Pages 93 - 124) 
 

7.   Public Space Protection Order Review (LR533) (Pages 125 - 200) 
 

8.   Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 6 December 2019 
(Pages 201 - 206) 
 

9.   Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 20 January 2020 
(Pages 207 - 212) 
 

10.   Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 3 March 2020 (Pages 
213 - 220) 

Lisa Kirkman 
Strategic Director: Resources and Monitoring Officer 

 
 

All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes are 
available to view and download from the Council’s Website and are also open 
to inspection at the offices of the council.  As part of our drive to minimise our 
use of paper we do not provide paper copies of the full agenda pack at 
meetings. We do however, provide a number of copies of the agenda front 
sheet at the meeting which contains the QR Code opposite. Scanning this 
code enables members of the public to easily access all of the meeting papers 
on their own electronic device. Please hold your device’s camera or QR code 
App over the QR Code so that it's clearly visible within your screen and you 
will be redirected to the agenda pack. 

 

 
7 September 2020 
Agenda Contact: Nancy Graham, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01962 848 235  Email: ngraham@winchester.gov.uk 

mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


 
*With the exception of exempt items, Agenda, reports and previous minutes are available on the 
Council’s Website www.winchester.gov.uk 

 
MEMBERSHIP: 
 

Councillors 
Chairperson: Bentote (Liberal Democrats) 

Vice Chairperson: Green (Liberal Democrats) 
 

Conservatives Liberal Democrats 
Mather 
McLean 

Read 
Ruffell 

 

Achwal 
Gordon-Smith 

Laming 
Power 

Williams 
 

 
Deputy Members 

 
Griffiths and Pearson Clear and Fern 

 
 
Quorum = 4 members 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT VIRTUAL MEETNGS 
 
Representations will be limited to a maximum of 3 minutes, subject to a maximum 15 
minutes set aside for all questions and answers. To reserve your place to speak, you 
are asked to register with Democratic Services three clear working days prior 
to the meeting – please see public participation agenda item for further details. 
People will be invited to speak in the order that they have registered, subject to the 
maximum time period allowed for speaking not being exceeded. Public Participation 
is at the Chairperson’s discretion. 
 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
 
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s website. The 
meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 
Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website. 
 
 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

LICENSING & REGULATION COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 19 September 2019 
Attendance: 

 
Councillors 

 
Bentote (Chairperson) 

 
Green 
Achwal 
Clementson 
Cook 
Gemmell 

Gordon-Smith 
Laming 
Mather 
Williams 
 

 
 
Apologies for Absence:  
 
Councillor Fern 
 
 

 
1.    DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  

 
There were no disclosure of interests provided.  
 

2.    MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee, held on 6 June 
2019, be approved and adopted. 

 
3.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 
There were no statements made from members of the public on issues relating 
to the responsibility of the Committee.  
 

4.    REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY 
- PHASE 1 - TIP TOP TAXI CONSULTATION  
 
(Report LR527) 
 
The Committee considered the report which updated members following the end 
of the consultation period for Phase One of the review of the Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Policy. The report recommended one minor amendment to the 
Policy regarding section 8.6, “Safeguarding”. 
 
The Senior Licensing Officer reported that all licence holders were consulted on 
the proposed changes to the Policy between the 17th June 2019 and 31st July 
2019. One representation had been received from a Private Hire Operator 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 
 

licensed by the council who had suggested a change to the draft Policy. Officers 
advised that national guidance was that ancillary staff should be required to have 
a basic Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) check. In addition, Officers had 
added to this proposal for a requirement that ancillary staff should also receive 
Safeguarding training. However, the consultation response had expressed 
concern that this would delay Operators’ ability to recruit staff if it was to be 
required as a condition of their operator licences. 
 
Officers had reviewed this representation and had reconsidered their proposed, 
additional condition and had concluded that as the particular safeguarding 
training was designed for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers, that they 
now recommended the removal of this proposed, additional condition. 
 
Members considered the points made and agreed that this was a sensible 
proposal. 
 

RESOLVED:   

1. That Licensing and Regulation Committee approved the 
proposed amendment to the Statement of Licensing Policy with 
respect to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers, Vehicles 
and Private Hire Operators. The reason for this change is outlined 
in section 12 of the report. 

2. That Licensing and Regulation Committee approved the 
removal of the words underlined and highlighted in red from the 
previously proposed wording of the revised Statement of Licensing 
Policy with respect to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers, 
Vehicles and Private Hire Operators at paragraph 8.6 Safeguarding 
below: 

3) That Licensing and Regulation Committee agreed to refer 
the amended Statement for consideration of adoption by Cabinet. 

 

8.6 Safeguarding  

 
a All Operators licensed before 25 February 2019 and 

their employees who act as an operator on their behalf must pass 
the Council’s approved safeguarding training no later than 31 
October 2019.  Failure to do so will result in their Licence being 
suspended or revoked or not being renewed.  The pass certificate 
must be provided with the application to renew a hackney carriage 
and/or private hire driver’s licence. 

 
b All Drivers, Operators and their employees who act 

as an operator on their behalf will be required to update their 

safeguarding training upon the Council’s request using a 

Page 6



 
 

 
 

Safeguarding Training Provider/assessment approved by the 

Council. 

 
 
 

5.    REVIEW OF PRIVATE HIRE OPERATOR LICENCE CONDITIONS  
 

(Report LR526) 
 
The Committee considered the report which updated members with 
proposed changes to the Private Hire Operators’ Licence Conditions 
specifically in relation to where bookings could be taken by a licensed 
Private Hire Operator. 
 
The Senior Licensing Officer advised that a change in the interpretation of 
the Law regarding Private Hire Operators meant that operators could only 
invite or take bookings from a physical location inside the district of their 
Licensing Authority.  In practice this meant that any operator who took a 
booking inside another local authority area or areas must be licensed by 
that local authority.   
 
All current Private Hire Operator licence holders affected by this change 
were formally notified in writing on 16 July 2019 and were being provided 
with a reasonable period of time to make any necessary changes to their 
working practice. All licence holders would be directly consulted between 
the 1 October 2019 and 10 November 2019.The changes required were 
for current Private Hire Operators to provide an operating address inside 
Winchester City Council’s district, from where provision was made to 
invite or accept bookings, or provide records that show that all such 
bookings were taken whilst inside Winchester City Council’s district. 
Alternatively, the operator may apply for a Private Hire Operators’ Licence 
from their “home” local authority.  
 
The Committee raised a number of detailed questions, which officers 
responded to, in relation to the following points: 
 

 Would this change have a significant impact on the number of 
vehicles available in the District? Officers replied that they had 
assessed the potential effect and they did not foresee a significant 
impact. 

 

 Were Operators able to use technology that would give the 
appearance of taking a booking within the District whilst in reality it 
was being diverted elsewhere? Officers advised that Operators 
would have to demonstrate that the location that they were taking a 
booking from was within the Council’s area. 

 

 In response to a final question, Officers confirmed that if any 
comments were received as part of the consultation exercise then 
they would be brought back to this Committee.  

 

Page 7



 
 

 
 

 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That the amended Private Hire Operators’ Licence 

Conditions at Appendix 1 be agreed and approved for 
consultation with the taxi and private hire trade. 

 
2. Where comments are received following consultation, that 

these are considered by Members at the Licensing and 
Regulation Committee on 5 December 2019. 

 
3. If no comments are received following consultation, that 

Members delegate to the Service Lead for Public Protection 
power to implement the amended Private Hire Operator’s 
Licence Conditions within a reasonable time. 

 
6.    MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE HELD ON 6 JUNE 2019  

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 6 June 
2019 be received and noted. 

 
7.    MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE HELD ON 10 JUNE 2019  

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 10 June 
2019 be received and noted. 

 
 

8.    MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE HELD ON 30 JULY 2019  
 
The Service Lead - Public Protection advised the Committee that an email had 
been received from a member of the public who had attended the meeting of the 
30 July 2019. The email was read out in full to Members and officers sought the 
Committee’s views on any action to take. 
 
Following discussion, the Committee felt that whilst they did not disagree with 
the accuracy of the contents of the email they also considered that the minutes 
of the Sub Committee meeting were not intended to be a verbatim record of the 
meeting and were a summary of the proceedings. The Committee agreed that 
for completeness it was appropriate for the email to be replicated in full in these 
minutes (see below). 
 
 

 
From: David Pain  
Sent: 22 August 2019 15:18 
To: Claire Buchanan 

Page 8



 
 

 
 

Subject: Re: Licensing Sub-Committee: 30 July 2019 
 
I have noted that the Council’s website now has draft minutes. Please will you confirm 
when approved minutes will be published? 
  
I wish to comment on these omissions in the draft minutes although the absence of both 
paragraph and page numbering makes cross-referencing difficult: 
  
1. As soon as Ms Tetsall had answered the Chair’s query about whether or not it was 
permissible for the sub-committee to delegate the decision to the police silver 
commander, Miss Stefanzcuk clarified that Council officers had not been party to 
discussions between the applicant and the police about this aspect. 
  
2. In respect of my statement which I read out (please see attached copy, bottom of 
page 3/top of page 4), I made specific reference to the most recent version of the 
Revised Guidance issued by the Home Office in 2018 under section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 and I quoted that: 
  
    2.1 in clause 9.43 it is stated “The authority’s determination should be evidence-
based, justified as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and 
proportionate to what it is intended to achieve.” 
  
    2.2 in clause 9.44 the crucial importance of evidence is emphasised by the sentence 
“The licensing authority is expected to come to its determination based on an 
assessment of the evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making 
the determination.” 
  
I request that these omissions are rectified in the draft minutes before approval and I 
look forward to your early confirmation that this will be done. 
  
Kind regards, 
  
David Pain 

 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 30 July 
2019 be received and noted. 

 
 

9.    MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 21ST AUGUST, 2019  
 

 
Councillor Green who had been the Chairperson for the Sub Committee 

meeting held on the 21 August 2019 requested an amendment be made to the 
minutes. Councillor Green asked that the minutes be altered to reflect that he 
had specifically used the word “regretful” when the Sub Committee were 

Page 9



 
 

 
 

advising the applicant that a counter-notice to their Temporary Event Notice 
would be issued with the effect that their event  could not take place. This 
amendment was agreed by the Committee.   

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That subject to the above, the minutes of the Licensing Sub-
Committee held on 21 August 2019 be received and noted. 

 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and concluded at 6.55 pm 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 10



  
 

LR535 
LICENSING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

 

REPORT TITLE: REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE POLICY 
– PHASE 2’ 
 
15 SEPTEMBER 2020 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Cllr Jackie Porter, Cabinet Member for Built 
Environment and Wellbeing.  

Contact Officer:  Carol Stefanczuk    Tel No: 01962 848 188  
Email: cstefanczuk@winchester.gov.uk.  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

Following the trade and public consultation, this report seeks to amend the 
Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire Operators (“the Policy”), for approval by the 
Licensing and Regulation Committee. Once approved, the reviewed Policy would be 
considered by Cabinet for adoption. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. Members agree Policy wording, and; 

 

2. The draft Policy (as amended) is approved for adoption by Cabinet. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



  LR535 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

1.1 Tackling the Climate Emergency and Creating a Greener District 

1.2 As part of the Policy review, Officers and Members have considered the 
climate emergency and included changes to promote the licensing of hybrid 
and electric vehicles. We have also proposed to introduce an ‘end of life’ age 
for all vehicles to ensure all vehicles meet Euro 6 emissions standard by 
1 January 2023.  

1.3 Homes for all 

1.4 N/A 

1.5 Vibrant Local Economy 

1.6 Supporting our taxi and private hire trade (private hire operators and self-
employed drivers) to provide a safe and professional service for residents, 
visitors and tourists.  

1.7 Living Well 

1.8 The taxi and private hire trade provide an invaluable service to many different 
customers, especially those who are less mobile and rely on licensed drivers 
to pick them up and drop them off door to door. Without this service, some 
wouldn’t be able to leave their homes. 

1.9 Your Services, Your Voice 

1.10 This Policy seeks to make improvements to ensure the safety of the public 
travelling in licensed vehicles. This gives the public confidence when using 
this service, for example, the introduction of contactless payments. 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 Changes to the Policy do not require any additional resourcing. It is expected 
that the implementation will be covered by the current licensing team.  

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The basis for determining the Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers, Vehicles and Private Hire 
Operators is set out in Part 3.3 of the Council’s constitution at paragraph 3.ii); 
Delegation of functions and Table D which provides that the Licensing and 
Regulation Committee is the correct forum for recommendation to Cabinet of 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire policies.  Legal Services has reviewed the 
draft policy and amendments in the recommendations. 

Page 12



  LR535 

 

3.2 It is good practice for local authorities to consult on any changes made to the 
Licensing Policy. A full consultation was carried out with all stakeholders – 
see paragraph 6 below. 

3.3 Whilst a Judicial Review challenge is a possibility where there has been a lack 
of meaningful consultation as there has been full compliance with the correct 
procedures, the risk of a successful challenge is considered minimal. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 Two members of the licensing team were seconded to the Policy review 
project until end June 2020. Since then, the team have returned back to 3.8 
FTE’s. 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 None  

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 Social and Market Strategic Research (SMSR Ltd) were appointed to carry 
out a full trade and public consultation on the proposed changes to the Policy. 
The consultation period was held from January to March 2020. 327 
respondents participated; 62 stakeholders (19%) and 265 general public 
(81%). 

6.2 A copy of the full consultation report can be found at Appendix 2. 

6.3 To oversee the Policy review, a working party was set up to include;  

 Cllr Jackie Porter, Cabinet Member for Built Environment & Wellbeing 

 Cllr Roger Bentote, Chairman of Licensing and Regulation Committee 

 Richard Botham, Director of Services, Simon Finch, Head of 
Regulatory and David Ingram, Service Lead for Public Protection 

 Claire Humphreys, Licensing Officer/Project Officer and Carol 
Stefanczuk, Licensing Manager/Project Lead since March 2020 
(previously led by Graham Wren who left the Council in February 
2020). 

6.4 Regular Taxi and Private Hire Forum meetings have been held to ensure the 
trade are kept up-to-date on developments/changes and to encourage 
conversation about the Policy review. In general, the Forum are supportive of 
the proposed draft Policy. There are still some concerns from the trade about 
the requirement for permanent signage and plates being displayed on 
vehicles and in relation to the vehicle end of life age restrictions.  

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

Page 13



  LR535 

 

7.1 The Council’s Air Quality Action Plan has been considered as part of the 
Policy review. The proposals include; allowing a reduction in the size of 
wheelchair accessible vehicles, incentives for hybrid and electric vehicles and 
introduction of an ‘end of life’ age for vehicles to reduce emissions. It is also 
proposed that all vehicles must meet Euro 6 emissions standard by 1 January 
2023.  

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT  

8.1 The Council is committed to offering a range of vehicles for all customers. The 
current Policy requires all new hackney carriage vehicles to be wheelchair 
accessible; there is no proposal to change this. 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 None required. 

 
10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Property N/A 
 

 

Community Support The working party 
considered proposals and 
comments made prior to 
the draft Policy and report 
being prepared. We have 
also engaged with the Taxi 
and Private Hire Forum. 

 

Timescales The reviewed Policy will 
take effect once adopted 
by Cabinet. 

 

Project capacity N/A  

Financial / VfM N/A  

Legal The Policy could be 

challenged by Judicial 

Review, but as the 

Council’s decision-making 

process is believed to be 
lawful, a challenge is 
considered to be unlikely. 

 

Innovation N/A  

Reputation The Council’s paramount 
consideration is to protect 
the public. This Policy sets 
out what is required of 
new applicants and 
current licence holders in 

 

Page 14



  LR535 

 

line with relevant 
legislation. 

Other 
Effect on Taxi & PH 
Trade 

The consultation started 
pre-Covid 
pandemic/lockdown. The 
trade has been severely 
affected. The working 
party have been mindful of 
this and made changes to 
the proposals in light of 
the current situation and 
with less financial impact 
to the licence holders. 

 

 
 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11 Background 

11.1 The Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to Hackney and Private Hire 
Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire Operators (“the Policy”) came into effect 
from 1 April 2011 following full consultation and approval by the Licensing and 
Regulation Committee. 

11.2 The Policy review project (previously known as ‘Tip Top Taxis’) commenced 
in 2018 and was included in the Council’s Corporate Strategy, with the main 
objective being to make positive changes to the taxi and private hire regime to 
further enhance public safety. Phase one [of 2] of the Policy review took place 
and was adopted in June 2019. This report covers Phase two of the project. 

11.3 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers, Vehicles and Private Hire 
Operators are licensed under the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and the Town Police Clauses Act 1847. Authorised 
officers administer and enforce the provisions of this legislation. 

12 Details of Proposals  

12.1 The proposals can be found tracked changed in Appendix 1 to this report. The 
changes are explained in summary, below. 

 Vehicle Ages 

12.2 Amend 5.1a to allow new petrol and diesel vehicles to be licensed as hackney 
carriage (taxis) up to five years old from the date of registration. The current 
Policy allows vehicles to up to three years old from the date of registration. 
This is to bring in line with new private hire vehicles and to encourage older, 
more polluting vehicles to be replaced sooner at a less cost to the 
proprietor/driver.  

Page 15



  LR535 

 

12.3 Add new proposal at 5.1b for all electric and hybrid vehicles, when licensed 
for the first time, to be up to eight years old from the date of registration. This 
is to incentivise the purchase of these types of vehicles for a more 
environmentally friendly option. 

12.4 Propose an ‘end of life’ age for all vehicles so that when they reach the 
maximum age; up to 12 years old for petrol and diesel vehicles, and up to 15 
years old for hybrid and electric vehicles (from the date of registration), the 
vehicle must be replaced in line with the Policy for new vehicles – see 5.1c & 
5.1d. 

12.5 Introduce a requirement that all existing vehicles (hackney carriage and 
private hire) that have a date of first registration before 1 September 2015 
must be replaced by the 1 January 2023. This would ensure that vehicles that 
do not meet the Euro 6 emissions standard are replaced in just over 2 years. 
This contributes to the Council’s priority of reducing carbon emissions.  

Wheelchair accessible vehicles 

12.6 Amend paragraph 5.2 to allow wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAVs) to be 
rear loading, in addition to side loading. The current Policy requires all WAVs 
to be side loading only. This will allow drivers/proprietors to licence smaller 
vehicles whilst still carrying a passenger in a wheelchair safely. 

12.7 In addition to 12.6 above, the Policy has been amended (5.9 refers) to require 
WAV’s to carry a wheelchair and its passenger, and a minimum of one other 
passenger, rather than the current requirement for a minimum of three 
additional passengers. This again will allow smaller, more environmentally 
friendly vehicles to be licensed, at a reduced cost to the driver/proprietor.  

Livery 

12.8 There were various discussions in relation to proposed livery for hackney 
carriages (taxis) licensed by this Council. In light of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
the working party agreed that a livery should still be proposed to increase 
public safety so that licensed taxis in this district are easily identifiable. 
However, this should not be at an excessive cost to the drivers/proprietors 
who are already struggling with the knock-on effects of the Covid-19 
pandemic and national lockdown, on their trade. The working party therefore 
agreed on the proposal that all new hackney carriage vehicles (taxis) must: 

a) be a standard white paint colour only; 

b) display permanently fixed door signs on the front doors (signs 
approved by Winchester City Council) 

c) display the licence plate permanently fixed to the rear of the vehicle, to 
the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority. 

Page 16



  LR535 

 

12.9 All current licensed hackney carriage vehicles will be required to comply with 
points 12.8 b) and c) above no later than 30 June 2021 – see paragraphs 5.5 
and 5.7 of the draft Policy. 

Contactless payments 

12.10 It is proposed that all licensed vehicles must carry a contactless payment 
device to offer card payments in addition to accepting cash – see 5.20 and 
6.17 of the Policy. This is to ensure that vulnerable adults can still get home 
without the need for cash, which may otherwise encourage them to walk. 
During the Covid-19 pandemic, card payments have increased significantly 
with many drivers and operators already purchasing contactless payment 
devices to avoid taking cash.  

12.11 Further to 12.10 above, all current private hire vehicles will also be required to 
carry a contactless payment device no later than 30 June 2021 (5.21 and 6.18 
of the Policy refers). This allows sufficient time for the 
driver/proprietor/operator to purchase and install the device and obtain 
training on how to use the device, if required. Private hire vehicles that carry 
out work which is pre-paid or contract only, are exempt from this requirement 
– see 6.19 of the Policy). 

Disability Awareness training 

12.12 As part of the consultation, we asked if those participating in the survey 
thought that new and current drivers should be required to take formal training 
such as BTEC Level 2 Certificate in the Introduction to the Role of the 
Professional Taxi & Private Hire Driver. The consultation response revealed 
that 79% of respondents thought that new applicants should complete training 
before they become a driver and 59% said that current drivers should also be 
trained. Following discussion with the working party, it was agreed that as 
there are other forms of training already required by our Policy, such as 
Safeguarding, that there was scope to include disability awareness training at 
this stage and the need for a more encompassing qualification could be 
reviewed again in the future.  

12.13 The draft Policy therefore includes the proposal at 8.10a, that all new 
applicants must complete and pass approved disability awareness training as 
part of the application process. 

12.14 All current drivers will be required to pass approved disability awareness 
training no later than 31 August 2021 – 8.10b of the Policy refers. 

13 Conclusion 

13.1 The working party are taking a stepped approach to introducing changes to 
vehicle requirements. The licensing authority are not in a position to require all 
vehicles to be electric, for example. Once the district has adequate provision 
to make this a possibility, the Council will likely review the Policy again. This 

Page 17



  LR535 

 

will also allow for developments in vehicle specifications, reliability and cost of 
vehicle.  

14 The changes to the Policy on vehicles is a choice based policy. This allows 
drivers/proprietors to choose the type and size of vehicles whilst complying 
with the stricter requirements in relation to vehicle emissions. Should a 
driver/proprietor still wish to change their hackney carriage vehicle and 
purchase a vehicle less than 3 years old, as per the current Policy, this still 
allows them to do so.  

15 The Council’s paramount consideration is the safety of the public. However, 
the City Council should not adopt a Policy that is too restrictive that damages 
the trade. The Council must keep in mind that whilst it will want to make 
positive changes to ensure public safety, it is dealing with a trade that has 
been severely impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and should want to 
encourage customers to use these services again, confident that they will be 
safe.  

16 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

16.1 As part of the consultation, the public and trade were asked if they thought 
CCTV should be installed in all licensed vehicles. 71% of respondents agreed 
that CCTV should be installed in all hackney carriage and private hire vehicles 
However, stakeholders were divided; 42% yes vs 45% no. The working party 
agreed that CCTV should not be introduced without thorough investigation 
and to consider if there is a justifiable need, i.e. why is it necessary?, is there 
a problem is it proportionate to solve the problem identified?. This would entail 
obtaining crime statistics from the Police and carrying out a proportionality 
assessment, before any policy changes are to be considered.  

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

LR527 – Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy – Phase 
One – Consultation Response - 19 September 2019 
 
LR520 – Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy - Phase One 
Tip Top Taxis – 6 June 2019 
 
LR495 - Review of Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire Operators – consultation 
comments – 16 March 2017 
 
LR490 - Review of Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire Operators – 19 January 2017 
 
Other Background Documents:- 

Page 18

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=2089&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=1918&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=135&MeetingId=875&DF=16%2f03%2f2017&Ver=2
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=135&MeetingId=874&DF=19%2f01%2f2017&Ver=2


  LR535 

 

Taxi Project (Working Party) minutes dated 29 May 2020 and 6 August 2020 

Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing: Best Practice Guidance – issued by the 
Department for Transport March 2010 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Draft Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire Operators – v9 reviewed 
September 2020 

Appendix 2 – full consultation report by SMSR – May 2020 

 
 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Statement of Licensing Policy 

with respect to 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire 

Operators 
 

 
 

Version 9 – reviewed September 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Winchester City Council 
City Offices 

Colebrook Street 
Winchester 
SO23 9LJ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 21



Contents                                            Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020  

Contents 
 
Introduction 
 

Section 1 Page 1 

Hackney Carriage Vehicles 
 

Section 2 Page 3  

Private Hire Vehicles and Operators 
 

Section 3 Page 6  

Hackney and Private Hire Driver Licences 
 

Section 4 Page 10 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Section 5 Page 16 

Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Section 6 Page 21 

Glossary 
 

 Page 26 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



1 

Section 1 - Introduction                      Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

1 Introduction 
 

1.1 This information is intended to provide guidance on the licensing 
requirements in the Winchester City Council district under the Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847, as amended, and Part II of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. Attention is also 
drawn to certain provisions of the Transport Acts 1980, 1981 and 1985, 
and Regulations made under the Road Traffic Acts. 
 

1.2 It is not intended to be an exhaustive or definitive statement of the law 
and all drivers, operators and proprietors must familiarise themselves 
with the provisions of the relevant Acts, local byelaws and conditions. 
 

1.3 Winchester City Council is the Licensing Authority for hackney   
carriages, private hire vehicles, their drivers and private hire operators.  
 

1.4 Winchester City Council reserves the right to depart from this Policy if 
there are, in its reasonable opinion, exceptional or compelling reasons 
to do so. In addition, the Council may follow any current or subsequent 
recommendations made by the Institute of Licensing or any other 
national guidance issued. 

 
 
2 Enquiries 
 
2.1 All correspondence, applications and enquiries should be addressed to 

Licensing Section, Winchester City Council, City Offices, Colebrook 
Street, Winchester, SO23 9LJ. If you wish to see a Licensing Officer, 
an appointment can be made by telephoning 01962 848 188 or email 
licensing@winchester.gov.uk.  
 

3 Types of Licences 
 
3.1 A hackney carriage (taxi) may be used to ply for hire at an authorised 

taxi rank, pick up passengers when “flagged down” in the street, and 
when pre-booked. 
 

3.2 A hackney carriage may be licensed to carry up to a maximum of 
8 passengers. 
 

3.3 The number of saloon vehicles is limited. All other hackney carriages 
must be capable of carrying a wheelchair and passenger. In these 
cases the number of passengers which may be carried is reduced. 

 
3.4 A hackney carriage driver’s licence is a combined licence allowing the 

holder to drive both hackney and private hire vehicles. 
 

3.5 Hackney carriages are also regulated by Byelaws with respect to 
hackney carriages and conditions made by the Licensing Authority. 
 

Page 23

mailto:licensing@winchester.gov.uk


2 

Section 1 - Introduction                      Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

3.6 A private hire vehicle may only be pre-booked via a private hire 
operator. Such vehicles may not ply for hire or take bookings other than 
via an operator. 

 
3.7 A private hire vehicle may be licensed to carry up to a maximum of 8 

passengers. There is no requirement for such vehicles to be able to 
carry wheelchair bound passengers, although many do. 
 

 
4 Licence Fees 

 
4.1 The fees charged by the Council for licences cover Licensing 

Authority’s costs of administering the licensing process. Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Driver licences are issued annually for the 
first three years and then can be renewed for one year or three years. 
New Private hire Operator licenses are issued for one year and then 
can be renewed for one or for five years. All other licences are renewed 
annually. The fees are periodically reviewed. The Current fees can be 
found on the Council’s website at:  
 
www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 24

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing


3 
 

 
Section 2 - Hackney Carriages            Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 

Reviewed September 2020 
 

5 Hackney Carriage Vehicles  
 
 

4.25.1 When first presented for licensing as a hackney carriage, the vehicle 
must be within certain age limits: 
 

a All petrol and diesel vehicles, both saloon and purpose built,  when 
licensed for the first time must be less than five three years from the 
date of first registration. The vehicle must be renewed on a year by year 
basis at the discretion of an Authorised Officer.  
 

b All electric and hybrid vehicles when licensed for the first time as a 
hackney carriage must be less than eight years from the date of first 
registration. The vehicle must be renewed on a year by year basis at 
the discretion of an Authorised Officer. 
 

c All petrol and diesel hackney carriage vehicles will have a maximum 
end of working life age of twelve years from the date of first registration. 
 

ad All electric and hybrid hackney carriage vehicles will have a maximum 
end of working life age of fifteen years from the date of first registration. 
 

4.3e In order to improve air quality and respond to the Council’s climate 
emergency, all existing vehicles that have a date of first registration 
before 1 September 2015 must be replaced by the 1 January 2023. 
 

a5.2 All hackney carriage vehicles presented for licensing for the first time 
must be wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAV), except in cases where 
the vehicle is to replace an existing saloon vehicle which is already 
licensed. Wheelchair accessible vehicles may be either side or rear 
loading. 

 
5.3 All vehicles when licensed for the first time must be a standard white 

colour only.  
 

5.4 All vehicles when licensed for the first time must display a permanently 
fixed approved Winchester City Council door sign on the front doors 
(both sides) of the vehicle. 
 

 
5.5 All current licensed hackney carriage vehicles must display a 

permanently fixed approved Winchester City Council door sign on the 
front doors (both sides) of the vehicle no later than 30 June 2021. 
Failure to do so will result in the licence not being renewed, suspended 
or revoked. 
 

5.6 All vehicles when licensed for the first time must display the licence 
plate permanently fixed to the rear of the vehicle to the satisfaction of 
the Licensing Authority. 

 

Page 25



4 
 

 
Section 2 - Hackney Carriages            Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 

Reviewed September 2020 
 

 
b5.7 All current hackney carriage vehicles must display the licence plate 

permanently fixed to the rear of the vehicle to the satisfaction of the 
Licensing Authority no later than 30 June 2021.  Failure to do so will 
result in the licencse not being renewed, suspended or revoked, 
 

   
 
4.55.8 Purpose built and conversion vehicles should also be capable of 

carrying a wheelchair securely with seats that slide on rails, or 
individual seats that can be removed, or flip down seats, to allow more 
room for luggage and wheelchairs or both. The first row of seats behind 
the driver must not be a bench seat.  
 

4.65.9 All vehicles, other than saloons, must be capable of carrying a 
wheelchair and its passenger, and a minimum of one three other 
passengers, and at least five four passengers at any other time. 

 
4.75.10 A converted vehicle must meet “M1” specification and should 

have a certificate of conversion from a reputable company and a 
voluntary Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) application must be 
submitted to the DVLA. A converted vehicle will not be licensed without 
confirmation of this. Wheelchair accessible vehicles over 10 years of 
age from date of first registration do not require an IVA. 

 
4.85.11 Wheelchairs must be capable of being secured in the vehicle 

with the passenger in a forward or rearward facing position. 
 

4.95.12 Saloon vehicles must be capable of carrying four passengers. 
 

4.105.13 Prior to licensing, and annually the vehicle must undergo a 
mechanical inspection and all vehicles over three years old from the 
date of first registration must be tested and pass an MOT. If the vehicle 
is under 3 years old it will require a mechanical and condition test. 
These must be carried out at a testing station specified by the 
Licensing Authority.  
 

4.115.14 The Vehicle may be called in for inspection at any time by an 
Authorised Officer to ensure compliance. Failure to attend and show 
any documentation as requested may lead to suspension or revocation 
of licence under Section 68 of the Act. 
 

4.125.15 All vehicles must have at least four doors. Saloon vehicles must 
have four doors in addition to any tailgate. 

 
4.135.16 The engine capacity must be not less than 1500 cc. The Head of 

Licensing may depart from this section of the Policy where an applicant 
can produce evidence of a vehicle that has a similar power to weight 
ratio to a 1500cc vehicle, or, where the vehicle is environmentally 
friendly.  

Page 26



5 
 

 
Section 2 - Hackney Carriages            Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 

Reviewed September 2020 
 

 
4.145.17 All vehicles must be right hand drive. In exceptional 

circumstances a licence may be granted for a left hand drive vehicle. 
 

4.155.18 Where a licensed vehicle is involved in an accident and classes 
as a ‘write off’ under Category  S or  N, all vehicles must pass a further 
mechanical inspection check by a nominated testing station or 
nominated vehicle inspector and all paperwork relating to the vehicle 
repair must be provided to the nominated garage or inspector. If the 
repair is likely to have affected the steering then a full steering 
alignment check must be completed prior to any inspection and all 
paperwork must be presented to any inspecting agent and to the 
licensing section before the vehicle is returned for use to carry 
passengers for hire. 
 

5.19 A temporary licensed vehicle may be required in cases where a 
licensed vehicle has been involved in an accident or is unusable for 
mechanical reasons. All temporary vehicles must be of the same 
type/category of vehicle that it is temporarily replacing and must comply 
with this section of the Policy. Any licence shall be granted for a 
maximum of two months. 
 

5.20 All vehicles, when licensed for the first time, must have a contactless 
payment device to offer payment by card in addition to accepting 
payment in cash. 
 

5.21 All current hackney carriage vehicles must have a contactless payment 
device to offer payment by card in addition to accepting payment in 
cash, no later than 30 June 2021. Failure to do this will result in the 
licence not being renewed, suspended or revoked. 

4.16  
 
 

Page 27



6 
 

 
Section 3 - Private Hire Vehicles and Operators 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

56 Private Hire Vehicles 
 

 
6.1 When first presented for licensing as a private hire vehicle, the vehicle 

must be within certain age limits: 
 

a  Aall petrol and diesel vehicles , both saloon and purpose built, when 
licensed for the first time must be less than five years from the date of 
first registration. The Vehicle can remain in use for six years from the 
date of first registration after which it may AllThe vehicles must be 
renewed on a year by year basis at the discretion of an Authorised 
Officer.  
 

5.1b All electric and hybrid private hire vehicles when licenced for the first 
time must be less than eight years old from the date of first registration. 
The vehicle must be renewed on a year by year basis at the discretion 
of an Authorised Officer. 
 
 

c All petrol and diesel private hire vehicles will have a maximum end of 
working life age of twelve years from the date of first registration  
 
 

d All electric and hybrid private hire vehicles will have a maximum end of 
working life age of fifteen years from the date of first registration. 
 

e In order to improve air quality and respond to the climate emergency, all 
existing vehicles that have a date of first registration before 1 
September 2015 must be replaced by the 1 January 2023. 
 

5.2f In exceptional circumstances these age limits may be waived. For 
example, a classic car in excellent condition which will be used for 
special events.  
 

6.2 A converted vehicle should have a certificate of conversion from a 
reputable company and will not be accepted without such a document. 
 

6.3 All vehicles when licensed for the first time shall be of any other colour 
except for white. 
 

6.4 All vehicles when licensed for the first time must display permanently 
fixed approved Winchester City Council door signs (both sides) on the 
front doors of the vehicle, with the exception of those private hire 
vehicles undertaking corporate work only and hold a valid plate 
exemption certificate issued by the Licensing Authority.   
 

6.5 All current private hire vehicles must display permanently fixed 
approved Winchester City Council door sign on the front doors (both 
sides) of the vehicle no later than 30 June 2021, with the exception of 
those private hire vehicles undertaking corporate work only and hold a 

Page 28



7 
 

 
Section 3 - Private Hire Vehicles and Operators 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

valid plate exemption certificate issued by the Licensing Authority.  
Failure to do so will result in the licence not being renewed, suspended 
or revoked. 

 
 

a6.6 All new private hire vehicles must have a licence plate permanently 
fixed to the rear of the vehicle to the satisfaction of the Licensing 
Authority, with the exception of those private hire vehicles undertaking 
corporate work only and hold a valid plate exemption certificate issued 
by the Licensing Authority. 
 

5.36.7 All current private hire vehicles must have a licence plate permanently 
fixed to the rear of the vehicle to the satisfaction of the Licensing 
Authority no later than 30 June 2021 with the exception of those 
vehicles undertaking corporate work only that hold a valid licence plate 
exemption certificate issued by the Licensing Authority. Failure to do so 
will result in the licence not being renewed, suspended or revoked. 

 
6.8 A converted vehicle must meet “M1” specification and should have a 

certificate of conversion from a reputable company and a voluntary 
Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) application must be submitted to the 
DVLA. A converted vehicle will not be licensed without confirmation of 
this.  Wheelchair accessible vehicles over 10 years of age from date of 
first registration do not require an IVA. 
 

5.56.9 All wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAV) must be capable of carrying a 
wheelchair and its passenger and a minimum of one other passenger.  
This vehicle can be either side or rear loading. 

 
5.66.10 Wheelchairs must be capable of being secured in the vehicle 

with the passenger in a forward or rearward facing position. 
 

5.76.11 All vehicles must have at least four doors. Saloon vehicles must 
have four doors in addition to any tailgate. 
 

5.86.12 Prior to licensing, and annually the vehicle must undergo a 
mechanical inspection and all vehicles over three years old from the 
date of first registration must be tested and pass an MOT. If the vehicle 
is under 3 years old it will require a mechanical and condition test. 
These must be carried out at a testing station specified by the 
Licensing Authority. 
 

5.96.13 The engine capacity must be not less than 1500cc. The Council 
or Authorised officer may depart from this section of the Policy where 
an applicant can produce evidence of a vehicle that has a similar power 
to weight ratio to a cc 1500 cc vehicle, or, where the vehicle is 
environmentally friendly.  
 

5.106.14 In exceptional circumstances an exemption certificate may be 
granted to dispense with the requirement to display the licence plate. 

Page 29



8 
 

 
Section 3 - Private Hire Vehicles and Operators 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

This will only be granted where satisfactory proof of “executive hiring” 
has been received by the Licensing Authority. Satisfactory proof must 
be provided to the licensing department at application and thereafter 
when requested by an Authorised Officer. Failure to provide such proof 
will result in the exemption to display a plate being refused or 
withdrawn. 

 
5.116.15 All vehicles must be right hand drive. In exceptional 

circumstances a licence may be granted for a left hand drive vehicle. 
 

5.126.16 Where a licensed vehicle is involved in an accident and classed 
as a ‘write off’ under Category  S or  N, all vehicles must pass a further 
mechanical inspection check by a nominated testing station or 
nominated vehicle inspector and all paperwork relating to the vehicle 
repair must be provided to the nominated garage or inspector. If the 
repair is likely to have affected the steering then a full steering 
alignment check must be completed prior to any inspection and all 
paperwork must be presented to any inspecting agent and to the 
licensing section before the vehicle is returned for use to carry 
passengers for hire. 
 
A temporary licensed vehicle may be required in cases where a 
licensed vehicle has been involved in an accident or is unusable for 
mechanical reasons. All temporary vehicles must be of the same 
type/category of vehicle that it is temporarily replacing and must comply 
with this section of the Policy. A licence shall be granted for a 
maximum of two months.  
 

6.17 All private hire vehicles, when licensed for the first time, must carry a 
contactless payment device to take payment by card in addition to 
accepting payment in cash. 
 

6.18 All current private hire vehicles must carry a contactless payment 
device to offer payment by card in addition to accepting payment in 
cash, no later than 30 June 2021. Failure to do this will result in the 
licence not being renewed, suspended or revoked. 
 

6.19 Private hire vehicles that are used to carry out pre-paid or contract 
work only are exempt from the requirements at 6.17 and 6.18 above, 
and are not required to carry a contactless payment device unless 
required by the operator. 
 

  

Page 30



9 
 

 
Section 3 - Private Hire Vehicles and Operators 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

67 Private Hire Operators 
 

6.17.1 A private hire operator dispatches a private hire vehicle to a customer. 
An operator may have just one or a fleet of vehicles under their control. 
 

6.27.2 An applicant for a private hire operator licence must be a “fit and proper 
person” to hold such a licence.  
 

6.37.3 Pursuant to the Immigration Act 2016, applicants must prove that they 
have a “right to work” in the UK. Failure to provide satisfactory 
documentation will result in the application being refused. 
 

6.47.4 The Licensing Authority reserves the right to provide documentation or 
information to the Home Office where it is considered appropriate to do 
so in the interests of complying with legislation or to protect the public. 
 

6.57.5 An applicant must supply a Basic Disclosure from the Disclosure and 
Barring Service (DBS). The disclosure is required on application for the 
grant of a licence and every three years thereafter.  

 
6.67.6  A basic disclosure can be obtained from Personnel Checks  

www.personnelchecks.co.uk  Telephone 01264 355679. Alternatively 
through www.gov.uk Telephone 0300 0200 190. 

  

6.77.7 An applicant for a private hire operator licence who also holds, or is 
applying for a private hire driver licence, is required to have an 
enhanced DBS check when applying for the driver licence. Therefore it 
will not be necessary for the applicant to have a further check for the 
operator application.  
 

6.87.8 All private hire operators must provide to the Licensing Authority, 
names and addresses of any staff employed to make the provision for 
bookings on their behalf. These staff (non licensed drivers) must 
provide a basic disclosure DBS certificate to the Licensing Authority 
prior to the start of employment. 
 

6.97.9 All new applicants must provide a copy of their complaints procedure 
which must be to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority prior to any 
licence being issued. A complaint procedure may be recorded on 
paper or computer and must show the Date, Name, Contact details, 
nature of complaint, how rectified and date and by what staff member. 
 

6.107.10 In order for the Licensing Authority to review the conduct of new 
private hire operator licence holders, new applicants will be granted a 
licence for one or five years. . The Council reserves the right to 
withhold issuing a five year licence where there are reasonable 
grounds to do so. 

 
  

Page 31

http://www.personnelchecks.co.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/


10 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

78 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
 
7.18.1 Ability to Communicate in English 
 

a Licence holders will need to be able to engage with passengers 
and must therefore be able to understand and converse in English to an 
adequate standard for this purpose. This is assessed by means of  an 
interview with a licensing officer and any test the Licensing Authority 
deem appropriate to ensure that the applicant is a ‘fit and proper’ 
person to hold a licence. 

 
7.28.2 Driving Licence 
 
a Applicants must be 21 years of age or more and have held a full driving 

licence for at least 12 months, granted by a country which belongs to 
the European Union or is within the European Economic Area (Iceland, 
Liechtenstein, and Norway are not in the EU, but are members of the 
EEA). An applicant from any country outside of these is required to 
pass a U.K. driving test and hold a full driving licence for at least 12 
months before re-applying. The Council reserve the right to assess 
every driving licence in line with Government or Institute of Licensing 
recommendations or national guidance. 

 
b All applicants must consent to allow the Licensing Authority to check 

their Driving Licence online:- The Authority will check vehicles the 
applicant is entitled to drive and any penalty points or disqualifications. 
Failure to consent to Officers obtaining this information shall result in 
the application being refused or current Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
driver’s licence being suspended or revoked. 

 
7.38.3 Entitlement to Work in UK  
 
a Pursuant to the Immigration Act 2016, applicants must prove that they 

have a “right to work” in the UK. Failure to provide satisfactory 
documentation will result in the application being refused. 

 
b The Licensing Authority reserves the right to provide documentation or 

information to the Home Office where it is considered appropriate to do 
so in the interests of complying with legislation or to protect the public. 

 
7.48.4 Assessing Applicants’ Fitness and Propriety 
 
a Applicants who were not born in the U.K. and/or have not lived in the 

U.K. for past 10 years continuously must supply a certificate of good 
conduct from their embassy, home country or from the country in which 
they have been living. .This may result in more than one certificate 
being required; for example if the applicant has lived in multiple 
Countries within the past 10 years. All Certificates must be written in 
English. If this is not possible from the suppling country the applicant 
must employ the services of a translation service. This service must 

Page 32



11 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

authenticate the certificate in English by confirming in writing to the 
Council with full details of any certificate supplied. 

 
7.58.5 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Check 
 
a All applicants must apply for an enhanced DBS check using the 

Council’s approved provider only. Full information on how to apply for 
an enhanced DBS can be found on the Council’s website. A basic or 
standard DBS certificate will not be accepted.  
 

b Authorised Officers will review any convictions disclosed and this will be 
taken into account when deciding whether or not to grant the application 
in accordance with the Policy on Criminal Convictions. Any Authorised 
Officer may also contact the Police for further information surrounding a 
conviction, caution, arrest or any other police investigation that has 
involved the applicant. This information will be used when deciding 
whether an applicant is a “fit and proper person”. Such checks shall be 
carried out on initial application and during the course of a licence 
where there are sufficient grounds to do so.  
 

c Notwithstanding the Licensing Authority’s requirements for a Disclosure 
and Barring Service check, applicants MUST disclose full details of any 
criminal convictions (including any “spent” convictions under the 
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974), cautions, arrest or any other 
police investigation on the application form. Failure to disclose this 
information that is subsequently disclosed under the Disclosure and 
Barring Service check or discovered by any other means will be taken 
into account when considering their application. Failure to notify a 
conviction on an application form is also a criminal offence and is likely 
to result in the application being refused.  
 

d The Licensing Authority strongly encourages drivers to register with the 
DBS online system. The applicant and any current driver must permit 
an Authorised Officer to check their DBS status at regular intervals at 
the discretion of the Council and in line with national guidance. . The 
Council may also authorise their current DBS provider to carry out 
status checks of any Council licensed driver’s DBS at regular intervals.  
A refusal by any applicant, current driver, Operator or Operator’s 
member of staff to permit regular checks of any DBS will cause the 
licence to be refused, suspended or revoked.  
 

e Where the DBS online system shows that there has been a change to 
the applicant’s record, a new enhanced DBS application will be 
required.  
 
In the case of renewals, where an applicant is unable to produce a 
satisfactory DBS certificate or online equivalent using the DBS update 
service, within one month prior to the expiry date of their current 
licence, the licence will not be renewed.  
 

Page 33



12 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

7.68.6 Safeguarding 
 

a All applicants must pass the Council’s approved Safeguarding 
Awareness training before a Driver or Operator Licence is granted.  The 
pass certificate must be submitted to the Council as part of the 
application process. 
 

b All Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Drivers licensed before 
25 February 2019 must pass the Council’s approved Safeguarding 
Awareness training no later than 31 October 2019.  Failure to do so will 
result in their Licence not being renewed, suspended or revoked. The 
pass certificate must be provided with the application to renew a 
hackney carriage and/or private hire driver’s licence.  
 

c All Operators licensed before 25 February 2019 must pass the 
Council’s approved safeguarding training no later than 31 October 
2019.  Failure to do so will result in their Licence not being renewed, 
suspended or revoked. The pass certificate must be provided with the 
application to renew a hackney carriage and/or private hire driver’s 
licence. 

 
dc All Drivers and Operators will be required to update their safeguarding 

training upon the Council’s request using a Safeguarding Training 
Provider/assessment approved by the Council. 
 

7.78.7 Driving Standards 
 
a In addition to possessing a driving licence issued by a relevant country, 

all new applicants are required to undertake the Blue Lamp Trust taxi 
driving assessment test (or any other driving assessment or training, 
which the Licensing Authority considers appropriate) and produce a 
pass certificate.  
 

b Contract drivers licensed for Schools and Disabled Contracts are 
exempt from 8.7a above, where the contracting authority carries out its 
own assessment of driving standards which is to the satisfaction of the 
Licensing Department.  
 

c An Authorised Officer may require any licensed hackney carriage or 
private hire driver to undergo and pass a driving assessment test, or 
training, which is considered appropriate e.g. Blue Lamp Trust, where 
satisfied that the driver’s standard of driving or general conduct are 
such that an assessment is desirable. 
 
 
 

7.108.8 Wheelchair Assessment  
 

a Any Licensed driver who drives a Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle must 
complete and pass an approved Wheelchair Safety Assessment with a 

Page 34



13 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

training provider approved by the Licensing Authority e.g. The Blue 
Lamp Assessment. A pass certificate must be presented to the 
Licensing Authority. 
 

7.118.9 Wheelchair exemptions  
 

a A wheelchair exemption may be granted to drivers who provide written 
evidence issued by a medical professional, that they are unable to 
safely secure a wheelchair bound passenger into their vehicle, to the 
satisfaction of the Licensing Authority.  
 

8.10 Disability awareness training 
 

a All applicants must complete and pass approved disability awareness 
training with a training provider approved by the Licensing Authority.  A 
pass certificate must be presented to the Licensing Authority as part of 
the application process. 
 

ab All current drivers must pass approved disability awareness training 
with a training provider approved by the Licensing Authority no later 
than 31 August 2021.  A pass certificate must be presented to the 
Licensing Authority.  Failure to do so will result in the licence not being 
renewed, suspended or revoked. 

 
7.128.11 Knowledge Test. 
 
a All applicants are required to take and pass the Private Hire and 

Hackney Carriage Knowledge Tests. Tests are conducted by the 
Licensing Authority on a regular basis. The test will be conducted in 
English only.  Payment for the test will be made in advance and failure 
to attend without prior notice shall mean forfeiture of any monies paid.  
Information regarding the Knowledge Test can be found on the 
Council’s website at www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing. 
 

b An Authorised Officer may include additional modules to the knowledge 
test where it is considered appropriate or necessary to ensure that the 
applicant is a ‘fit and proper person’ and in the interests of public safety. 
 

c The pass mark for all tests is 80% in each section.  
 

d Where an applicant applies to work for an operator who does not 
primarily provide a service in the Winchester Town area (i.e the five 
Town Wards together with Oliver’s Battery & Badger Farm, and The 
Worthys), certain modules of the test may not be required. 
 

e Where an applicant or current driver opts to amend their working 
practices in order to work primarily in the Winchester Town area they 
shall notify the Licensing Authority and pass the relevant knowledge 
test prior to commencement. 
 

Page 35

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing


14 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

f Drivers licensed for School contracts and Disabled passengers only will 
only be required to pass modules which are relevant to the work that 
they will be undertaking. Where the contracting authority carries out its 
own assessment of the required knowledge, applicants are exempt from 
the requirement to undergo a knowledge test.  
 

g In circumstances where a licensed driver’s knowledge or conduct is in 
question, such as following a complaint, an Authorised Officer or 
Licensing Sub-Committee may require a driver to complete relevant 
modules of the knowledge test within a time specified. 
 

h An Authorised Officer may require current licence holders to pass 
relevant modules of the knowledge test where it is considered 
necessary to ensure that they are a fit and proper person and/or in the 
interests of public safety. 
 

i An applicant who was previously licensed with this Council less than 
three years from the date of application who originally passed the 
knowledge test will not be required to re-take the knowledge test. 

 
7.138.12 Practical Knowledge Test 

 
a  All new applicants who have passed an approved Driving Assessment 

Test and knowledge test, may prior to, or after, a licence being issued 
be required to take a practical knowledge test. This test allows the 
applicant to prove that they have a practical knowledge of the area. 
Should the applicant demonstrate a poor knowledge of the area, they 
will not be issued with a licence and are advised to spend a reasonable 
amount of time driving around Winchester and surrounding areas, 
before making a further appointment to demonstrate their increased 
knowledge. 
 

b The licensing officer will determine whether an applicant has 
demonstrated a ‘practical knowledge of the area to which the 
application applies’.   

 
7.148.13 Medical Fitness 
 
a All applicants must undergo and pass a medical examination that meets 

the DVLA Group 2 Medical Standard of fitness to drive must provide a 
medical assessment form completed by the examining doctor. This 
must be provided to the Licensing Authority no later than 28 days from 
the date of the examination. 
 

b  A medical examination is to be carried out on initial application and 
every fifth year thereafter until the age of 65 years and every year 
thereafter.  

 
c The examination must take place at the surgery where the applicant is 

registered in order that the examining doctor has access to their 

Page 36



15 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

medical records, or at another surgery provided that the examining 
doctor has access to the applicant’s medical records. 

 
d Any Authorised Officer may require any licensed driver to undergo a 

medical examination with an approved medical provider, where satisfied 
that a condition has arisen which might affect the person’s fitness to 
drive a licensed vehicle. This may result in the current driver’s licence 
being suspended or revoked. 

 
e Where the applicant has been diagnosed with Diabetes Mellitus, other 

than treatment by diet only, applicants must provide on renewal of their 
hackney carriage and/or private hire driver licence, or every 12 months 
in the case of a driver with a 3 years driver licence (when a medical 
report is not due) confirmation that they meet the Group 2 medical 
standards of fitness to drive in the form prescribed by the Licensing 
Authority. This must be signed by the applicant’s registered GP or a 
diabetic consultant.  

 
7.158.14 New applicants 
 
a If an applicant has not fulfilled all of the above criteria within 12 months 

of submitting an application to drive a hackney carriage and/or private 
hire vehicle, the application will be refused. 

 
b Where an applicant has been refused a licence due to failing the 

knowledge test three times and not completing the above criteria within 
12 months, applicants must wait no fewer than 3 months from the date 
of refusal before re-submitting an application for a licence to drive a 
hackney carriage and/or private hire vehicle. 
 

7.168.15 Duration of licence 
 

a In order for the Licensing Authority to review the conduct of new 
hackney carriage and/or private hire drivers, new licences are granted 
annually for the first three years. After the initial three year period, on 
renewal, a licence may be granted for one or three years, depending 
on the case. The Licensing Authority reserves the right to withhold 
issuing a three year licence where there are reasonable grounds to do 
so. 

 
 

Page 37



16 
 

 
Section 5 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

89 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licences and Operators 
Criminal Convictions Policy  
 

8.19.1 This Policy applies to the following:- 
 
a Applications for a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver’s Licence; 
 
b Revocation of an existing Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver’s 
  Licence; 
  
c Suspension of an existing Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver’s 
  Licence. 
 

8.29.2 Each case will be decided on its own merits. All decisions will be in the 
interests of public safety.  
 

8.39.3 A Caution, Fixed Penalty or Community Resolution must be disclosed 
and will be assessed under the character of applicant or current licence 
holder if deemed appropriate. 
 

8.49.4 A person with a conviction for certain crimes will not normally be 
permanently barred from obtaining a licence but is expected to remain free of 
conviction for between5 and 10 years, depending on the seriousness of the 
offence and the relevant circumstances, before an application is considered. 
However, persons with convictions of a sexual or child-related nature or 
other very serious crime will not normally be issued with a licence.  

 
8.59.5 Winchester City Council reserves the right to extend the number of years 

free from conviction or caution depending on the severity and/or the number 
of offences.  

 
8.69.6 Offences will not necessarily be disregarded on the basis that they are 

“spent” convictions according to the relevant provisions of the Rehabilitation 
of Offenders Act 1974. These provisions do not apply to Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Drivers but whether or not Winchester City Council 
considers that the safety of the public may be put at risk if a licence was 
granted. 

 
Offences resulting in Death 

 
8.79.7 Where an applicant or current driver has been convicted of a crime which 

resulted in the death of another person or was intended to cause the death 
or serious injury of another person they will not be licensed or will have their 
current licence revoked. 
 

Exploitation 
 

8.89.8 Where an applicant or current driver has been convicted of a crime involving, 
related to, or has any connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment 

Page 38



17 
 

 
Section 5 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

of another individual irrespective of whether the victim or victims were adults 
or children, they will not be licensed or will have their current licence 
revoked. This includes slavery, child sexual exploitation, grooming, 
psychological, emotional or financial abuse, but this is not an exhaustive list. 

 
Offences involving violence 

 
8.99.9 Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence of violence, or connected 

with any offence of violence, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 
years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. Any 
current driver convicted of a violent offence can expect their licence to be 
revoked. 
 

Possession of a weapon 
 

8.109.10 Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of a weapon or 
any other weapon related offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 
7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. Any 
current driver convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be 
revoked. 

 
Sex and indecency offences 

 
8.119.11 Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence involving or 

connected with illegal sexual activity or any form of indecency, a licence will 
not be granted. Any current driver convicted of this offence can expect their 
licence to be revoked. 
 

8.129.12 In addition to the above, the licensing authority will not grant a licence 
to any applicant who is currently on the Sex Offenders Register or on any 
‘barred’ list. 

 
Dishonesty 

 
8.139.13 Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence of dishonesty, or 

any offence where dishonesty is an element of the offence, a licence will not 
be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any 
sentence imposed. Any current driver convicted of this offence can expect 
their licence to be revoked. 

 
Drugs 

 
8.149.14 Where an applicant has any conviction for, or related to, the supply of 

drugs, or possession with intent to supply or connected with possession with 
intent to supply, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have 
elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. Any current driver 
convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be revoked. 
 

Page 39



18 
 

 
Section 5 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

8.159.15 Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of drugs, or 
related to the possession of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 
5 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. In 
these circumstances, any applicant will also have to undergo drugs testing at 
their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs. 
Any current driver convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be 
revoked. 
 

Discrimination 
 

8.169.16 Where an applicant has a conviction involving or connected with 
discrimination in any form, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years 
have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. Any current 
driver convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be revoked. 

 
Motoring convictions 

 
8.179.17 Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers 

charged with the responsibility of carrying the public. Any motoring conviction 
demonstrates a lack of professionalism and will be considered seriously. It is 
accepted that offences can be committed unintentionally, and a single 
occurrence of a minor traffic offence would not prohibit the grant of a licence 
or may not result in action against an existing licence. Subsequent 
convictions reinforce the fact that the licence holder does not take their 
professional responsibilities seriously and is therefore not a safe and suitable 
person to be granted or retain a licence. 
 

Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs/using a hand‐held telephone 
or hand held device whilst driving 

 
8.189.18 Where an applicant has a conviction for drink driving or driving under 

the influence of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have 
elapsed since the completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed. In 
these circumstances, any applicant will also have to undergo drugs testing at 
their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs. 
Any current driver convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be 
revoked. 
 

8.199.19 Where an applicant has a conviction for using a held‐hand mobile 

telephone or a hand‐held device whilst driving, a licence will not be granted 
until at least 5 years have elapsed since the conviction or completion of any 
sentence or driving ban imposed, whichever is the later. Any current driver 
convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be revoked. 
 
 

Other motoring offences 
 

8.209.20 A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is one which does not involve 
loss of life, driving under the influence of drink or drugs, driving whilst using a 

Page 40



19 
 

 
Section 5 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

mobile phone, and has not resulted in injury to any person or damage to any 
property (including vehicles). Where an applicant has nine or more points on 
their DVLA licence for minor traffic or similar offences, a licence will not be 
granted until at least three years have elapsed since the completion of any 
sentence imposed. 
 

8.219.21 A major traffic or vehicle related offence is one which is not covered 
above and also any offence which resulted in injury to any person or damage 
to any property (including vehicles). It also includes driving without insurance 
or any offence connected with motor insurance. Where an applicant has a 
conviction for a major traffic offence or similar offence, a licence will not be 
granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the completion of any 
sentence imposed. Any current driver convicted of this offence can expect 
their licence to be revoked. 
 

Hackney carriage and private hire offences 
 

8.229.22 Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence concerned with or 
connected to hackney carriage or private hire activity (excluding vehicle use), 
a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since 
the completion of any sentence imposed. Any current driver convicted of this 
offence can expect their licence to be revoked. 
 

Vehicle use offences 
 

8.239.23  Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence which involved 
the use of a vehicle (including hackney carriages and private hire vehicles), a 
licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the 
completion of any sentence imposed. Any current driver convicted of this 

offence can expect their licence to be revoked. 
 
8.249.24 Applications would not normally be approved from licensed drivers 

who had been convicted of an offence where the offence was carried out 
whilst the applicant was acting as a hackney carriage or private hire driver, 
or where commissioning of the offence related to the applicant’s driver’s 
licence 
 

8.259.25 The Licensing Authority may exercise discretion where an offence is 
isolated and there are mitigating circumstances. However, the overriding 
consideration in all cases is the protection of the public. 

 
8.269.26 An Authorised Officer may contact the Police for further information 

surrounding a conviction or caution and use this information when deciding 
whether an applicant is a “fit and proper person”. 
 

8.279.27 An Authorised Officer has delegated authority to issue Drivers’ 
Licences. In any case where he or she considers it appropriate, he or she 
may refer the application to the Licensing Sub-Committee for a determination 
as to whether or not an application for a licence should be granted or, where 

Page 41



20 
 

 
Section 5 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

a licence has already been granted, whether that licence should be 
suspended or revoked. 
 

8.289.28 The Licensing Authority accepts that where an applicant or licence 
holder has been found guilty of a criminal offence, the Court will have 
imposed what it considers to be an appropriate penalty for that offence. 
Accordingly, in considering convictions for such offences, the 
Sub-Committee dealing with a case should not ‘re-try’ any offence for which 
the applicant or licence holder has pleaded guilty or been found guilty by a 
court of law. However, it should take into account the type and nature of the 
offence, and the penalty imposed, and should bear in mind the fact that the 
paramount consideration is the protection of the public.  

 
8.299.29 For the same reason, offences will not be disregarded simply on the 

basis that the offender has served his or her sentence, and has therefore 
paid the appropriate penalty for his or her crime. In considering whether to 
grant an application for a licence, or to revoke an existing licence, the Sub-
Committee will be determining whether or not   the public would be 
adequately protected should a licence be granted or not revoked, rather than 
whether to impose a penalty. 

 
8.309.30 The Licensing Authority considers that in determining applications for 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licences, or deciding whether to revoke 
or suspend such licences, the Sub-Committee proceedings  constitute 
“proceedings before a quasi-judicial authority” within the meaning of Section 
4(6) of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974, and therefore, where the 
Sub-Committee hearing a case considers that justice cannot be done except 
by admitting evidence relating to spent convictions, such evidence may be 
admitted in accordance with Section 7 of that Act. Given the need to protect 
the public, it is likely that in the case of spent convictions involving serious 
offences. (e.g. death by dangerous driving, drugs, violence, sexual offences 
or offences of an habitual nature), evidence of such convictions will be 
admitted. 

 
8.319.31 It is an offence, punishable by up to seven years imprisonment upon 

conviction, for any person knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement 
or to omit any material details when giving information required in an 
application for a licence. With regard to questions concerning previous 
convictions, the applicant’s attention is drawn to the provisions of section 
4(2) of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974.  This, in summary, provides 
that any such question shall be treated as not relating to “spent” convictions 
as defined in that Act. Applicants, applicants are also notified that Sections 4 
(2), and 6 and 7 of this Act provide that the Local Authority may admit 
evidence of “spent” convictions which are relevant in determining whether an 
applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a licence.  

  

Page 42



21 
 

 
Section 6 – Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

910 Enforcement and Compliance 
 

9.110.1 Holders of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Operators, Drivers and 
Vehicles licences are principally governed by the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Town Police Clauses Act 1847, the 
Council’s Byelaws and Conditions. 

 
9.210.2 If Operators, Drivers or Proprietors of Vehicles commit an offence or 

breach of those rules, regulations or conditions of licence, persons involved 
may be asked to attend the Council offices for an interview and, when 
investigations are completed, may receive a letter detailing the outcome. A 
copy is placed on the person’s file. The outcome of investigations may result 
in immediate revocation or suspension of any licence, no further action,, 
penalty points being awarded, a formal warning or , referral to the Licensing 
Sub-Committee and/or prosecution. 

 
9.310.3 The aim of a penalty points scheme is that it should work in conjunction 

with other enforcement options.  It provides a formalised, stepped, 
enforcement plan.  The purpose of the scheme is to record misdemeanours 
and to act as a record of a licence holder’s behaviour and conduct so as to 
ascertain whether they are a fit and proper person to hold a licence.  It does 
not prejudice the Council’s ability to take other action. 

 
9.410.4 The primary objective of the penalty points scheme is to improve the 

levels of compliance and help improve standards, and to ensure the safety 
and protection of the travelling public. 

 
9.510.5 Any penalty points imposed remain on a person’s record for a twelve 

month period.  This period is on a roll-forward basis, so as to allow any  
points imposed 12 months or more earlier to be considered as spent and 
therefore excluded from the running total recorded against any individual  
licence holder. 

 
9.610.6 In the event that a driver/owner/operator commits an offence or breaches 

a condition as listed in the penalty points table below he/she may be 
awarded the number of points applicable to the circumstances as shown in 
the table for the breach/offence. 
 

1011 Issue of Penalty Points 
 
10.111.1  Breaches of conduct will be subject to investigation by Authorised 

Officers and may be reported to the Licensing Sub-Committee. Penalty 
points may be issued by an Authorised Officer. Alternatively, the Licensing 
Sub-Committee can impose between 1 and 12 discretionary points as shown 
in the table. The points table is to be used as a guide only, the Authorised 
Officer or Licensing Sub-Committee can depart from this table to award 
points for any offence or behaviour that is not covered. 

 
10.211.2 Where a licence holder accumulates 12 or more penalty points in any 

12 month period, the matter will be referred to the Council’s Licensing Sub-

Page 43



22 
 

 
Section 6 – Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

Committee to decide whether the licence holder is a fit and proper person.  
The Licensing Sub-Committee may then revoke a licence, or issue a warning 
to the licence holder, depending on the circumstances. The Licensing 
Manager will have the discretion to revoke or suspend any licence 
immediately following receipt of information regarding a serious driving 
incident that involves any licence holder.  
 

10.311.3 Penalty Points will remain current for 12 months from the date the penalty 
points are issued.  Points issued to either the proprietor of a vehicle, operator 
or a driver will be confirmed in writing within 10 working days from the 
discovery of the contravention. 

 
10.411.4 The system will operate without prejudice to the Council’s ability to take 

other action that it is entitled to take under legislation, byelaws and 
regulations. 
 

10.511.5 Any disputes regarding the issuing of penalty points will be referred to the 
Licensing Sub-Committee who will have the discretion to vary the points. 
However, in appealing to the Sub-Committee, drivers should be made aware 
that if the complaint is upheld, the Sub-Committee may decide to award 
more points than had been originally awarded.  
 

10.611.6 Where a driver wishes to appeal the issue of penalty points to a Licensing 
Sub-Committee they must inform the Licensing Authority, in writing, within 21 
days from the date of issue. 

 
10.711.7 If points are issued to a proprietor/driver for a matter which is also a 

criminal offence, eg bald tyres, no badge, those person(s) will not then be 
the subject of a prosecution by the Council. 
 

10.811.8 If a licence is revoked under this procedure, no new application will be 
considered until a period of 12 months has elapsed since the revocation. 

 

PENALTY POINTS TABLE 

   
Offence/Breach of Condition 

Maximum 
Points 

Applicable 

Driver Vehicle 
Owner or 
Operator 

1  Providing false or misleading 
information on licence application 
form/failing to provide relevant 
information or the relevant fee 
(including dishonoured cheques). 

6   

2  Failure to notify, in writing, the 
Licensing Authority of change of 
address within 7 calendar days. 

3   

3  Refusal to accept hiring without 
reasonable cause eg drunk or rude 
customer 

1-12   

Page 44



23 
 

 
Section 6 – Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

Offence/Breach of Condition Maximum 
Points 

Applicable 
Driver 

Vehicle 
Owner or 
Operator 

4  Unreasonable prolongation of 
journeys or any misconduct 
regarding the charging of fares. 

6   

5  Plying for hire by Private Hire 
drivers. 

9   

6  Failure to hold a current vehicle 
excise licence (road tax). 

9   

7  Using unlicensed vehicle or vehicle 
without insurance. 

12   

8  Failure to produce relevant 
documents within timescale when 
requested by an authorised officer. 

4   

9  Unsatisfactory condition of vehicle, 
interior or exterior. 

4   

10  Failure to produce MOT certificate 
when requested. 

6   

11  Failure to produce Hackney 
Carriage or Private Hire vehicle for 
testing when required 

6   

12  Failure to provide proof of 
insurance cover when requested. 

4   

13  Using a vehicle subject to a 
suspension order issued by an 
authorised officer or a police 
officer. 

12   

14  Using a vehicle for which the 
licence has been suspended or 
revoked. 

12   

15  Failure to report, in writing, within 
72 hours accident or damage to 
licensed vehicle, which would 
cause the vehicle to breach licence 
conditions. 

4   

16   Carrying more passengers than 
stated on the vehicle licence. 

6   

17  Failure to display external/internal 
licence plate or signs as required. 

4   

18  Carrying an offensive weapon in 
the vehicle. 

12  
 
 

19  Failure to notify transfer of Private 
Hire or Hackney Carriage vehicle 
licence. 

4   

20  Unnecessarily Idling of Hackney 
Carriage or Private Hire vehicle  

3   

Page 45



24 
 

 
Section 6 – Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

Offence/Breach of Condition Maximum 
Points 

Applicable 
Driver 

Vehicle 
Owner or 
Operator 

21  Displaying unsuitable or 
inappropriate sited signs or 
advertisements in the vehicle. 

3   

22  Failure to use authorised roof light 
4  

 
 
 

23  Failure to maintain records in a 
suitable form of the 
commencement and cessation of 
work of each driver each day. 

4   

24  Failure to produce on request 
records of drivers work activity. 

4   

25  Using a non approved or non-
calibrated taximeter. 

6   

26  Obstruction of an authorised officer 
or police officer wishing to examine 
a licensed vehicle. 

12   

27  Displaying any feature on private 
hire vehicle that may suggest that it 
is a taxi. 

6   

28  Failure to carry an assistance dog 
without requisite exemption. 

12   

29  Driver not holding a current DVLA 
Licence. 

12   

30  Failure to wear driver’s badge. 4   

31  Failure to notify, in writing, a 
change in medical circumstances. 

6   

32  Unsatisfactory appearance of 
driver. 

3   

33  Failure to observe rank discipline.  
(Hackney Carriage) 

3   

34  Leaving an unattended Hackney 
Carriage on a taxi rank 

3   

35  Failure to maintain proper records 
of private hire vehicle. 

3   

36  Failure to keep or produce records 
of Private Hire bookings or other 
documents required to be kept or 
produced. 

6   

37  Misleading use of the words ‘Taxi’ 
or ‘Cab’ on advertising materials. 

3   

38  Failure to issue receipt on request. 
 
 

1-12   

Page 46



25 
 

 
Section 6 – Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

Offence/Breach of Condition Maximum 
Points 

Applicable 
Driver 

Vehicle 
Owner or 
Operator 

39  Failure to return vehicle licence 
plate within 7 days after due notice 
following revocation or suspension 
of such licence. 

4   

40  Unsatisfactory behaviour or 
conduct. 

1-12   

41  Failure to notify the Licensing 
Authority, in writing, of any 
motoring or criminal convictions 
within 21 day of conviction or 
cautions during period of current 
licence. 

6   

42  Failure to give assistance with 
loading/unloading. 

1-12   

43  Failure to display fare card. 
3   

44  Failure to carry legal spare wheel 
and tools, or suitable tyre 
reinflation device. 

4   

45  Failure to attend punctually at 
appointed time and place without 
sufficient cause. 

4   

46  A licensed vehicle with a bald tyre. 
4 per tyre   

47  Failure to submit licence renewal 
application including documents 
and attendance at a vehicle 
inspection. 

6   

48  Failure to comply with any other 
conditions 

3   

49  Waiting or stopping on a double 
yellow line area, restricted parking, 
bus stop or private land (without 
the owner’s permission) unless 
requested by a paying customer 
present in the vehicle. 

3   

50  Use of hand held mobile device (eg 
mobile phone) whilst driving 
licensed vehicle 

6   

51  Smoking in licensed vehicle 
3   

52  Points awarded by Licensing Sub-
Committee where matters referred 
to them for decision. 

4-12   

53  Private hire vehicles stopped or 
waiting on a taxi rank 

3   

Page 47



26 
 

Glossary 
  

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed September 2020 

 

 
Glossary 

 
“Authorised Officer” means any officer of the Council authorised in writing 
by the Council for the purpose of these conditions. 
 
“Hackney Carriage” has the same meaning as in the Town Police Clauses 
Act 1847. 
 
“Private Hire Vehicle” means a motor vehicle constructed or adapted to seat 
fewer than eight passengers, other than a Hackney Carriage or public service 
vehicle, which is provided for hire with the services of a Driver for the purpose 
of carrying passengers. 
 
“Taximeter” means any device for calculating the fare to be charged in 
respect of any journey in a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle by 
reference to the distance travelled or time elapsed since the start of the 
journey, or a combination of both. 
 
“the Act” means Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and 
the Town Police Clauses Act 1847. 
 
“the Council” means  Winchester City Council. 
 
“the Driver” means a person licensed to drive a Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire vehicle under Section 51 of the Act. 
 
“the Licence Holder” means the holder of the Hackney Carriage and/or 
Private Hire Driver’s or vehicle licence. 
 
“the Licensing Authority” means the licensing section of Winchester City 
Council. 
 
“the Operator” means the person(s) or company directors whom the Council 
has granted the Private Hire Operator’s Licence under Section 55 of the Act.  
 
“Winchester District” – the administrative area of Winchester City Council 
 
“Winchester Town” - the Five Town Wards plus Oliver’s Battery & Badger 
Farm, and The Worthys. 

Page 48



 

Winchester City Council 
Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Main Report (V03) 

May 2020 

 

 

  

Page 49



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

Contents 
 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 2 

Summary of Findings.................................................................................................................. 2 

Report Structure ........................................................................................................................ 4 

Methodology / Sample .............................................................................................................. 4 

Findings ...................................................................................................................................... 6 

Qualitative Findings (Focus Group) .......................................................................................... 24 

Vehicle appearance ........................................................................................................................... 24 

Vehicle age & type ............................................................................................................................ 25 

Hybrid & Electric vehicles ................................................................................................................. 27 

Cameras ............................................................................................................................................ 27 

Contactless payment......................................................................................................................... 28 

Public safety (signage) ...................................................................................................................... 29 

Wheelchair accessible vehicles ......................................................................................................... 30 

Driver Training .................................................................................................................................. 31 

Appendices ............................................................................................................................... 32 

Questionnaire ................................................................................................................................... 32 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 50



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Introduction 

 

Winchester City Council wants to bring positive change to the Winchester licensed taxi and private 

hire regime and wish to consult with those who will be affected by proposed changes to its taxi and 

private hire licensing policy. 

 

The Council commissioned Social and Market Strategic Research (SMSR Ltd), an independent 

research company to carry out a consultation to gather feedback from people who work in the 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire industry within the Winchester district together with residents, 

regarding proposed changes to its taxi licensing policy. 

 

Summary of Findings 

 

Vehicle Appearance 

 

For purposes of public safety, more than half of respondents interviewed (54%) agreed there should 

be a standard livery on Hackney Carriage taxis.  This proposed change was opposed by a third (34%) 

with the remainder stating they did not know.  Opinion was split on whether Winchester City Council 

corporate colours should be used for a standard livery; a slim majority of 53% agreed compared to 

47% opposing the proposed change.   

 

When presented with two suggested designs which could be used for the standard livery (displayed 

later in the report), respondents were slightly more likely to choose design A (27%) as opposed to 

design B (21%) – the majority had no preference towards either design (44%). 

 

When asked to consider a timescale for the introduction of a standard livery, a quarter (25%) 

thought that between 6 months to 1 year was acceptable with half of the sample of the opinion that 

a timescale exceeding 1 year was more appropriate (1-2 years – 30%; 2-3 years (20%).  

 

Vehicle Age and Type 

 

Respondents were asked to consider proposed changes to the licensing policy concerning vehicle 

age and type.  Nearly three quarters (72%) agreed that this should be included in the new policy.  All 

new petrol and diesel licensed vehicles can be up to 4 years old from the date of first registration.  

Nearly a sixth (13%) opposed this action and the remainder did not know.  A similar percentage 

(70%) also agreed that a maximum (end of working life age) of 12 years should be introduced on all 

vehicles – petrol or diesel; a fifth (21%) contested this action.  If the proposal were introduced, a 

third (33%) thought that a 2-year timescale would be acceptable; a quarter (25%) believing that a 1 

year should be set. Less than a fifth thought 6 months was appropriate and around a tenth (12%), 18 

months. 

 

Page 51



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

The Council put forward several proposals to encourage the use of electric or Hybrid vehicles.  This 

was met with a favourable response with more than two-thirds (71%) in agreement.  Just under a 

fifth (18%) opposed the introduction of such incentives.   

 

However, the majority (61%) thought that when licensing electric or hybrid vehicles for the first 

time, this should remain in line with all other licensed vehicles.  More than a third (37%) thought this 

should be extended to 8 years.  A similar response was elicited in relation to maximum end of life 

incentives.   

 

More than two thirds thought maximum end of life age for electric and hybrid vehicles should 

remain in line with all other vehicles with just over a quarter (28%) believing this timeframe should 

be extended up to 15 years for vehicles that have less environmental impact. 

 

Respondents were divided on plans to make it mandatory for drivers to replace a vehicle by 1st 

January 2023 if the vehicle’s date of registration is before 1st September 2015 in order to meet Euro 

5 emissions standards.  Just less than half (45%) agreed with the proposal; an almost identical 

percentage (44%) did not agree that improved emissions should be a reason for making drivers 

change their vehicles at all.  Around a tenth (11%) thought vehicles should be replaced earlier. 

 

Public Safety 

 

In the interest of public safety, more than two-thirds (71%) believed that all Hackney Carriages and 

Private Hire vehicles should have CCTV installed; around a fifth (18%) opposed the measure.  

Furthermore, the majority (69%) of those who were in favour of the installation of CCTV in vehicles 

for public safety advocated the positioning of cameras both inside and outside of the vehicle.  

Around a fifth (18%) thought cameras should only be installed on the inside and just over a tenth 

(13%) did not know.  

 

The vast majority were open to the provision of contactless card payment facilities available in all 

vehicles; more than 8 in every 10 advocated this proposal.  A tenth (10%) did not believe this facility 

should be made available in all vehicles. 

 

Continuing with public safety proposals, more than 8 in every 10 respondents agreed that private 

hire vehicles should have permanent Winchester City Council approved door signs and both Private 

Hire vehicles and Hackney Carriages must have a permanently fixed rear identification plate. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 52



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles 

 

More than 8 in every 10 respondents agreed with a proposed change to the licensing policy to allow 

wheelchair accessible vehicles to be side and/or rear loading to improve flexibility and 

environmental efficiency.  Less than a tenth (8%) did not agree with this approach and 9% did not 

know. 

 

Driver Training 

 

In general, respondents agreed that both existing and new taxi Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 

drivers should have to complete additional training.  Respondents felt more strongly towards new 

drivers having to complete additional training such as a BTEC Level 2 Professional Taxi & Private Hire 

Driver with nearly four-fifths (79%) in agreement.  There was a reduction in agreement when taking 

existing drivers into consideration, however a majority of three-fifths (59%) agreed with this action. 

 

Report Structure 

 

This report includes headline findings for each question combined with insight based on 

demographic and geographic trends.  It should be noted that when the results are discussed within 

the report, often percentages will be rounded up or down to the nearest one per cent.  Therefore, 

occasionally figures may add up to 101% or 99%.  Due to multiple responses being allowed for the 

question, some results may exceed the sum of 100%. 

 

Trends identified in the reporting are statistically significant at a 95% confidence level. This means 

that there is only 5% probability that the difference has occurred by chance (a commonly accepted 

level of probability), rather than being a ‘real’ difference. Unless otherwise stated, statistically 

significant trends have been reported on. 

 

Methodology / Sample 

 

The consultation was designed to be inclusive of people who work in the Hackney Carriage and 

Private Hire industry and the general public.  A range of methodologies were employed to ensure 

those directly affected by the proposals and all other groups were given maximum opportunity to 

provide their opinion.  A questionnaire was designed by staff at Winchester City Council with 

support from SMSR Ltd during a thorough development phase with input and feedback provided by 

staff at both organisations in order to validate the script.  The approach was as follows: 

  

Page 53



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire industry 

 

Those working in the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire industry who may be directly affected by the 

proposed changes were invited to participate in the research primarily by email which included a 

direct link to an online survey.  Where the Council did not hold electronic contact details, a postal 

survey was provided with a freepost return envelope. 

 

Stakeholders were also invited to participate in a focus group held at Winchester Rugby Club 

designed to enable attendees to provide qualitative feedback on the new policy. 

 

The General Public 

 

A selection of residents across Winchester were invited to participate in an interviewer led, 

telephone survey using random quota sampling.  Quotas for age, gender and ethnicity were set 

using mid-2017 census figures.  An identical script was used during both consultations.  

 

Fieldwork ran from January to March 2020 and a total of 327 respondents participated in the 

consultation, the breakdown of stakeholders and residents interviewed was as follows: 

 

 

  

Methodology Number % of sample 

Stakeholders (online / postal) 62 19% 

General public 265 81% 

Are you…? Number % of sample 

A Winchester Hackney Carriage Driver (with a current license) 33 10% 

A Winchester Private Hire Driver (with a current license) 27 8% 

A proprietor of Winchester plated Hackney Carriage vehicle 10 3% 

A proprietor of Winchester plated Private Hire vehicle 11 3% 

A Winchester Private Hire Operator 17 5% 

A local resident (Winchester District) 247 76% 

Someone who works in Winchester 62 19% 

Someone who visits Winchester 62 19% 

A member of a community group 9 3% 

Other 2 1% 

Page 54



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

Findings 

 

Vehicle Appearance 

 

To improve public safety, the Council is proposing the introduction of a standard livery on Hackney 

Carriage Taxis.  This change will reassure passengers that they are travelling in a vehicle licensed by 

Winchester City Council.  The improved image will stand out, making it easier for all passengers, local 

people and visitors to identify them. It will also make illegal touting (illegal taxis) harder to take 

place. 

 

 
 

The majority of respondents agreed there should be a standard livery on Hackney Carriages with just 

over half providing this opinion (54%).  A third (34%) did not think there should be a standard livery 

and just over a tenth (12%) said they did not know.  

 

Members of the public (57%) were more likely to agree there should be a standard livery on Hackney 

Carriages when compared to stakeholders (40%).  Those identifying as a licensed Winchester 

Hackney Carriage driver were also least likely to with this proposal compared with local residents of 

Winchester (55%), those who work in Winchester (50%) and those who visit Winchester (40%). 

  

54% 34% 

12% 

Do you think there should be a standard livery on Hackney 
Carriages? 

Yes

No

Don't know

Page 55



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

7 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Respondents were divided on whether Winchester City Council corporate colours should be used for 

the standard livery.  A slight majority (53%) were in favour of this aspect of the proposal. 

 

Although there were no significant differences when comparing the stakeholder consultation with 

the general public, those identifying as a Winchester Hackney Carriage driver (36%) were less likely 

to agree that Winchester City Council corporate colours should be used for the standard livery than 

Winchester Private Hire Operators (71%), local residents (51%) and those visiting Winchester (69%). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

53% 

47% 

Do you agree that Winchester City Council Corporate Colours should 
be used for the standard livery? 

Yes

No

Page 56



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

8 | P a g e  
 

Respondents were then asked if they preferred either of two suggested designs which could be used 

for the standard livery; both designs were provided in graphic format for the respondent to examine. 

 

 
 

The results provided no clear preference for either design with nearly half (44%) providing a neutral 

opinion.  Design A, which featured a white base with plum bonnet was marginally favoured with 27% 

showing a preference towards this livery compared to 21% towards design B.  Just under a tenth 

(8%) answered ‘not applicable’, being of the opinion there should not be a standard livery on 

Hackney Carriages.  

 

Stakeholders (42%) were more inclined to prefer design A compared with those participating in the 

general public consultation (23%).  Members of the public were more likely to have no preference 

towards either design compared to stakeholders (50% vs 19% respectively). 

 

Similarly, those identifying as a local resident (51%) were more likely to have no preference than 

those participating as a licensed Hackney Carriage Driver (27%) suggesting drivers whose vehicles 

would be affected by the livery were more likely to prefer Design A. 

 

Do you have any comments or an alternative suggestion to those above? 

 
“I am not an artistic person so hard for me to choose between the two, but I don't think it is a bad idea really. 

There used to be a firm operating in the area called Silver Line which had taxis which had a mix of black and 

white colouring which helped them stand out.” 

 

“I think the coloured bonnet would be easy to spot if a vehicle is driving towards you.” 

 

“I feel it would be additional unnecessary expense for the driver to pay.” 

 

“I just do not think that it is that practical and I feel as long as a vehicle has correct taxi markings on then it is 

good enough.” 

 

27% 

44% 

21% 

Design A No preference Design B

Do you have a preference for either of the suggestions? 

Page 57



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

9 | P a g e  
 

 
 

A quarter (25%) believed that, if a change of livery were adopted by the Council, 6 months to 1 year 

would be a suitable timescale for introduction.  Just under a third (30%) thought 1-2 years to be a 

suitable timescale and a fifth (20%) said 2-3 years should be considered.  A quarter said the question 

was not applicable (25%). 

 

Stakeholders (35%) were most likely to feel that 2-3 years was a suitable timescale compared to 

those participating in the public consultation (16%).  Members of the public were most likely to 

agree on a timescale of 1-2 years (32%). 

 

Furthermore, those identifying as a licensed Hackney Carriage driver or Private Hire driver were 

most likely to prefer a timescale of 2-3 years (36% and 41% respectively). 

  

25% 

30% 

20% 

25% 

6 months - 1 year 1- 2 years 2 - 3 years Not applicable

If the Council adopt a change of vehicle livery, for current petrol and diesel 
licensed vehicles, what do you think would be a suitable timescale for 

introduction? 

Page 58



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

10 | P a g e  
 

Vehicle Age and Type 

 

Currently, when licensed for the first time Hackney Carriages can be up to 3 years old, from the date 

of first registration and Private Hire vehicles can be up to 5 years old from the date of first 

registration. It is proposed that petrol and diesel Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles when 

licensed for the first time can be up to 4 years old. 

 

 
Nearly a quarter (72%) of respondents agreed with this proposed policy change, leaving over a tenth 

in opposition (13%) and a sixth stating they did not know (16%). 

 

The general public (75%) were significantly more likely to agree with the proposal than stakeholders 

(55%).  It was also found that licensed Hackney Carriage drivers (67%) were more likely to agree with 

this action compared to private hire drivers (44%).  Three-quarters of Winchester residents (73%) 

backed the proposal. 

 

If no, please give reasons for your answer: 

 
“I don't think it's important how old the vehicle is, it's really how well looked after it is and the mileage it's 

done.” 

 

“Hackney carriages should stay the same they represent the council more than private hires.” 

 

“I think it should be five years and under. As the younger the age the cost is very high.” 

 

“Not always financially feasible to have a newer vehicle. It's possible to have an older vehicle in better shape 

than a newer one. It depends on the individual car for which the license is being sought.” 

  

72% 

13% 

16% 

Do you agree with the proposed  policy change, that all new petrol and diesel 
licensed  vehicles can be up to 4 years old from the date of first registration? 

Yes

No

Don't know

Page 59



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

11 | P a g e  
 

At present there is no maximum (end of working life) age for licensed vehicles in the Winchester 

District.  It is proposed that Petrol and Diesel Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles will have a 

maximum (end of working life) age of 12 years. 

 

 
 

More than two thirds (70%) agreed that Petrol and Diesel Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 

vehicles should have a maximum (end of working life) age of 12 years.  A fifth (21%) did not agree 

with this proposal and a tenth (9%) did not know. 

 

No significant differences were found within the results and this proposal was generally backed by 

stakeholders and the public. 

 

If no, please give reasons for your answer: 

 
“I think that's too long in public service so I think it should be just 5 or 6 years because in that time they would 

have had an MOT twice.” 

 

“I think it should be 10 years because it's the general public who are using the taxis so it shouldn't be too old for 

safety.” 

 

“I think that as long as a car is in good working order and has all its servicing and MOTs up to date then it 

should be able to be used as a taxi.” 

 

“I think it depends on the individual as to how well they look after their vehicles because some won't look after 

them and others will so I think it depends more on the condition of the vehicle.” 

 

“I think that as long as the vehicle has its MOT and is serviced correctly, then it is safe enough to be used on the 

road.” 

 

 

 

70% 

21% 

9% 

Do you agree that a maximum (end of working life age) of 12 years be introduced 
for petrol and diesel Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles? 

Yes

No

Don't know

Page 60



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

12 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Just under a fifth (17%) believed this proposal should be introduced within 6 months, a quarter 

(25%) within a year and just over a tenth (12%) within 18 months.  A third (33%) thought that 2 years 

was a suitable timescale and 13% found the question to be not applicable. 

 

Stakeholders (52%) were most likely to prefer a 2-year timescale for the introduction of a maximum 

end of life age of 12 years, significantly higher than the percentage of the public who chose this 

timescale (29%).  The 2-year timescale was also the clear preference of those identifying as a 

Hackney Carriage and private hire driver (48% and 63% respectively).  Residents were found to be 

evenly split between the 1-year (28%) and 2-year (28%) timescale. 

 

Please write in any comments: 

 

“To operators running older vehicles, the timescale will need to be much longer, with an allowance if changing 

maybe 1 vehicle per year. Otherwise financially it will break the business. I do not agree that there should be a 

maximum age as stated before, so my answer to the previous question is not what I think, but a longer option 

is not available. If it has to be done it should be over 5 years.” 

 

“If they do then they need to give people enough time to buy new replacement vehicles.” 

 

“If really deemed necessary - but sounds like its already been agreed on.” 

 

“It ideally would be as soon as possible.” 

  

17% 

25% 

12% 

33% 

13% 

6 months 1 year 18 months 2 years Not applicable

If the Council adopt a maximum (end of working life) age of 12 years for petrol 
and diesel Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles, what do you think would 

be a suitable timescale for introduction for current licensed vehicles? 

Page 61



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

13 | P a g e  
 

To help reduce the Carbon Footprint and improve Air Quality in the Winchester district, the Council 

wishes to encourage the licensing of Electric or Hybrid vehicles.   

 

 
The majority favoured the introduction of incentives in the new policy with more than two thirds in 

agreement (71%).  However, a fifth did not agree with the proposal and a tenth (11%) did not know. 

 

Those responding to the public consultation (75%) were significantly more likely to advocate the 

licensing of electric or hybrid vehicles compared to stakeholders (58%), while the majority of both 

groups agreed.  

 

Although no other significant differences were found, this action was broadly supported by all 

groups who participated in the research. 

 

Please write in any comments: 

 
“I do not know enough about electric vehicles, or hybrids, to really give a good answer, but from the pollution 

angle it would be a good move to make.” 

 

“Only electric vehicles. Hybrids are going to be phased out anyway. The issue is that there are no 6-7-8 seater 

electric vehicles to buy. Simply because the batteries take up so much room. This will change, but not soon. 

Please note the new govt announcement in hybrid vehicles. They now have an end life the same as petrol and 

diesel.” 

 

“I think that would be a good idea for shorter trips as they do not tend to go that far on their batteries.” 

 

“More charging points needed.” 

 

“the most efficient hybrid cars are Toyota Prius however unless you own or driven a hybrid or electric cars of 

this model you will find they struggle to go up hill especially the automatic models as they lack power and 

torque. Yes they are environmentally friendly yes they can be kept on while you wait for your customers 

because there are no emissions however they have no appeal whatsoever.” 

  

71% 

18% 

11% 

Should the Council introduce incentives to encourage Electric or Hybrid vehicles? 

Yes

No

Don't know

Page 62



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

14 | P a g e  
 

It is proposed that Electric or Hybrid vehicles, when licensed for the first time, can be up to 8 years 

of age.   

 

 
 

Respondents were more likely to agree the Council should maintain the same approach as other 

licensed vehicles when licensing electric or hybrid vehicles for the first time – with three-fifths (61%) 

of this opinion. More than a third (37%) did feel that the Council should allow a vehicle age of 8 

years or under when licensing for the first time to incentivise the use of more environmentally 

friendly vehicles and 1% suggested another age range. 

 

Both stakeholders and the public were most likely to believe the age of electric or hybrid vehicles 

when licensed for the first time should be kept the same as all other licensed vehicles. However, the 

public (65%) were more likely to take this stance than stakeholders (48%).  

 

  

37% 

61% 

1% 

8 years or under Keep it the same as all other
licensed vehicles

Other

To incentivise the use of Electric or Hybrid Vehicles, when licensed for the first time, 
what age should the Council allow? 

Page 63



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

15 | P a g e  
 

It is also proposed to increase the maximum end of life age to 15 years. 

 
 

Similar findings were found amongst respondents when considering the maximum end of life age 

the Council should allow in order to incentivise the use of electric or hybrid vehicles.  Two-thirds felt 

the maximum end of life age the Council should allow should be kept the same as all other licensed 

vehicles with more than a quarter (28%) in agreement the maximum end of life age should be 

increased to 15 years.  Just 4% suggested another timeframe for this proposed change to the policy. 

 

Three-quarters (75%) of respondents participating in the public consultation believed the maximum 

end of life age should be kept the same as all other licensed vehicles, significantly higher than 

stakeholders who chose this option (37%).  Stakeholders (55%) were more likely to accept the 

proposal to increase the maximum end of life age to 15 years than the public (22%). 

 

Both Hackney Carriage (55%) and Private Hire drivers (59%) were more inclined to back the proposal 

than local residents (21%), those who work in Winchester (31%) and those visiting Winchester (24%).  

 

If other, please specify: 

 

“Only have extended for fully electric as the emissions for hybrids will creep up over the years” 

 

“I think you start of by allowing 12 years for first vehicle, then 11 years for the 2nd, 10 years for the 3
rd

.” 

 

“There should be nothing imposed on that because operators will naturally with the laws of economics change 

their vehicles when necessary.” 

 

“I don't think we understand the technology of these. They are only eco-friendly if people fill them up with fuel 

as well. I worry about the battery-operated cars.” 

 

 

 

 

28% 

68% 

4% 

Increase the maximum end of life
age to 15 years

Keep it the same as all other
licensed vehicles

Other

To incentivise the use of Electric or Hybrid vehicles, what maximum end of life age 
should the council allow? 

Page 64



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

16 | P a g e  
 

In striving to improve air quality and responding to the climate emergency, respondents were asked 

if they agree that by 1st January 2023 all currently licensed vehicles must be replaced if the vehicle’s 

date of registration is before 1st September 2015.  It was clarified this date is intended to ensure 

that by 1st January 2023 all licensed vehicles meet, as a minimum, Euro 5 vehicle emissions 

standards. 

 

 
Respondents were divided on this aspect with just under half in agreement with the proposal (45%) 

and virtually the same percentage (44%) of the opinion that improved omissions should not be a 

reason for making drivers change their vehicles at all.  Around a tenth (11%) thought that vehicles 

should be replaced before 1st January 2022. 

 

With opinion divided and no clear majority, few significant differences could be drawn from the 

results. However, Private Hire drivers (52%) and Private Hire Operators (53%) were more likely to 

agree that vehicles should be replaced before 1st January 2023. 

 

  

45% 

11% 

44% 

In striving to improve air quality and responding to the climate emergency, do you 
agree that by 1st January 2023 all currently licenced vehicles must be replaced if the 

vehicle’s date of registration is before 1st September 2015. 

Yes. I agree they should be replaced before 1st
January 2023

No, these vehicles should be replaced earlier,
before 1st January 2022

No. I don’t agree that improved emissions 
should be a reason for making the drivers 
change their vehicles at all 

Page 65



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

17 | P a g e  
 

Public Safety 

 

In the interest of public safety and the safety of licensed drivers, it is proposed that all licensed 

vehicles will have CCTV installed. 

 

 
The majority of respondents, overall, felt this was a positive proposal for the new licensing policy.  

More than two-thirds (71%) agreed with this action whilst nearly a fifth (18%) did not.  Around a 

tenth (11%) said they did not know. 

 

Around 9 in every 10 respondents participating in the public consultation felt that all vehicles should 

have CCTV installed, significantly higher than stakeholders (42%).  Furthermore, stakeholders were 

divided by this proposal (42% yes vs 45% no). 

 

Hackney Carriage drivers (55%) were more likely to approve of the proposal compared with private 

hire drivers (26%) with strong agreement from residents (87%), people who work in Winchester 

(73%) and visitors to the city (87%). 

 

If no/don’t know, please specify: 

 

“Must not have sound due to confidential conversations including phone meetings etc made with customers 

while in the car also customers talk to you confidentially which you don’t talk about outside to car.” 

 

“There needs to be different systems put into place before these things are installed, I feel data protection is far 

more important and safeguarding my personal privacy.” 

 

“I feel it could distract the driver which is not to be encouraged.” 

 

“It depends whether it's installed for the passenger or driver so whether it's to check on the drivers driving skills 

or whether it's to keep an eye on passengers or both?” 

 

71% 

18% 

11% 

Should all Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles have CCTV installed? 

Yes

No

Don't know

Page 66



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

18 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Further to this, more than two-thirds (69%) of those who agreed that all Hackney Carriages and 

Private Hire vehicles should have CCTV installed thought that cameras should record both inside and 

outside of the vehicle.  A fifth (18%) thought that cameras should be installed on the inside only and 

13% said they did not know. 

 

More than three quarters (76%) of the public agreed that CCTV should be installed both inside and 

outside of vehicles, significantly higher than stakeholders (44%).  The majority of Winchester 

residents (72%), workers (69%) and visitors (68%) backed the proposal and provided significantly 

higher levels of agreement than Hackney Carriage drivers (52%) and Private Hire drivers (30%).  

 

Please write in any comments: 

 

“CCTV protects drivers, customers, road safety and the police in helping protect crime.” 

 

“They should do it as a recommendation rather than a mandatory.” 

 

“It's a good idea for the safety of the occupants and also for the driver with having it recording outside as well.” 

 

“I don’t agree with inside recording for my particular work because of my clients but outside recording in the 

event of an accident would be ok. As already stated, should be a choice only.” 

 

“I drive a truck and have cameras on the inside and out, and they are useful to have, so they should have them 

both (inside and out) on taxis. 

 

“If the cost is not great then they should do to help the drivers out.” 

 

“They may have drunk and disorder people in the taxi so it would protect them.” 

 

“I do not see the point of them being on the outside of the vehicle, so the inside only.” 

 

  

69% 

18% 

13% 

If you agree that all Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles should have CCTV 
installed, do you agree that the cameras should record both inside and outside the 

vehicle? 

Inside and Outside

Inside Only

Don’t know 

Page 67



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

19 | P a g e  
 

The Council also propose that all Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles will have a contactless 

card payment facility for passengers. 

 

 
The vast majority agreed with the proposal that Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles should 

have a contactless card payment facility for passengers.  More than 8 in every 10 thought this facility 

should be installed in all vehicles with a tenth (10%) in disagreement. A small percentage said they 

did not know (7%). 

 

This proposal was particularly appealing to the public with 9 in ever 10 in favour of this action. There 

was significantly lower levels of agreement amongst stakeholders with less than half in favour of 

installing this facility in Hackney carriages and Private Hire vehicles.  

 

Less than half (42%) of those who identified as a Hackney Carriage driver agreed with this proposal 

with slightly higher levels of agreement recorded amongst private hire drivers (56%).  The vast 

majority of Winchester residents (88%), workers (81%) and visitors to the city (87%) agreed that all 

vehicles should be equipped with this facility. 

 

Please write in any comments: 

 

“I think the facility would be good, but not all people like to use contactless so if it is alongside cash payments 

then yes, not if it is instead of.” 

 

“In this day and age contact less should be available. With viruses becoming dangerous.” 

 

“All drivers under the age of 60 should. The older generation who have trouble with electronics should not have 

to.” 

 

“No there are fees that go along with card payments and this will also fall on drive missing out on profit again 

for the driver if some drivers want to take card and they get more work for it good to them but should not be 

compulsory.” 

 

83% 

10% 

7% 

Should all Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles have a contactless card 
payment facility available? 

Yes

No

Don't know

Page 68



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

20 | P a g e  
 

To improve public safety, the Council proposes that all Private Hire vehicles must display permanent 

Winchester City Council approved door signs; these will include their individual vehicle identification 

number.  

 

 
 

A clear majority (84%) agreed that Private Hire vehicles must display permanent Winchester City 

Council approved door signs.  Less than a fifth (16%) said they did not agree with this addition to the 

new licensing policy. 

 

These findings were driven by extremely high levels of agreement from the public consultation with 

more than 9 in every 10 supporting the proposal.  Levels of agreement were significantly lower 

amongst stakeholders who were divided equally on this aspect of the policy (50% yes vs 50% no).  

 

Hackney Carriage drivers (75%) were very supportive of the proposed measure compared to private 

hire drivers (22%) who would be directly affected by this action.  More than 8 in every 10 

Winchester resident, worker and visitor agreed that Private Hire vehicles should have permanent 

Winchester City Council approved door signs.  

 

Please write in any comments: 

 

“I would say yes but only if other taxi firms outside of the Winchester area coming in are not penalised for not 

having the door sign on. What I mean is if a friend travels to see me from outside of the Winchester area using 

a taxi firm from where she is from, and uses the same firm to get back, will they be penalised in some way for 

not having the council approved door sign on.” 

 

“I think they should be permanent. Stop any moonlighting.” 

 

“If they want to sell the vehicle it makes it difficult to sell with something permanent on it.” 

 

“They should be permanent for every one’s benefit.” 

 

  

84% 

16% 

Do you agree that Private Hire vehicles should have permanent Winchester City 
Council approved door signs? 

Yes

No

Page 69



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

21 | P a g e  
 

It is also proposed Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles must have a permanently fixed rear 

identification plate (at present these can be magnetic, which can be easily removed or fall off). 

 

 
 

More than four-fifths (87%) also agreed with this action with 13% in opposition to the proposal. 

 

Almost all respondents who participated in the public consultation (97%) agreed that Hackney 

Carriages and Private Hire vehicles must have a permanently fixed rear identification plate compared 

to 47% of stakeholders. 

 

Hackney Carriage drivers were more likely to approve of the proposal than Private Hire drivers (58% 

vs 41%) although Private Hire Operators revealed a slim majority in favour of this action (53%).  The 

vast majority of residents (95%) supported this proposal. 

 

Please write in any comments: 

 

“If it enables people to identify local and licensed taxis, I feel this a successful way to achieve that.” 

 

“Then we know they are bona fide cabs” 

 

“Some vehicles are used for other purposes. i.e. continental holidays, camping trips. We do not need to be 

carrying a plate for non-fare paying use.” 

 

“Private Hire means selective customers from top managing directors to famous people - you don’t have signs 

on the side of S-Class Mercs turning up to functions - come on get realistic here. Tacky for the private hire cars.” 

 

“I guess it would depend, I would say yes as it is a better thing to have, but often drivers use the vehicles 

themselves as a private vehicle, so having the option to cover it up would be an idea as well.” 

 

“I thought they would have already been permanent, so that would be good.” 

 

  

87% 

13% 

Do you agree that all Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles must have a 
permanently fixed rear identification plate? 

Yes

No

Page 70



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

22 | P a g e  
 

Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles 

 

Currently all licensed wheelchair accessible vehicles must be side loading.  Winchester City Council is 

proposing to change this and give drivers the choice to use either rear loading wheelchair accessible 

vehicles, or side loading vehicles, or both. Rear loading vehicles are much smaller, lower, and easier 

to load a wheelchair. They are also more flexible for dropping off on roads with side loading 

restrictions, such as narrow roads and hedgerows. In addition, the cost to purchase will be 

considerably less to the driver than the current side loading vehicles.  Predominantly, these smaller 

vehicles will also assist in reducing the carbon footprint and improve air quality in the Winchester 

District.  

 

  
 

More than 8 in every 10 respondents thought the Council should allow wheelchair accessible 

vehicles to be side and/or rear loading.  Less than a tenth (8%) felt this aspect of the proposal should 

not be introduced and a further tenth (9%) did not know. 

 

Support to allow wheelchair accessible vehicles to be side and/or rear loading was supported by the 

majority of the public (87%) and stakeholders (69%), although support amongst the public was 

significantly higher.  

 

There was broad support across all groups of respondents; slightly higher levels were found amongst 

Hackney Carriage drivers compared to Private Hire drivers (70% vs 63% respectively).  More than 8 in 

every 10 residents and visitors favoured the proposal along with three quarters of those who work in 

the city (75%).  

 

Please write in any comments: 

 

“It might limit it for some people if they just have one or the other so I think having both would be a good idea.” 

 

“I think the rear loading are a lot easier from my experience when my husband was in quite a large 

wheelchair.” 

83% 

8% 

9% 

Should the Council allow wheelchair accessible vehicles to be side and/or rear 
loading? 

Yes

No

Don't know

Page 71



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

23 | P a g e  
 

Driver Training 

 

Some Councils require all licensed drivers to take formal training such as a BTEC Level 2 Certificate in 

the Introduction to the Role of the Professional Taxi & Private Hire Driver. 

 

 
 

Nearly four-fifths (59%) thought that existing taxi Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers should 

have to complete additional training; nearly a third (30%) did not and a tenth (11%) did not know.  

 

Respondents were more amenable to new applicants having to complete additional training such as 

a BTEC Level 2 Professional Taxi & Private Hire Driver prior to becoming a driver with nearly 8 in 

every 10 in agreement. Around a sixth (14%) of respondents did not agree and 7% did not know.  

 

The majority of both stakeholders (65%) and the general public (82%) agreed that new applicants 

applying to become a licensed driver should complete training such as a BTEC Level 2 Professional 

Taxi & Private Hire Driver prior to becoming a driver. 

 

When considering existing drivers, support dropped amongst both groups, however the majority of 

the public agreed with this aspect of the proposal.  The majority of stakeholders were against 

existing drivers having to complete training with only a fifth (19%) in agreement. 

 

Please give reasons for your answers: 

 

“No harm as long as it is not overly expensive for them, but surely someone with 25 years’ experience is 

resistant to going onto additional courses.” 

 

“It would be a good way to check that drivers are behaving in an appropriate way and to allow them to weed 

out any bad habits.” 

 

“I think it will improve the service and stop just anyone becoming a taxi driver.” 

79% 

59% 

14% 

30% 

7% 

11% 

Do you think new applicants applying to become a
licensed driver should complete training such as a

BTEC Level 2 Professional Taxi & Private Hire Driver
prior to becoming a driver?

Do you think existing taxi and Private Hire drivers
should have to complete additional training such as

a BTEC Level 2 Professional Taxi & Private Hire
Driver?

Yes No Don't know

Page 72



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

24 | P a g e  
 

Qualitative Findings (Focus Group) 

 

Vehicle appearance 

While there was a collective agreement regarding the value of uniformity of licensed vehicles within 
Winchester, there was strong resistance to the proposal of both ‘wrapped’ vehicles and the 
suggested colour palette. 
 
The demonstrable resistance to wrapped vehicles was motivated by three prominent factors:  
 

1) Permanence of the process 
2) Maintenance  
3) Previous preference for silver cars 

 
While drivers recognised a vehicle wrap is a semi-permanent process, they also considered it to be 
process “which you can’t just put on and take off each day, can you?  That is the problem”. 
 
Additional feedback referenced that the maintenance of wrapped vehicles, citing the durability of 
the vinyl, explaining, “when it’s damaged, you have to replace all of it, or at the very least, a full 
panel.  You can’t just remedy the damage like traditional paintwork”. 
 
Cost appeared to be a significant influence and permeated many of the views shared, including 
maintenance and any initial investment to wrap vehicles; “I am presuming drivers and owners are 
liable for the cost of this suggested process”? 
 

“Has anyone made any calculations about what this would cost, either to an owner 
driver or a fleet?  It seems very easy to say with no awareness of the cost 

implications”. 
 
The overarching challenge to the proposal was identified as a previous agreement, by drivers, to 
subscribe to an idea of employing silver cars.  It was considered by a significant majority to offer the 
suggested benefits of the wrapped vehicle proposal, without, what drivers perceived to be the 
weaknesses, and associated costs.   
 
Generally, silver vehicles were considered readily available to drivers, durable in terms of colour for 
“wear and tear” and “It means when a driver isn’t working, and it reverts bac to a family car, you 
are not stuck with a car that is wrapped in purple vinyl”. 
 
Supporting this was a contribution from drivers of executive vehicles with one citing; “I have clients 
were discretion and luxury is valued, and a high-end executive vehicle is a commodity.  When that 
is suddenly wrapped in bright colours, it undermines my business”. 
 
The final observation, again, both in support of silver cars and against that of wrapping is the idea of 
vehicle safety when not in use;  
 

“If we drive silver cars, nobody is to know when you are not on duty, but when it is sat 
there in a brightly coloured wrap, it is easy to identify as a taxi, and prone to 

vandalism and damage.  It happens more than you would think; broken windows, 
smashed wing mirrors or a scratch down the side”. 

 

Page 73



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

25 | P a g e  
 

When discussing the proposed changes and the previous support for a uniform car colour, it 
introduced an idea of mistrust among divers (and owners); “This feels like the thin end of the wedge 
to me.  What happens after this, we agree to this and then who knows what else is brought in”? 
 
When asked to rationalise the concern and consider anything to indicate this view, the response 
once more reverted to the previous agreement to utilise silver vehicles and an observation regarding 
the changes in policy in Guildford (Borough Council);  
 

“Well, silver vehicles for one.  We had already said yes to this, and that was a 
compromise on our part.  It didn’t happen and now we have skipped several steps and 

are discussing semi-permanent vehicles wraps in a colour of the council’s choosing”. 
 

“There was no support in Guildford from the drivers to go down the route of turquoise 
coloured cars.  Problem is, you ask the public about any of this, they are going to say 

yes, because it is easy to say yes then a council use it as a green to bring in these 
things”.  

 

 

Vehicle age & type 

The dominant response to the proposed adjustment of vehicle ages was one of resistance.  The 
proposal, which would see Petrol and diesel Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles when 
licensed for the first time can be up to 4 years old, as opposed to three and fives years respectively 
was considered to be “mixing Private Hire and Hackney Carriages too much”. 
 
There was little pushback observed in relation to the age of the vehicles being changed (from the 
date of first registration) but rather the objection was centred on the “lack of separation” between 
the different provision;  
 

“Private Hire and Hackney [Carriages] have always been kept separate, when you 
start putting them together you deregulate taxi’s further, basically, making them one 

and the same and you lose some of the benefits of being a Private Hire”. 

When encouraged to discuss, for example, the ‘benefits of being a Private Hire’ and how the 
proposed change undermines this, it was considered the albeit “slight” revision to vehicle age may 
have implications from a cost perspective but were also not considered “logical”; 

“We have 370 cars and 70% of them are Mercedes. We go for lower mileage, better 
condition cars, if we can take lower mileage and still have 5 years grace it’s better 
from a customer’s point of view because they are in nicer vehicle. If it’s 3 years for 

example and I buy a 90,000-mile used vehicle versus if I buy a 5 year one and it’s 
40,000 miles, then the older, lower mileage car is more reliable. None of these cars are 

less than £15,000 each, that cost goes up proportionally as the car is younger.  Once 
again, it doesn’t make any sense”. 

When asked to consider the proposal from a Hackney Carriage position, there were similar 
observations regarding cost;  

“There should be a separation between the two vehicles.  When you are a Hackney 
driver, especially a full-time Hackney driver, so it’s your chosen career, you expect to 
spend a certain amount of money on your vehicle.  It shows you are a serious driver 

Page 74



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

26 | P a g e  
 

and serious about your profession.  Blurring the lines between the two would probably 
invite more Private Hire drivers to consider Hackney’s”. 

The group generated a practical consideration in response to the proposal which related to not 
solely vehicle cost but availability;  

“I run big vehicles so the younger they are they cost a lot more.  A lot of them were 
leased for three years so they are available now after coming off a three-year lease 

which means there is a lot more choice of four and five-year-old vehicles.  It is not 
something you can talk us into if there is a choice”. 

 The discussion concluded with a broad agreement from participants to the statement; “You guys 
are happy with 3 years and we’re happy with 5 years.  End of”.  

 
When asked to reflect on the proposal to introduce an ‘end of working life’ age for licensed vehicles 
in Winchester, it was considered a high-level proposal which did not sufficiently address the diversity 
of vehicles currently licensed and their primary use;  
 

“I’m running a private car, mainly six seaters and eight seaters, or nine and seven, 
however you want to look at it.  I do exclusively school runs, I don’t have huge mileage 
and all of my cars are over 10 years old.  Some haven’t done 100,000 miles yet, there’s 

no justification whatsoever to change those cars. They’ll run for another 10 but that 
doesn’t seem to be thought about in this proposal”. 

Additionally, the rationale for the proposal was interrogated and was observed to generate a 
number of questions as to why the proposal was being considered;  

“It’s worked as it is, for the last 30 years I’ve been here. Why change something that 
isn’t broken? The majority of the guys that have the older cars tend to look after 

them”.  

“Why have an end of life if you have a vehicle that is perfectly serviceable”?  

In the interest of balance, there was some discussion within the group to attempt to understand the 
driver for the proposed revision, which included a potential mechanism for managing the number of 
vehicles which have operated as licensed vehicles;  

“I think the fundamental problem is that for example, there are 2000 two-year-old 
vehicles in circulation, and 2000 three-year-old vehicles in circulation.  When the 

vehicle is coming to the end of its life, what does the owner do? Sells it to another taxi 
driver.  This might be a way of stopping that circulation of vehicles by introducing a 

point you can’t go past in terms of age”? 

While there was a concession that this may support the management of vehicle ages in circulation, it 
did not manage the number of vehicles in circulation, which was perceived as a more significant 
challenge;  

“It’s not changing the number of vehicles on the road; it’s just getting rid of an old car 
for a newer car. This feels like less of a problem than the volume of licensed cars on 

the road to my mind”. 

The group participants were asked to generate and discuss possible solutions or proposals, based on 
their experiences which may be effective.  In response, there were a number of suggestions which 
attempted to incorporate a degree of flexibility to the proposal;  

Page 75



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

27 | P a g e  
 

“Don’t put an end of life limit on the car when it’s with the same owner.  May be 
introduce the end of life when the car is changing hands, but if you have the same 

owner that has invested and maintained that car, allow them to continue”. 
  

“What could be proposed is as long as the vehicle passes its emissions on a yearly 
basis, why not carry on?  That way, if it is safe and efficient it can be kept in service, 

but you have a way of monitoring that”.  

   

 

Hybrid & Electric vehicles 

When exploring the proposal relating to Carbon Footprint and Air Quality in the Winchester district 
the response was overwhelmingly concerned with the current infrastructure to support electric 
vehicles. 
 
While there was a demonstrable understanding of the value of electric and hybrid vehicles and an 
apparent concession this was likely the direction of travel, the collective discussion identified there 
were several stages of change required first;  
 

“I can see everything going the way of electric [vehicles] in time, but we are so far off 
that at the moment.  The technology is too new, too expensive and we don’t have the 

charging capacity for them at the moment”. 
 

“Winchester Council don’t have charging point in their ranks at the moment, do they?  
I have got seventy cars, if my fleet are working, where are they going to make space 

to park and charge vehicles”? 
 

While there appeared to be an understanding that environmentally sounder vehicles will increase in 
use; “We will see more hybrids, but more likely just jump to electric in the end when the cost 
comes down”, there was some concern that the investment in infrastructure required to support 
this change will be displaced to licensed vehicle drivers;  
 

“As an idea, yeah great, encourage more electric vehicles.  I don’t think the current 
cost is going to get more people driving to any great level, even if you relax the age 
and working life restrictions, they are just too expensive.  My concern is the cost to 

install all of the charging points, how much will that be, who will pay for it, and are 
you squeezing drivers of petrol and diesels to the point they have to buy electric”? 

 

Cameras 

There was a broad level of support for the introduction of cameras into licensed vehicles, with the 
caveats being cost and GDPR compliance.  As a concept, almost unanimously drivers considered the 
benefits of having a camera as it was considered “to stop so many problems.  You get drivers 
accused of so much and a camera would either prevent that, or clear it up”. 
 

While the rumoured cost was considered prohibitive at £785.00, there was also no way for the 
group to very this quantum and it seemed rooted in an understanding of introducing a similar 
system to licensed vehicles in Southampton; “£785 for each vehicle?, I’m sorry but there isn’t 
enough money in the job to do it”. 

Page 76



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

28 | P a g e  
 

Additionally, the Southampton concept was suggested as incorporating a “70% discount to drivers 
when the system was introduced”.  While the group were not fluent in all the revisions in 
Southampton, there was a suggestion that to understand this model or elsewhere in the UK the 
change has occurred and case-study the process in the interest in learning;  

 
“Just let Southampton play out, learn from it and then take a view on whether we can 

use something similar”. 
 
While support for the concept remained consistent, the process in Southampton appeared to 
dominate the level of support the change would garner in Winchester and was the catalyst for 
considering GDPR and the capacity to turn the feature off;  
 

“In Southampton [the council] has been prosecuted by their own drivers because 
legally you are not allowed to record someone, especially if it is audio and video”. 

 
“I had a car, I had no CCTV in the car, I just had a sticker to scare customers and a lady 

got in, saw the sticker and said ‘no I don’t want to get in this car, you’ve got CCTV”.  

“I use my car for private use as well, I’ve got my family and kids in there. I don’t want 
to be filmed 24/7.  I don’t mind having the camera in, as long as we have the option to 

turn it off when we’re not working”. 

“What about some sort of panic button, when you can press it to turn it on if you have 
cause, but otherwise, it stays off”? 

The final contribution relating to the introduction of CCTV was a reflective one, suggesting continued 
support as a concept but that more information was required to make an informed decision;  

“I see the positives, but what is the position on data protection and cost first”? 

 

Contactless payment  

The message was mixed in relation to contactless payments, and similar to the suggestion of ‘end of 
life’ vehicles ages, it was not particularly considerate of all licensed vehicle services.  For example, 
those vehicles which operate almost exclusively on school runs would be encouraged to incur the 
cost of the system, “with probably no benefit to them or their customers”. 
 
While the majority of drivers either supported the proposal or already operate a contactless 
payment system there were some able to acknowledge what they perceived as a nominal cost;  
 

“I don’t think it should be enforced but I’m in a win-win position.  When you’re sat in 
the rank, there’s loads of people that come to the car and ask if you take card.  For the 

amount of money, mine cost, about £25 and it takes every card and takes one point 
something percent. If it’s a £10 fare, it takes 20 pence”.   

 
“90% of drivers I think do this as a proper job and either have one or would get one 

and it doesn’t cost a lot.  The problem is, the executive or school runs; If you enforce it, 
for people like them in the villages that do only school runs, it wouldn’t make a 

difference to him, but it would make him spend money”. 
 

Page 77



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

29 | P a g e  
 

The only apparent outlier in terms of driver cost was captured in a comment about the cumulative 
effect of these small costs associated with contactless payments;  
 

“The issue is, if you enforce that, not everyone has the machines or contactless in their 
vehicles. Even if the machines don’t cost a lot or charge a lot per percentage, if it is 

there, most people have contactless cards so when you’re doing twenty or thirty jobs 
a day, seven days a week or five or six, that little bit adds up.  Why should we pay for 

the customers convenience, why can’t they”?   
 

 

Public safety (signage) 

There was an overwhelming rejection of the proposal to incorporate permanent signage onto 
licensed vehicles both for Private Hire and Hackney vehicles.  The reaction included that of a 
representative of 70 drivers which vehemently rejected the proposal following a private consultation 
with the drivers they represented;  
 

“I asked all 70 of my drivers if they supported this and not one of them said yes”. 
 
The strongest support was to sustain the magnetic signage currently in operation and provide 
additional scrutiny and enforcement of those which don’t uphold this.  The motivating factor was 
the permanence of the proposed signage and the restriction on being able to use the vehicle as a 
personal/ family one, in addition to a perception of vehicle safety; 
 

“It’s like the wrapping, when you are not working, you don’t want it identified as a 
taxi because it is prone to damage.  I once forgot to take my magnetic plating off once 

and my car was smashed in.  It cost a lot money to repair and was two days off the 
road not working”. 

 
I don’t want to drive a taxi when I am not working and out with the family, and I don’t 

want to advertise to people there is a taxi parked up when I am not sat in it”. 
 

The proposal was the catalyst for a level of negative feeling towards the council not observed when 
discussing previous proposals and the narrative elicited appeared to develop beyond the specific 
proposal and consider wider views of the authority;  
 

“The council are pretty out of touch with what’s going on, they’re trying to change 
things that are working perfectly well for the sake of it.  There isn’t a huge amount of 
respect for the way they operate and the way they liaise with both the Hackneys and 

the private cars. It’s not being negative, it’s being realistic.  This suggestion shows 
that”. 

 
“If there’s ten taxi drivers and one customer, they will listen to that one customer, 

that is how I feel about the council”. 
 

“Please don’t look at us like we are thirteen drivers, there are some people here that 
represent seventy drivers, another about 40 or 50.  We represent a significant number 

here today and nobody support this”. 
 
 

Page 78



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

30 | P a g e  
 

When asked to consider if there were revisions to the proposal which could make it more palatable 
to drivers of both Hackney’s and Private Hire, the sole response, uncontested was;  
 

“No.  Move on”. 
 

Wheelchair accessible vehicles 

There was a majority view among respondents that “side loading vehicles are easier than those at 
the back” and offered greater flexibility as “even without a dropped curb, with a side loading 
vehicle I can use a ramp”.  Additionally, it was considered;  

“If I am in queue at the rank and have rear access, if a customer comes in the 
wheelchair, there’s no drop curb, it’s dangerous”. 

The proposal opened significant discussion among the group which incorporated the cost of vehicles 
and resilience of vehicle types to carry a minimum number of passengers.  Of interest a number of 
Private Hire drivers acknowledged this proposal impacts on Hackney Carriages and therefore could 
not contribute to the discussion. 

In relation to cost, it was suggested a side loading vehicle costs circa £35k compared to a rear 
loading vehicle with was estimated to cost circa £15k and if policy was relaxed; “the market is going 
to be flooded with cheaper vehicles, even though they aren’t as useful, but if people can get away 
with pay fifteen grand for a rear loading car, they will.  Is that what the council want”? 

There was a view held among participants that the current, side-loading vehicles, typically more 
expensive to purchase also had capacity to the carry an additional number of passengers and that 
introducing cheaper, smaller, rear-loading vehicles will restrict groups travelling; 

“A problem with the smaller vehicles is the fact they are one chair and one passenger.  
Now when there’s two passengers, what happens then?  The large vehicles are 

currently three passengers and a wheelchair and the small is one and the wheelchair.  
At Christmas there are families out and three or four of them together. They want to 

get in a larger vehicle and be together, otherwise they have to get multiple cabs”.  
 
The discussion introduced once more the volume of licensed vehicles within Winchester and invited 
another idea of enforcement.  In this instance, ensuring drivers collect wheelchair passengers 
equitably;  
 

“I’ve said this to the council before, there’s a problem with drivers not picking up 
wheelchair passengers, I said take the age restriction off for wheelchair accessible 

vehicles and we’ll pick those customers up. I’m not going to pay £35,000 or £30,000 
for a car and pay for that vehicle.  I’ll employ a driver to drive on an hour basis, put a 

cheaper car on and transport the customers.  There’s another issue. There are no 
spaces on taxi ranks as it is, they all park in the car park and there’s more taxis than 

ranks. If they bring this in, what will happen”? 
  

“It’s going to worsen the footprint in Winchester; these existing drivers are going to 
keep their big vehicles and maybe have 2-4 extra vehicles on the rank.  What would 

the council rather have? The existing footprint or introducing this and increasing the 
footprint with more vehicles?  I can do six passengers plus a wheelchair.” 

 

Page 79



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

31 | P a g e  
 

In the interest of balance, one driver expressed, “It makes no odds to me if a passenger enters 
through the side or the back, but there still isn’t the rank space.  Where are you going to park 
these cars? You can’t build more ranks can you”? 
 

Driver Training  

The discussion which considered driver training generated a diffuse response across respondents.  
Approximately two thirds were in support of new drivers being subject to a form of additional 
training and testing with a third suggesting all drivers should be subject to specific training, 
“regardless of how many years in you have”. 
 
The overarching view of those believing existing drivers should not be subject to any additional 
testing/ training was predicated broadly on a belief that “I’ve done this job for 21 years, what is it 
going to teach me”?  Contrary to this was an opinion of “complacency” at times and “all drivers 
should have to train.  They think they are good drivers until they are put to the test”.  
 
There were suggestions to develop the proposal with some requiring specificity in the suggestion 
beyond the high-level suggestion of a BTEC qualification;  
 

“What training? Training for wheelchairs? Training for electric vehicles, training for 
other things? You’ve got to broaden it and be specific, you can’t just say no because 
you’ve been driving for 30 years but equally, the training cannot be generic because 

there is too much variation in the work we all do”. 
 

“A drivers CBC course would be better for new drivers and a refresher for others that 
think they are better than they are”.  

 
While the idea that drivers with significant/ many years’ experience should be exempt remained 
constant for some, there was once more a conversation that reflected the variation in licensed 
vehicle work.  For example, those concerned with exclusive school runs considered that the 
requirement for additional qualifications may be prohibitive to recruiting a workforce;  
 

“I’m doing school runs; most drivers are part-time.  It’s hard work getting drivers as it 
is to do tests and medicals, it would just put them off even more if this was 

introduced”. 
 

While there was diversity in the responses relating to the proposal there were two areas of 
discussion which were observed to penetrate all of the discussion.  The first was a requirement for 
further information and a need to drill-down into the detail of any suggested training before an 
informed response could be offered.  The second was a question relating the rationale behind the 
proposal;  
 

“Is this just a stealth way of reducing how many licensed drivers can be on the road? If 
it is, most of the other suggestions appear to encourage the number of vehicles so it is 

counterintuitive”. 
 

“If I go in my Peugeot and pass the wheelchair course, or whichever module it is.  If I 
then change it to Mercedes, do I have to do the course again? What are we doing, 

testing drivers or drivers and their cars”?   

 

  

Page 80



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

32 | P a g e  
 

Appendices 

Questionnaire 

 

Page 81



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

33 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

34 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

35 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 84



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

36 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

37 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 86



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

38 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

39 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

40 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

Page 89



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

41 | P a g e  
 

  

Page 90



Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Consultation 2020 

 

42 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Social & Market Strategic Research 
Wellington House 
108 Beverley Road 
Kingston-Upon-Hull 
HU3 1XA 
(01482) 211200 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

LR534 
LICENSING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: INTRODUCTION OF ‘PAVEMENT LICENCE’ POLICY UNDER 
THE BUSINESS AND PLANNING ACT 2020 
 
15 SEPTEMBER 2020 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Cllr Jackie Porter, Cabinet Member for Built 
Environment and Wellbeing  

Contact Officer:  Briony Appletree    Tel No: 01962 848 188  
Email bappletree@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

This report is to make Members aware of central Government’s introduction of 
Pavement Licences. These are a recently introduced, temporary permission for 
hospitality businesses to make provision for outdoor seating for customers in light of 
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, for which Local Authorities are responsible 
for administering and monitoring. 

This report also includes a new Pavement Licensing Policy, which formally sets out 
the process for administering applications for Pavement Licences under the 
Business and Planning Act 2020.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That members agree the implementation of the Pavement Licensing Policy in 

support of economic recovery and that applications for Pavement Licences 

are charged at the recommended rate of £100 

 

Page 93

Agenda Item 6

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=148
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=148


  LR534 
 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME 

1.1 Vibrant Local Economy 

1.2 By clearly outlining the process for businesses to obtain Pavement Licences, 
the Council will contribute to the essential post-lockdown recovery of the 
hospitality industry. Outdoor, ‘al-fresco’ style dining contributes to ensuring 
that the city, market towns and rural communities have attractive visitor offer. 

1.3 Living Well 

1.4 Outdoor furniture licensed by Pavement Licences can contribute to the 
enhancement of open spaces and public areas, encouraging residents and 
visitors to enjoy the outdoors whilst dining.  

1.5 Your Services, Your Voice 

1.6 The implementation of a Pavement Licensing Policy ensures that the 
application and determination processes for Pavement Licences are open and 
transparent.  

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 Application fees for Pavement Licences are capped at a maximum of £100, 
under section 2(1)(c) of the Business and Planning Act 2020. It has been 
decided to require the maximum permitted application fee of £100 for 
applications. 

2.2 The application fee will fully cover the cost of administrating any application, 
including the consultation and determination periods. However, this fee will 
not necessarily cover costs incurred for any enforcement action taken; i.e. 
sending notices and conducting compliance checks.   

2.3 In circumstances where the City Council is required to take action to remedy 
breaches of the Licence and/or its conditions, the cost of such action will be 
recovered from the Licensee in the form of a £100 payment.  

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 The Business and Planning Act 2020 (the 2020 Act) requires that the local 
authority administer pavement licences and as such it is a service that must 
be provided as a statutory and not a discretionary function.  

3.2 The 2020 Act introduces a new streamlined licensing regime to temporarily 
facilitate eating and drinking on the highway adjacent to a relevant premises. 
In essence, this replaces relevant elements of the Licensing Act 2003 – 
especially provisions around off sales and licence variations street café 
licences to place furniture on the highway under the Highways Act 1980, The 

Page 94



  LR534 
 
 

 

 

2020 Act also temporarily suspends the requirement for planning permission 
as may have previously been required under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

3.3 The intent of the 2020 Act is to be permissive and consequently introduces a 
streamlined and more cost-effective route for businesses with deemed 
consent provisions. Subsequently if the council does not determine the 
application before the end of the determination period (i.e. 7 working days 
from the day after the application is made), the licence is deemed to have 
been granted (subject to any relevant conditions). Therefore the city council 
must ensure it considers, consults and makes a decision on all applications 
within this time frame. The 2020 Act licencing does not permit the placement 
of tables and chairs in spaces or in areas which considered by the city council 
to be unsafe or not suited to such use as may result in an impact on public 
health and safety and a public. 

3.4 In order to support the economic recovery of the local hospitality trade, the 
city council implemented the application process for Pavement Licences was 
implemented as soon as practicable after the legislation came into force.  

3.5 The administration of Pavement Licences is a non-executive function (outside 
the scope of Cabinet) in accordance with section 8 of the Business and 
Planning Act 2020.  

3.6 As a matter of best practice the policy clearly sets out how applications will be 
dealt with, consultation requirements and timeframes.  

3.7 There is no right of appeal for the refusal or revocation of a Pavement 
Licence. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The Licensing team will manage any requests for Pavement Licences within 
existing resources.  

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Should the Pavement Licence be in respect of a City Council property, 
colleagues from Estates will be consulted internally.   

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 Section 8 of the Business and Planning Act 2020 shows that the legislative 
functions in relation to Pavement Licences are not to be the responsibility of 
an authority’s executive, and that there is no need for formal consultation. 
However, in order to ensure best implementation relevant bodies and 
authorities have been consulted informally as detailed below. 

6.2 The Business and Planning Act 2020 prescribes the process for administering 
applications for Pavement Licences, and undertaking enforcement action. 

Page 95



  LR534 
 
 

 

 

Therefore, no public consultation has taken place on those elements of the 
policy which merely replicate the legislation.  

6.3 Hampshire County Council, as Highways Authority, and Winchester City 
Council’s Environmental Health Team have been consulted on elements of 
the policy, namely the local conditions applied to licences which are 
granted/deemed granted.  

6.4 The final draft of the policy was put to both the Chair of the Licensing and 
Regulation Committee and the Cabinet Member for Built Environment and 
Wellbeing for their comments before any applications were administered 
under the policy. 

6.5 No consultation has been undertaken with local residents or County 
Councillors.  

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 Encouraging local people to visit local hospitality venues in our city centre and 
market towns supports the principals of local sustainability. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT  

8.1 Please see Appendix 2. 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 Please see Appendix 3.  

 

RISK MANAGEMENT  
 

Risk Mitigation Opportunities 

Property N/A 
 

 

Community Support The Council 
acknowledges the need 
for the hospitality industry 
to recover following the 
COVID-19 lockdown, and 
therefore will grant 
Pavement Licences 
wherever possible. 

 

Timescales In the event that the 
Council fails to respond to 
an application within the 
statutory determination 
period, the licence could 
be ‘deemed granted’ 

 

Page 96

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=148
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=148


  LR534 
 
 

 

 

regardless of the suitability 
of the proposal. 

Project capacity N/A  

Financial / VfM N/A  

Legal The Policy could be 

challenged by Judicial 

Review, but as the 

Council’s decision-making 

process is believed to be 
lawful, a challenge is 
considered to be unlikely. 

 

Innovation N/A  

Reputation N/A The Council could seek to 
highlight and publicise the 
engagement work it has 
undertaken in relation to 
assisting businesses with 
obtaining Pavement 
Licences.  

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

10 Background 

10.1 Permission to place furniture or other objects on the highway has previously 
been obtained under S115(E) of the Highways Act 1980. Permission granted 
is in the form of a ‘Tables and Chairs Permit’, although the name of this 
permission varies across authorities. The procedure for obtaining a Tables 
and Chairs Permit is as follows:  

a) Application submitted to local authority, complete with fee of £225 (set 
 locally) and the following documentation:  

 (i) Site plan of the proposed area in which furniture will be placed.  

 (ii) Written consent to the proposal from any owners/occupiers of 
  premises adjoining the relevant section of the highway. These 
  persons are known as ‘frontagers.’ This consent must be  
  obtained by the applicant prior to the submission of any  
  application.  

 (iii) Proof of public liability insurance cover, minimum of £5,000,000. 

b) Once the application and relevant documents are received and 
 validated by the Council, the applicant must display a notice at the front 
 of the premises, with full details of the application made, for a period of 
 28 days. The notice must also specify how representations may be 
 made in respect of the application.  

Page 97



  LR534 
 
 

 

 

c)  The Council will contact Hampshire County Council as the highways 
 authority for their consent to the proposals.  

d) The Council will consider Hampshire County Council’s response, and 
 any representations received, in the determination of the application. In 
 the event that highways do not consent, a permit will not be granted. 

e) The application will be granted / refused by the Council within 7 days of 
 the 28 day consultation period ending. 

f) Any permit granted shall be valid for a period of 12 months, unless 
 surrendered/revoked.  

10.2 The Business and Planning Act 2020 received Royal Assent on 22 July 2020. 
The Act introduced a new, expedited process for obtaining permission to 
place furniture on the highway in the form of a Pavement Licence. 

10.3 The Act introduces a shorter consultation and determination period for 
applications, a maximum application fee and national conditions made by the 
Secretary of State. It also specifies that furniture can be used for both the 
service and consumption of food/drink, and that furniture must be removable 
i.e. not permanently fixed to the ground or any other structure.  

10.4 Pavement Licences issued under the Business and Planning Act 2020 cannot 
be valid for any later than 30 September 2021 (when the legislation ceases to 
have effect).  

10.5 There is no proposed refund to premises that already hold a Tables and 
Chairs Permit due to the short lived nature of the Pavement Licence 
provisions. 

 

11 New Policy 

11.1 To ensure that applications are dealt with in a fair and open way, and in 
accordance with the relevant legislation, Officers have produced a Pavement 
Licensing Policy as shown in Appendix 1.  

11.2 The Policy details the application, consultation and determination procedures 
as set out by the Business and Planning Act 2020; 

a) Application (electronic only) submitted to local authority, complete with 
 maximum application fee of £100 and the following documentation:  

 (i) Site plan of the proposed area in which furniture will be placed.  

 (ii) Written consent to the proposal from any owners/occupiers of 
  premises adjoining the relevant section of the highway. These 
  persons are known as ‘frontagers.’ This consent must be  

Page 98



  LR534 
 
 

 

 

  obtained by the applicant prior to the submission of any  
  application 

 (iii) Proof of public liability insurance cover, minimum of £5,000,000. 

 (iv) Proof of the applicant’s right to occupy the premises (e.g. a copy 
  of the lease) 

b) Once the application and relevant documents are submitted to the 
 Council, the applicant must display a notice at the front of the 
 premises, with full details of the application made, for a period of 7 
 days (not including bank holidays). The notice must also specify how 
 representations may be made in respect of the application. 

c) The Council will contact Hampshire County Council as the highways 
 authority for their consent to the proposals.  

d) The Council will notify relevant Ward Councillors of the proposals.  

e) The Council will notify Hampshire Constabulary’s Counter Terrorism 
 Unit of the proposals, in relation to managing risk around hostile 
 vehicle attacks.  

f) The Council will consider Hampshire County Council’s response, and 
 any representations received, in the determination of the application. 

g) The application will be granted, granted with amendments or refused 
 within 7 days of the 7 day consultation period ending. The Council’s 
 failure to respond within this time will result in the licence being 
 ‘deemed granted’ subject to conditions published on the Council’s 
 website.  

h) Any licence granted or deemed granted will be valid for a period of 12 
 months, or until 30 September 2021, whichever is soonest (unless 
 surrendered/revoked).  

11.3 The Policy also details the various grounds for refusal or revocation of a 
Pavement Licence, in accordance with the legislation.  

11.4 The Policy introduces local conditions which will be applied to all licences, 
whether granted or deemed granted. National conditions, specified by the 
Secretary of State, are also included and must be adhered to.  

 
12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

12.1 None. The legislation creates a new pavement licensing regime, the 
administration and monitoring of which is the responsibility of Local Authority. 

Page 99



  LR534 
 
 

 

 

12.2 There is a clear expectation that this licensing regime is implemented. Failure 
to implement will most likely result in action against the Council from local 
businesses that will be significantly impacted. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

None.   

Other Background Documents:- 

Guildford Borough Council - Draft Pavement Licensing Policy 

Portsmouth City Council – Draft Pavement Licensing Policy 

Local Government Association - ‘Licensing of outdoor drinking and dining’, brief 
guidance note 

NEXSTART – Fast Track Pavement Licences Advisory  

RNIB – Letter to licensing authorities regarding accessibility and pavement licences 

 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Pavement Licensing Policy 

Appendix 2 – Equality Impact Assessment 

Appendix 3 – Data Protection Impact Assessment 

 

Page 100



1 
 

 

 
PAVEMENT LICENSING POLICY 

 
1.0 Introduction 
  
The coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has affected the hospitality industry 
significantly, causing many to cease trading for several months and/or diversify the 
nature of their business.  
 
On 25 June 2020, the Government announced an urgent relaxation to planning and 
licensing laws to assist the hospitality industry with recovering from the COVID-19 
lockdown. The Business and Planning Act 2020 introduces a temporary fast-track 
process for these businesses to obtain permission, in the form of a ‘pavement 
licence’, from Winchester City Council for the placement of furniture on the pavement 
outside their premises. This will enable them to maximise their capacity whilst 
adhering to social distancing. The Business and Planning Act 2020 received Royal 
Assent on 22 July 2020. 
 
Currently, tables and chairs permissions are granted as Tables and Chairs Permits 
by Winchester City Council, with consent from Hampshire’s Highways Authority, 
under Part 7A of the Highways Act 1980. The process includes a 28 day consultation 
period and a fee of £225.  
 
The temporary measures under the Business and Planning Act 2020 place a cap on 
the application fee for businesses, and introduces a new consultation period of 10 
working days. This ensures that businesses can obtain licences in a timely and cost 
effective manner, aiding their financial recovery.  
 
2.0 Scope 
 
A pavement licence is a licence granted by the local authority, or deemed to have 
been granted, which allows the licence-holder to place removable furniture over 
certain highways adjacent to the premises in relation to which the application was 
made, for certain purposes.  
 
2.1 Eligible businesses 
 
Businesses that can apply for a licence include:- 
 
A business which uses (or proposes to use) premises for the sale of food or drink for 
consumption (on or off the premises) including but not limited to cafes, bars, 
restaurants, snack bars, coffee shops, and ice cream parlours; and Public houses, 
wine bars, and other drinking establishments,  
 

Page 101



2 
 

A licence permits the business to use furniture placed on the highway to sell or serve 
food or drink and/or allow it to be used by people for consumption of food or drink 
supplied from, or in connection with the use of the premises. 
 
2.2 Eligible locations  
 
Pavement Licences can be granted in respect of highways listed in section 115A(1) 
of the Highways Act 1980. These are generally footpaths restricted to pedestrians or 
are roads and places to which vehicles access is restricted or prohibited. Highways 
maintained by Network Rail or over the Crown land are exempt, and therefore a 
licence cannot be granted.  
 
Applications for locations which are not adjacent (i.e. adjoining or next to) the 
premises to which the application relates will not normally be considered. However, 
the Council may use its discretion to consider applications of this nature where it is 
appropriate.  
 
2.3 Type of furniture permitted  
 
The furniture which may be used is: 

 counters or stalls for selling or serving food or drink; 

 tables, counters or shelves on which food or drink can be placed; 

 chairs, benches or other forms of seating; and 

 umbrellas, barriers, heaters and other articles used in connection with the 
outdoor consumption of food or drink. 

 
The furniture must be removable (i.e. not permanently fixed to the ground or any 

other structure), and can be easily stored somewhere other than the highway outside 

of licensable hours. 

 

The style and type of furniture must be approved by the City Council. It will be 

considered whether the furniture is ‘in keeping’ with the local area.  

 

Please note that Advanced Warning Signs (A boards and other free standing signs) 

are not considered ‘furniture’ under the Business and Planning Act 2020, and 

therefore cannot be considered under this regime. Applicants intending to install 

Advanced Warning Signs outside their premises may be subject to enforcement 

action under the Highways Act 1980.  

 

The use of removable barriers (e.g. solid or rope barriers) to mark the boundary of 

the area used for furniture is highly encouraged by the City Council. Details of any 

barriers must be included on the application alongside details of furniture and other 

articles used in connection with the outdoor consumption of food or drink. 

 

2.4 Planning permission 
 
Once a licence is granted, or deemed to be granted, the applicant will also benefit 
from deemed planning permission to use the land for anything done pursuant to the 
licence while the licence is valid. 

Page 102



3 
 

3. Application 

3.1  Submission of the application 

An application for a Pavement Licence must be made to the Council (in an electronic 
format that the Council approves), and the following will be required to be submitted 
with the application:  

 a completed application form  

 the required fee of £100, paid by electronic means 

 a plan of the proposed area to be used for the furniture, including 
measurements of the premises, the width and depth of the area to be used, 
and the width of the highway. The proposed licensable area must be clearly 
shown with a red line or border. Plans do not need to be to scale, provided 
that the measurements are clear.  

 photos or brochures showing the proposed type and style of furniture 

(optional). 

 Proof of the applicant’s right to occupy the premises to which the application 

relates (e.g a copy of the lease). 

 proof of written consent from all owners and occupiers (including residents) of 

premises adjoining the highway on which the furniture is proposed to be 

placed. These persons are known as ‘frontagers.’ If the frontager is a 

company, then consent must be provided by an authorised officer of that 

company who should confirm that they are duly authorised to give consent. 

Where the applicant has received no response from a frontager in relation to 

their proposal, they must provide evidence to the Council that they have made 

efforts to obtain consent and/or engage with frontagers on the proposal. 

Omission of any of the above documents will invalidate the application.  

It is recommended that applicants also submit photographs of any existing damage 

to the relevant areas of the highway. This may be used in evidence should the 

Highways Authority seek to recover costs for the repair of damage caused by the 

use of removable furniture.  

3.2 Fees 

 

The fee for applying for a Pavement Licence under the Business and Planning Act 

2020 is set locally, but is capped at £100. The Council has determined that the fee 

for applications will be £100.  

 

Application fees must accompany the application in order for the application to be 

considered valid and for the consultation period to commence.  

 

The fee is an ‘application fee’ for the processing of the application. The fee will not 

be refunded if the application is withdrawn or refused, or if a licence is surrendered 

or revoked before expiration.  

Page 103



4 
 

3.3 Notice of intention 
 
An applicant for a Pavement Licence must on the day the application is made, fix a 
‘notice of intention’ to the premises so that the notice is readily visible to, and can be 
ready easily by, members of the public who are not on the premises. The notice 
must be in a format prescribed by the Council. Variations of this format will not be 
accepted and will invalidate the application.  
 
The notice must be secured and suitably weatherproofed so that it remains in place 
until the end of the public consultation period. Evidence of compliance with the 
requirement to display the notice must be supplied to the Council upon request.  
 
The notice must: 

 state the date on which the application was made; 

 state the statutory provisions under which the application is made; 

 state the address of the premises and the name of the business; 

 describe the proposed use of the furniture; 

 state the days and times applied for; 

 indicate that representations relating to the application may be made to the 
Council during the public consultation period and when that period comes to 
and end; 

 state details of the Council’s website and where the application and any 
accompanying material can be viewed during the consultation period 

 state the postal address and email address to which representations should 
be sent during the consultation period; and 

 state the end date of the consultation period (7 days, not including bank 
holidays, starting with the day after the application is submitted to the 
Council).  

 
A template notice is shown in Appendix 1.  
 
4.0 Consultation  
 
Applications are consulted upon for 7 days (not including bank holidays), starting on 
the day after the day on which a valid application was made to the Council.  
 
The Council will publish details of the application and supporting information on its 
website at https://www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing/tables-chairs  
 
The Council is required by law to consult with the Highways Authority. If the 
Highways Authority does not respond to the application within the consultation period 
then the Council may still consider the application. 
 
The Council will also notify relevant Ward Councillors, Parish Council(s) and 
Hampshire Constabulary’s South East Counter Terrorism Unit of the application for 
information.  
 
Members of the public can contact the Council to make representations in respect of 
the application. These must be received in writing either to 

Page 104

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing/tables-chairs


5 
 

licensing@winchester.gov.uk or Licensing Manager, City Offices, Colebrook Street, 
Winchester SO23 9LJ to arrive before the end of the consultation period.  
 
The Council must take into account representations received during the public 
consultation period and consider these when determining the application. 
Representations received outside of the public consultation period will not be 
considered in the determination of the application. 
 
5.0 Determination 
 
The following matters will be taking into account by the Council in considering the 
suitability of the proposed application: 
 

 public health and safety – for example, ensuring that users of the furniture are 
able to comply with the latest guidance on social distancing and any 
reasonable crowd management measures needed as a result of a licence 
being granted; 

 public amenity – will the use of the licence create nuisance to neighbouring 
occupiers by generating anti-social behaviour, excessive noise and litter, and; 

 accessibility -  taking a proportionate approach to considering the nature of 
the site in relation to which the application for a licence is made, taking 
account of: 
- any other temporary measures in place that may be relevant to the 

proposal, for example, the reallocation of road space. This could include 
pedestrianised streets and any subsequent reallocation of this space to 
vehicles.  

- whether there are any other permanent street furniture or structures in 
place on the footway that already reduce access (i.e. benches, bollards 
and hostile vehicle mitigation barriers); 

- the impact on access and egress to the premises; 
- the impact on neighbouring premises; 
- the recommended minimum footway widths and distances required for 

access by mobility impaired and visually impaired people as set out in 
section 3.1 of the Department for Transport’s Inclusive Mobility guidance, 
and; 

- other users of the space, for example, if there are high levels of pedestrian 
or cycle traffic. 

 whether the proposed activities would have one or more of the following 
effects;  
- preventing traffic, other than vehicular traffic, from; 

(i) entering the relevant highway at a place where such traffic could 
 otherwise enter it (ignoring any pedestrian planning order or traffic 
 order made in relation to the highway, 
(ii) passing along the relevant highway, or 
(iii) having normal access to premises adjoining the relevant highway 

- preventing any use of vehicles which is permitted by a pedestrian planning 
order or which is not prohibited by a traffic order,  

- preventing statutory undertakers having access to any apparatus of theirs 
under, in, on or over the highway, or 

Page 105

mailto:licensing@winchester.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/inclusive-mobility/inclusive-mobility


6 
 

- preventing the operator of an electronic communications code network 
having access to any electronic communications apparatus kept installed 
for the purposes of that network under, in, on or over the highway. 

 
Applicants are strongly advised to speak with neighbouring businesses and 
occupiers (whether considered frontagers or not) prior to applying to the Council for 
a Pavement Licence and take any issues around health and safety, nuisance and 
access into consideration as part of the proposal. 
 
5.1 Determination period 
 
Once a valid application is submitted to the Council, it has 14 days (not including 
bank holidays) from the day after the application is made to consult on and 
determine the application. This consists of 7 days for public consultation, and then a 
further 7 to consider and determine the application after the consultation period has 
ended.  
 
If the Council determines the application before the end of the determination period, 
the Council can: 

 grant the licence in respect of any or all of the purposes specified in the 
application, 

 grant the licence for some or all of the part of the highway specified in the 
application, 

 impose conditions on any licence granted, 

 refuse the application.  
 
If the local authority does not determine the application within the 7 day 
determination period, the application will be deemed to have been granted subject to 
any published local and national conditions.  
 
5.2 Approval of applications  
 
The Council may approve applications meeting the criteria specified within this 
Policy.  
 
On approving the application, the Council will issue a Pavement Licence to which 
conditions will be attached. The licence will also contain specific terms such as days 
and hours when furniture is permitted on the highway and the location of the furniture 
corresponding to the application. A site plan will be attached to the licence. 
 
A copy of the Council’s standard conditions will be attached to all Pavement 
Licences. These are listed in Appendix 2. Additional conditions may be attached to 
individual licences if the Council considers it appropriate.  
 
The Council will generally only permit furniture to be placed on the highway no later 
than the terminal hour for the sale of food / drink at the premises to which the 
application relates. Applications outside of these hours will assessed in terms of 
criteria detailed in section 5 of this Policy. The Council retains the right to specify 
permitted hours for furniture to be placed on the Highway in accordance with the 
premises’ trading hours and/or any relevant road closures or temporary traffic orders.  

Page 106



7 
 

5.3 Licence duration 
 
If the Council determines an application before the end of the determination period 
(which is 7 days, beginning on the day after the end of the public consultation 
period), the duration of the licence will be specified, subject to a minimum duration of 
3 months.  
The expectation from the Government is that local authorities will grant licences for 
12 months or more unless there are good reasons for granting a licence for a shorter 
period, such as plans for future changes in use of road space.  
 
As such, the Council will grant normally grant licences for a period of 12 months. 
 
If a licence is ‘deemed’ granted because the authority does not make a decision on 
an application before the end of the determination period, then the licence will be 
valid for a period of 12 months. 
 
The Business and Planning Act 2020 is in effect until 30 September 2021. A licence 
granted or deemed to be granted will not be valid beyond 30 September 2021.  
 
5.4 Refusal of applications 
 
The Council may refuse an application if: 

 it considers the proposals unsuitable as a result of their consideration of the 
points in section 5 of this Policy; 

 the Highways Authority refuses to give consent to the proposal; 

 it receives representations which cannot be mitigated by imposing conditions  
 
There is no statutory appeal process against a decision to refuse an application.  
 
6.0 Conditions 
 
The Council’s standard conditions are set out in Appendix 2. In some cases, extra 
measures may be required. This will be determined when assessing any application, 
on a case by case basis.  
 
Where a local authority sets a local condition that covers the same matter as set out 
in national published conditions, the locally set condition takes precedence over the 
national condition to the extent that it is inconsistent with it.  
 
The national ‘no obstruction’ condition and the national ‘smoke-free seating’ 
condition apply to all licences. The national ‘no obstruction’ condition is shown in 
Appendix 3.  
 
7.0 Enforcement 
 
The Council aims to work closely with other enforcement authorities to enforce the 
provisions of all appropriate legislation. The case remains that any obstruction of the 
highway is an offence under The Highways Act 1980 and will be dealt with by the 
Highways Authority or the Police.  
 

Page 107



8 
 

Obtaining a Pavement Licence does not confer the licence holder immunity in regard 
to other legislation that may apply, e.g. public liability, health and safety at work, food 
Hygiene and safety, alcohol and entertainment licensing, and social distancing 
controls. Applicants must ensure all such permissions etc. are in place prior to 
operating under a Pavement Licence.  
 
If a condition imposed on a licence either by the Council or via a national condition is 
breached then the Council will be able to issue a notice requiring the breach to be 
remedied within a time scale specified by the Council. If the notice is not complied 
with, the Council may revoke the licence or take the required steps itself and recover 
the costs of doing so from the licence holder.  
 
The authority may revoke a licence in the following circumstances: 

 For breach of condition (whether or not a remediation notice has been issued) 
or where:  
- there are risks to public health or safety – for example by encouraging 

users of the furniture to breach government guidance on social distancing 
by placing furniture too close together;  

- the highway is being obstructed (other than by anything permitted by the 
licence); 

- there is anti-social behaviour or public nuisance – for example, the use of 
the furniture is increasing the amount of noise generated or litter not being 
cleaned up; 

- it comes to the light that the applicant provided false or misleading 
statements in their application – for example they are operating a stall 
selling food within the licensable area, and had applied for tables and 
chairs on which drinks could be consumed; or 

- the applicant did not comply with the requirement to affix the ‘notice of 
intention’ to notify the public of the application for the relevant period. 

 Where all or part of the area of the relevant highway to which the licence 
relates has become unsuitable for any purpose for which the licence was 
granted or deemed to be granted. For example, the licensed area (or road 
adjacent) is no longer to be pedestrianised.  

 
8.0 Review 
 
This policy covers the temporary permissions for the administration of Pavement 
Licences under the Business and Planning Act 2020, which are scheduled to expire 
on 30 September 2021.  
 
The Policy will be reviewed should changes occur in the relevant legislation or 
guidance that affect the administration of Pavement Licences, or as a result of local 
considerations or policies within the Winchester District.  
 
 
 
 

Page 108



9 
 

 
Service Lead for Public Protection 

 
 
 
 

Licensing Department 
Public Protection 

Winchester City Council 
City Offices 

Colebrook Street 
Winchester  
SO23 9LJ 

 
Tel: 01962 848 188 

Email: licensing@winchester.gov.uk 
Web: www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 109

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing


10 
 

Appendix 1 – Notice of Intention (Template)  
 

 
 

 

Page 110



11 
 

Appendix 2 – Conditions  
 

1. Outside of the hours mentioned in the Licence, the removable furniture must 
be removed and stored safely outside the area and in any event not on the 
highway. 
 

2. The removable furniture shall be immediately removed upon request by the 
City Council, Police or Highways Authority if the area is required in whole or 
in part for repairs to be undertaken or for any other reason. In the case of 
planned maintenance work the City Council or Highways Authority shall 
endeavour to give reasonable notice to the Licensee.  In the event of 
emergency repairs no notice may be given. Maintenance works/repairs 
included work undertaken by statutory undertakers as well as surface 
repairs. 
 

3. In the event that any removable furniture is found outside the area, 
notification will be given by the Council to replace them within the area within 
one hour.  
 
The Licensee will receive a remediation notice rom the City Council both via 
email and delivered to the premises. The notice will outline the reasons why 
it is believed that the Licensee has breached condition(s) of the Licence, and 
will be given 7 days to remedy the breach. In the event that the breach is not 
remedied within this time period, the City Council may take steps to remove 
the furniture and/or consider revocation of the Licence.  
 
In the event that the furniture is removed by the City Council and the 
Licensee wishes to reclaim them, prior to their return the Licensee shall; 

i)  Contact the Licensing Department to request the return of  
 confiscated furniture, 

ii)  Make payment, electronically, of a £100 fee to the Licensing Department  

iii) Contact the Special Maintenance Team on 01962 848 574 to arrange 
 collection of the furniture from the location that the Special Maintenance 
 Team has designated for storage.  

 
 If furniture remains unclaimed after 14 days, the Council will dispose of the 
 furniture as it sees fit.  

4. No nuisance is to be caused, by the placing of the removable furniture on the 
highway, to users of the adjoining pedestrianised area.  
 

5. Emergency routes to and from the premises and adjacent buildings must not 
be obstructed by the use of removable furniture at these premises. 
 

6. The Licensee shall ensure that the use of removable furniture conforms to 
latest guidance issued by government on social distancing. 

 

Page 111



12 
 

7. The Licensee must ensure that the permitted area is regularly monitored to 
manage crowds and ensure that customers are not creating a public 
nuisance. 
 

8. The Licensee shall not be permitted to place Advance Warning Signs (A-
boards and other free-standing signage) within the designated area.   
 

9. The Licensee shall be responsible for keeping the area in a clean and tidy 
condition at all times. 
 

10. The Licensee must make reasonable provision for seating where smoking is 
not permitted, and have regard to the Government’s guidance in doing so. 
 

11. The Licensee shall be responsible for any damage caused to the paved 
surface of the area through any act, or, omission during the period of the 
Licence and any damage is to be made good entirely at the Licensee's 
expense.  
 

12. The Licensee shall ensure that valid Public Liability Insurance, indemnifying 
the Council against any claim arising from the operation of the Licence 
(minimum £5,000,000 cover), is maintained throughout the period of the 
Licence. 
 

13. This Licence is not transferable between Licensees or premises.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 112

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pavement-licences-draft-guidance/draft-guidance-pavement-licences-outdoor-seating-proposal#national-conditions


13 
 

Appendix 3 – National Conditions 
 
The Secretary of State publishes this condition in exercise of his powers under 
[Section 5(6)] of the Business and Planning Act 2020: 
 
Condition relating to clear routes of access: 
 
It is a condition that clear routes of access along the highway must be maintained, 
taking into account the needs of disabled people, and the recommended minimum 
footway widths and distances required for access by mobility impaired and visually 
impaired people as set out in Section 3.1 of Inclusive Mobility. 
 
Guidance on the effect of this condition 
 
1. To the extent that conditions imposed or deemed to be imposed on a pavement 

licence do not require the licence holder to require clear routes of access to be 
maintained, taking into account the needs of disabled people and the 
recommended minimum footway widths and distances required for access by 
mobility impaired and visually impaired people as set out in Section 3.1 of 
Inclusive Mobility, the licence is granted subject to those requirements. 
 

2. To the extent that a licence is granted subject to a condition which imposes 
requirements to maintain clear routes of access that are inconsistent with the 
requirements set out in this condition this condition is not imposed on the licence. 

 
 

Page 113

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/inclusive-mobility
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/inclusive-mobility


This page is intentionally left blank



LR534 Appendix 2 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

Pavement Licensing Policy 

 

Service: Section: Assessment Author: Date of Assessment: 

Public Protection Licensing Briony Appletree 03/09/2020 

 

Name of Policy to be Assessed: Pavement Licensing Policy 

New or Existing Policy?  New 

 

1. Briefly describe the aims, 
objectives and purpose of 
the policy 

The primary aim of the Policy is to set out how the City Council will administrate applications for 
Pavement Licences under the Business and Planning Act 2020.  

2. Are there any associated 
objectives of the policy? 
Please explain. 

 To ensure that the City Council fulfils its duty to administrate applications for Pavement Licences. 

 To outline the procedures for ensuring compliance with licences, and for taking enforcement action 
where required.  

 To set local conditions, which will apply to all licences granted or deemed granted, to ensure that 
activity under a Pavement Licence does not adversely impact any individual, group or the local 
area. 

3. Who is intended to benefit 
from the policy, and in 
what way? 

The Policy intends to benefit hospitality businesses within the Winchester District which have need or 
desire for outdoor seating. This is particularly key during the COVID-19 pandemic, as Pavement 
Licences enable businesses to extend their seating provision, ensure that their diners are socially 
distanced and offer well-ventilated spaces for customers.  

4. What outcomes are wanted 
from this policy? 

The policy supports the following Council Plan outcomes: Vibrant Local Economy, Living Well, Your 
Services, Your Voice.   

5. What factors could 
contribute/detract from the 
outcomes? 

Change in central Government policies or legislation 
Reduction or loss of resources 

6. Who are the key people in 
relation to the policy? 

Winchester City Council’s Licensing Team; City Councillors; Hampshire County Council’s Highways 
Authority; Parish Councils; Hampshire Constabulary’s Counter Terrorism Policing Unit; hospitality 
businesses within the Winchester District; residents of and visitors to the Winchester District.  

7. Who implements the policy 
and who is responsible for 
the policy? 

The Pavement Licensing Policy is implemented by Winchester City Council Licensing Officers, within 
the Public Protection Service.  
The Policy is the responsibility of the Service Lead for Public Protection.  

 

 

 

P
age 115



LR534 Appendix 2 

 

8. Could the policy have differential impact on racial groups? Yes / No NO 

 What existing evidence 
(either presumed or 
otherwise) do you have for 
this? 

The Pavement Licensing Policy has no adverse impact on racial groups. Data regarding applicants’ or 
individuals’ race/ethnicity is not collected as part of the application process, and is not a consideration 
in the consultation or determination of the application.  
Any public representations submitted regarding an application, where the reason (or one of the 
reasons) for representation is the applicant’s race/ethnicity, will be disregarded as irrelevant.  

 

9. Could the policy have differential impact due to gender? Yes / No NO 

 What existing evidence 
(either presumed or 
otherwise) do you have for 
this? 

The Pavement Licensing Policy has no adverse impact due to gender. Data regarding applicants’ or 
individuals’ gender is not collected as part of the application process, and is not a consideration in the 
consultation or determination of the application.  
Any public representations submitted regarding an application, where the reason (or one of the 
reasons) for representation is the applicant’s gender, will be disregarded as irrelevant. 

 

10. Could the policy have differential impact due to disability? Yes / No YES 

 What existing evidence 
(either presumed or 
otherwise) do you have for 
this? 

The Pavement Licensing Policy makes specific reference to ensuring that the needs of people with 
disabilities are considered through the application and determination processes for Pavement 
Licences.  
The legislation requires the City Council to consider the recommended minimum footway widths and 
distances required for access by mobility impaired and visually impaired people when determining 
applications. It also references the guidelines set out in the Department for Transport’s Inclusive 
Mobility guidance.  
The Secretary of State has also published a national condition which must apply to all Pavement 
Licences granted or deemed granted, referencing the need to ensure that clear routes of access along 
the highway are maintained, taking into account the needs of disabled people.  

 

11. Could the policy have differential impact due to sexual orientation? Yes / No NO 

 What existing evidence 
(either presumed or 
otherwise) do you have for 
this? 

The Pavement Licensing Policy has no adverse impact due to sexual orientation. Data regarding 
applicants’ or individuals’ sexual orientation is not collected as part of the application process, and is 
not a consideration in the consultation or determination of the application.  
Any public representations submitted regarding an application, where the reason (or one of the 
reasons) for representation is the applicant’s sexual orientation, will be disregarded as irrelevant. 

 

12. Could the policy have differential impact due to age? Yes / No YES 

 What existing evidence 
(either presumed or 
otherwise) do you have for 

Applications for Pavement Licences will only be accepted from persons over the age of 18. Applicants 
are required to declare that they are over the age of 18 when making the application. Any application 
made by a person under the age of 18 will be rejected.  

P
age 116



LR534 Appendix 2 

 

this? Any public representations submitted regarding an application, where the reason (or one of the 
reasons) for representation is the applicant’s age, will be disregarded as irrelevant. 

 

13. Could the policy have differential impact due to religious belief(s)? Yes / No NO 

 What existing evidence 
(either presumed or 
otherwise) do you have for 
this? 

The Pavement Licensing Policy has no adverse impact due to religious beliefs. Data regarding 
applicants’ or individuals’ religious beliefs is not collected as part of the application process, and is not 
a consideration in the consultation or determination of the application.  
Any public representations submitted regarding an application, where the reason (or one of the 
reasons) for representation is the applicant’s religious beliefs, will be disregarded as irrelevant. 

 

14. Could the adverse impacts identified in section 8-13 create the potential for the policy to 
discriminate against certain groups? 

Yes / No YES 

 What existing evidence 
(either presumed or 
otherwise) do you have for 
this? 

The Pavement Licensing Policy has several references to the importance of ensuring that minimum 
footway widths and distances required for access by mobility impaired and visually impaired people are 
maintained. This is a key factor in the determination process for applications.  

 

15. Can this adverse impact be justified on the grounds of promoting equality of opportunity for one 
group? Or any other reason?  

Yes / No YES 

 What existing evidence 
(either presumed or 
otherwise) do you have for 
this? 

The needs of mobility impaired and visually impaired people are taken into consideration in the 
determination of all applications; this is to ensure that this group has equal opportunity to safely use 
footways where there is furniture on the highway.  

 

Signed (completing officer): BRIONY APPLETREE   Signed (Lead Officer): _______________________ 

 

Please list team members and service areas involved in this assessment:  
 

Public Protection Service; Legal Department 
 

 

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LR534 - Appendix 3 

 

Data Protection Impact Assessment 

Pavement Licensing Policy 

 
Explain broadly what project aims to achieve and what type of processing it involves. You 
may find it helpful to refer or link to other documents, such as a project proposal. Summarise why 
you identified the need for a DPIA. 

Winchester City Council’s introduction of a Pavement Licensing Policy aims to clearly define the 
procedures for processing and determining applications for Pavement Licences under the Business 
and Planning Act 2020. The policy outlines processes a defined by the relevant legislation, and local 
procedures as decided by Winchester City Council to ensure the fair and transparent administration 
of these applications.  

The application procedure requires the applicant to submit personal data, such as their full name, 
address, contact telephone number and email address. The legislation requires these details to be 
submitted in electronic format only.  

Winchester City Council also requires applicants to provide evidence of public liability insurance 
cover, proof of their right to occupy the premises to which the application relates, and written 
consent from owners/occupiers of potentially affected residences/businesses. These documents 
may include personal data.  

The legislation also requires the City Council to publish notice of the application in the public domain 
(i.e. on its website). There is potential for personal data to be published in doing so, if the application 
details are not correctly redacted.  

I have identified the need for a Data Protection Impact Assessment as the application process 
includes the collection and publication of personal data; this needs to be controlled 
 

Describe the scope of the processing: what is the nature of the data, and does it include special 
category or criminal offence data? How much data will you be collecting and using? How often? 
How long will you keep it? How many individuals are affected? What geographical area does it 
cover? 

Personal data collected for each application 

Full name of applicant; home/business address of applicant; telephone number and email address 
for applicant. 

The applicant is required to prove that they hold adequate public liability insurance to cover the 
proposed activities under the Pavement Licence, and provide evidence that they have the right to 
occupy the premises. Depending on the documentation that they submit to evidence these 
requirements, these may contact personal data.  

The applicant must also provide written consent from any owners/occupiers of 
residences/businesses that could be affected by the proposed activities under the Pavement 
Licence. As a minimum, this evidence would include the name and address of the owner/occupier. It 
may also include their contact details, although these are not required.  

Data retention 

The above data will be retained for the duration of the Licence (typically 12 months), including 
renewed licences. Email correspondence relating to the application or licence will be retained in 
accordance with the City Council’s Mailmeter system (2 years).  

 

Frequency of data collection 

It is difficult to say how often this type of data will be collected, as there is no limit on who can apply 

Page 119



LR534 - Appendix 3 

 

for a licence and when this application will be made.  

Individuals affected 

Personal data is collected from the applicant (an individual or company). Personal data of additional 
individuals may be present on supplementary documents required with the application. 
Owners/occupiers of affected residences/businesses will provide personal data within their response 
to the application. Persons making representations may volunteer personal data within their 
representation.  

Geographical area affected 

Applicant for Pavement Licences must own or occupy a premises within the Winchester District. The 
applicant, however, does not need to be based within the District. Owners of affected 
residences/businesses, and persons making representations in relation to the application, may also 
not live within the district.  

 

Describe the context of the processing: what is the nature of your relationship with the 
individuals? How much control will they have? Would they expect you to use their data in this way? 
Do they include children or other vulnerable groups? Are there prior concerns over this type of 
processing or security flaws? Is it novel in any way? What is the current state of technology in this 
area? Are there any current issues of public concern that you should factor in? Are you signed up to 
any approved code of conduct or certification scheme (once any have been approved)? 

Personal data is collected and retained purely for the purposes of administrating the application 
process for a Pavement Licence. The application form includes a statement confirming that personal 
data may be passed to other agencies in the processing and determination of the application (i.e. 
Hampshire County Council).  

Applicants must declare that they are over the age of 18 at the time of making the application. 
Applications which do not include this declaration will be rejected.  

 

Describe the purposes of the processing: what do you want to achieve? What is the intended 
effect on individuals? What are the benefits of the processing – for  you, and more broadly? 

Personal data is collected and retained purely for the purposes of administrating the application 
process for a Pavement Licence. 

A full name and address is required to ensure that any licence granted is assigned to an individual. 
These details are printed on the licence paperwork.  

Contact details for the applicant are retained to assist with undertaking enforcement action (i.e. 
delivery of remediation notices or notice of revocation of the licence).  

The main benefit from processing this personal data is that is allows an individual or business to 
obtain a Pavement Licence, which will ultimately assist with the success of their business.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 120



LR534 - Appendix 3 

 

Consider how to consult with relevant stakeholders: describe when and how you will seek 
individuals’ views – or justify why it’s not appropriate to do so. Who else do you need to involve 
within your organisation? Do you need to ask your processors to assist? Do you plan to consult 
information security experts, or any other experts? 

The full application and any supplementary documents are forwarded to Hampshire County 
Council’s Highways Authority via email for their consideration. The application is not redacted for 
the purposes of this consultation.  

Notification of the application is sent via email to relevant Ward Councillors, Parish Council(s) and 
Hampshire Constabulary’s Counter Terrorism Unit for their information. This notification is limited 
to the location and day/times of the proposed activities under a Pavement Licence; the application 
form and any supplementary documents containing personal data are not shared. A site plan is 
included (as provided by the applicant) to provide context to these parties. No personal data is 
included on the site plan.  

The application undergoes a public consultation period of 7 days. During this time, any person 
may submit representations in relation to the application. Representations can be submitted in 
hard copy or electronic format. 

The City Council’s Data Protection Officer will review this DPIA.  

 

Describe compliance and proportionality measures, in particular: what is your lawful basis for 
processing? Does the processing actually achieve your purpose? Is there another way to achieve 
the same outcome? How will you prevent function creep? How will you ensure data quality and data 
minimisation? What information will you give individuals? How will you help to support their rights? 
What measures do you take to ensure processors comply? How do you safeguard any international 
transfers? 

 
Winchester City Council’s lawful basis for collecting and processing personal data in these 
circumstances is the requirement for it to process applications for Pavement Licences under the 
Business and Planning Act 2020. Winchester City Council has specified the form of application in 
accordance with the relevant legislation, whilst requesting as little personal data as possible for the 
purposes of processing the application.  
 
Function creep: Prevented by each application for a Pavement Licence having its own unique 
reference number on Uniform. The type of reference number specifically relates to applications for 
Pavement Licences and is not shared with any other type of application.  
 
Data minimisation: All data will be adequate to fulfil the requirements for processing applications, 
relevant only to that type of application, and limited to only what is necessary for processing said 
applications.  
 
Data quality: The accuracy, completeness and reliability of the data collected depends on the 
applicant’s ability to provide quality data. However, the application form includes mandatory fields for 
name, address and contact details that must be completed before the application is submitted. 
Furthermore, the applicant must declare on the application form that they understand that any false 
statement made in connection with the application will result in the application being refused or the 
licence revoked. Only relevant data will be collected; Winchester City Council has specified the form 
of application in such a way to reduce the amount of personal data collected to the bare minimum 
required for processing the application. The consultation and determination periods for this type of 
application is limited to a total of 14 days, and therefore the timeliness of data is unlikely to be 
affected.  
 

 

 

Page 121



LR534 - Appendix 3 

 

Identify and assess risks 

 
Describe source of risk and nature of potential impact 
on individuals. Include associated compliance and 
corporate risks as necessary. 
 

Likelihood 
of harm 

Severity 
of harm 

Overall 
risk  

Illegitimate access to personal data held in connection with 
an application 

Possible Significant Medium 

Loss of personal data by City Council Possible Minimal Medium 

Modification of personal data by City Council or third party Possible Significant Medium 

 

Identify measures to reduce risks 
 

Risk Options to reduce or eliminate risk Effect on 
risk 

Residual 
risk 

Measure 
approved 

Illegitimate 
access to 
personal 
data held in 
connection 
with an 
application 

- City Council has secure network, can only 
be accessed with staff username/password. 
- All applications submitted electronically 
(no hard copies accepted) 
- Personal data only forwarded to 
Hampshire County Council for consultation 
purposes. HCC have own data protection 
policies/procedures as a local authority to 
prevent illegitimate access to data.  
- All personal data redacted from application 
before publication on City Council website 
- All personal data redacted from application 
and supplementary documents before 
provided to third parties upon request (e.g. 
Ward Councillors, members of public)  

Reduced Low  

Loss of 
personal 
data by City 
Council 

- Data is subject to organisation’s data 
retention policies. No deletion of data is 
necessary as the data retention tools in 
Outlook and IDOX do this automatically.  

Reduced Low  

Modification 
of personal 
data by City 
Council or 
third party 

- Data does not need to be amended by 
case officer or any other City Council staff 
member during the processing of the 
application, unless the applicant specifically 
requests that details are updated (i.e. 
change of address).  
- Uniform has function that allows officers o 
record changes to name/address/contact 
details to ensure an audit trail.  

Reduced Low  

 

 

 

 

 

Sign off and record outcomes 
 

Item Name/position/date Notes 

Measures approved by:  Integrate actions back into 
project plan, with date and 

Page 122



LR534 - Appendix 3 

 

responsibility for completion 

Residual risks approved by:  If accepting any residual high 
risk, consult the ICO before 
going ahead 

DPO advice provided:  DPO should advise on 
compliance, step 6 measures 
and whether processing can 
proceed 

Summary of DPO advice: 
 
 
 
 

DPO advice accepted or 
overruled by:  

 
 
 

If overruled, you must explain 

your reasons 

Comments:  
 

 

 

 

Consultation responses 
reviewed by: 

 If your decision departs from 
individuals’ views, you must 
explain your reasons 

Comments:  
 
 
 

This DPIA will kept under 
review by: 

 The DPO should also review 
ongoing compliance with DPIA 

 
 

 
 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

                                                                                        LR533 
      LICENSING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER REVIEW 
 
15TH SEPTEMBER 2020 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER:  BUILT ENVIRONMENT AND WELLBEING 

Contact Officer:  Davina Domone-Hollands    Tel No: 01962 848 275 Email 
ddomone-hollands@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S): WINCHESTER TOWN WARDS  
 
 

 

 
Purpose 

For the purpose of Section 60 under the Anti-social behaviour, Crime and Policing 

Act 2014 the Council has a statutory duty to review the current Public Spaces 

Protection Order (PSPO).  

 

The Licensing and Regulation Committee is responsible for approving and 

authorising the publication of extension requests for the current PSPO beyond 

October 2020. 

 

To support the decision making process, this report provides the background 

information in relation to the legislation and current status of the Alcohol Control 

Zone.  

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Committee approve the extended Public Open Space Protection Order 
and publication and notification of the Order. 

2. Authorise the Strategic Director Services, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Built Environment and Wellbeing, to extend the timeframe of the 
Public Spaces Protection Order to October 2023.  

Page 125

Agenda Item 7



  LR533 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
  
1.      COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME:  
 
1.1 Tackling the Climate Emergency and Creating a Greener District 

1.2 The Neighbourhood Services Team deliver against the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 (as amended by The Clean Neighbourhoods and 
Environment Act 2005).  

1.3 Anecdotally, there is a correlation between those causing alcohol associated 
anti-social behaviour and detritus found within the same locations e.g. 
cans/glass bottles. By managing alcohol fuelled anti-social behaviour and 
dealing with the littering issues in public places, the partnership is helping to 
improve the environment for others who are visiting, working or living in 
Winchester. 

1.4 Homes for all 

1.5 Winchester is considered to be rich in support services and that can mean 
that as a city we are also a place where transient individuals gravitate 
towards. Working in partnership with other agencies we will endeavour to 
engage with individuals at the offset and it’s usually at that point that a 
disclosure is made about housing circumstances. In line with homeless 
legislation, this often results in support provision being put in place to help 
reconnect the individual to their area of origin or the arrangement of an 
appointment with housing options (circumstance dependant). 

1.6 Vibrant Local Economy 

1.7 The Community Safety Partnership (CSP) works collaboratively with 
businesses and partner agencies to reduce crime and disorder issues. 
Promoting a safe and vibrant environment for those visiting, working and living 
in Winchester is an important part of that process.   

1.8 The Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) provides Hampshire 
Constabulary with the power to request an individual surrenders their alcohol 
when it is linked to anti-social behaviour. This supports the Partnerships aim 
to reduce alcohol related anti-social behaviour and improve the feelings of 
public safety within the night time economy and for those using open spaces.  

1.9 The City is part of the Winchester Business Improvement District and that 
along with the delivery of the PSPO is likely to provide new enterprise with 
assurance that crime and disorder issues will be managed. 

1.10 Living Well 

1.10  The overall aim of the PSPO is to reduce alcohol related incidents that cause 
alarm, harassment and distress to those using our open spaces. 

Page 126



  LR533 
 

 

 

1.11 The PSPO provides a greater opportunity for partners to signpost those who 
are entrenched in alcohol abuse to support services.  

1.12  Your Services, Your Voice 

1.13 The CSP is proud of its strong partnership ethos and actively promotes the 
use of “You Said, We Did” slogans. This is demonstrated in the delivery of 
community projects that have been instigated because of public concern 
around crime and disorder.  

1.14  In order to seek the views of a wider public audience the CSP has 
incorporated questions specifically related to the Alcohol Control Zone (ACZ) 
within the annual Anti-Social Behaviour Satisfaction Survey incorporated into 
the PSPO Report (Appendix 1). 

2.     FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 Any procurement exercise needed to purchase replacement signage will be 
undertaken in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR2015).”   An audit was completed in 
2018 of the current signage so we anticipate any cost implications would be 
minimal for additional signage. Any work to identify these would be 
undertaken within current staffing levels.  

 3.    LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1    The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 provides a broad 
legal framework within which PSPOs can be implemented. Orders can be 
introduced in a specific public area where the local authority is satisfied on 
reasonable grounds that certain conditions have been met. The Home Office 
statutory guidance re issued in December 2017 states that proposed 
restrictions should focus on specific behaviours and be proportionate to the 
detrimental effect that the behaviour is causing or can cause, and are 
necessary to prevent it from continuing, occurring or recurring. 

3,2 A PSPO can last for up to three years, after which it must be reviewed. If the 
review supports an extension and other requirements are satisfied, it may be 
extended for up to a further three years. There is no limit on the number of 
times an Order may be reviewed and renewed. The legislation sets out a 
number of additional requirements for consultation and communication before 
an Order is introduced, once it is implemented and where it is extended, 
varied or discharged. 

3.3 Prior to extending a PSPO the city council is statutorily obliged to consult with 
the local chief officer of police; the police and crime commissioner; owners or 
occupiers of land within the affected area where reasonably practicable, and 
appropriate community representatives. 

            

Page 127



  LR533 
 

 

 

3.2  The City Councils constitution states that the Licensing and Regulation 

Committee will determine all applications to designate an area a PSPO under 

Section 60(3) of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. 

 

3   WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1  Current signage will be reviewed and updated as appropriate within existing   
resources. 

 
4  PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

4.1    None  

5   CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 The Community Safety Partnership undertook the Anti-Social Behaviour 
satisfaction survey December 2019. The survey incorporated specific 
questions around the Alcohol Control Zone. In line with section 59 of the 
legislation, those responses have also been incorporated into the PSPO 
Review (Appendix 1).  

 
6.2   A survey was sent out to partners who work within the current ACZ to seek 

their views, organisational experience and working knowledge of the current 
ACZ.  

 
6.3  Key partners involved in the discussions included the police District 

Commander, Winchester BID Rangers, Winchester Churches Nightshelter, 
Trinity, and Winchester Street Pastors.  

 
6.4  Partner responses showed they are in favour of the proposed extension.  
 
6.5  CCTV data is obtained on a monthly basis which supports the monitoring 

process in relation to the ACZ e.g. public order.  

 

6.6  Public Order Offences which resulted in arrest and reported by Hampshire 

Constabulary Police Licensing Officer, Licensing and Alcohol Reduction Team 

shows a 65% reduction in substance related public order offences during the 

reporting period 01.10.2016-31.10.2019. 

 

7     ENVIRONMENTAL 
 
7.1 The Public Space Protection Order (known as the Alcohol Control Zone) 

promotes a positive and safe environment for those using open spaces, 
without fear of witnessing alcohol fuelled ASB.  

 
8     EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT  

8.1      A full Equality Impact Assessment has been completed (Appendix 3) 

Page 128



  LR533 
 

 

 

 
9         DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1       None  

 
10   RISK MANAGEMENT  
 

Risk   Mitigation Opportunities 

Property  None 
 

None 

Community Support 
normally managed by Bid 
Rangers and Police not in 
place and the most prolific 
individual’s behaviour is 
not addressed. 

The most prolific anti-
social individuals coming 
to attention of the CSP 
can be referred to a multi-
agency case conference 
meeting whereby a plan 
to address their behaviour 
or the offer of support can 
be put in place.  

To signpost to appropriate 
support services. 

Timescales- To meet the 
legislation requirement 
the PSPO must be in 
place before or on 25th 
October 2020. 

Report being presented to 
Licensing and Regulation 
Committee September 
2020.  

Wider publication of the 
order e.g. Social media 
and local publications or 
newspapers. 

Project capacity None None 

Financial / VfM N/A N/A 

Legal-  
Statutory duty in place to 
deliver against 
Government legislation: 
Crime and Disorder Act 
1998.  
Anti-Social, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 
 

PSPO report presented to 
L&RC for approval in 
advance of the deadline 
of October 2020.  
 
Equality Impact 
Assessment completed. 

N/A 

Innovation 
 

N/A N/A 

Reputation- Partnership 
working. Hampshire 
Constabulary are keen for 
the PSPO to continue in 
its current guise. Any 
delay in meeting the 
extension deadline of 
October 2020 may impact 
on the credibility of the 
partnership.  

PSPO in place until 2023.  Relaunch of the current 
PSPO provides additional 
public education and acts 
as a reminder to partners 
about the use of powers 
available them. 

Other N/A N/A 

Page 129



  LR533 
 

 

 

 
11. SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 The original Designated Public Place Order (DPPO) was authorised in 2005 

and launched in 2006. It was subsequently extended in 2007 to cover the 

surrounding areas of the city. (Appendix 2) 

 

11.2 A review of the DPPO was undertaken in July 2009 in accordance with 

Government guidelines and as a consequence of a Human Rights challenge 

(Nationally) the CSP decided to change the name from Alcohol Exclusion 

Zone to Alcohol Control Zone. (Appendix 4) 

 

11.3 A change in legislation following a review of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime 

and Policing Act 2014 allowed CSPs to automatically carry forward the 

disbanded DPPO in the form of a PSPO for a further period of 2 years without 

review (This commenced in October 2018). Government legislation dictates 

that where the automatic carry forward took place a further review would be 

undertaken and if appropriate approved for a further 3 years no later than 25 

October 2020. 

 

11.4 Under s72 of the of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 

there is a requirement to consult, publicise and notify those likely to be 

affected by the PSPO before it is extended. Subsequently a review of the 

current PSPO has been undertaken in accordance with those Government 

guidelines and if the authorisation for publication is approved by Committee it 

will remain in place for a further 3 years beyond 25 October 2020. 

 

11.5 Breach of an order (refusing to give up alcohol when requested by a police 

officer) is a criminal offence, which can result in the issue of a Fixed Penalty 

Notice (FPN) of £100 or lead to prosecution. If found guilty of the offence, an 

individual can be fined up to a maximum of £1000. Under 18yrs will not be 

issued with FPN’s.  

 

11.6  Hampshire Constabulary Police data related to arrestable public order 

offences, showed that in the period between 2016 - 2019 Winchester saw a 

65% reduction in substance related offences (includes alcohol). To date our 

records show that no FPN’s have been issued for non-compliance which 

would imply that current early interventions are working. 

 

11.7 The PSPO is not a ban on public drinking, it will only be acted upon when 

complaints from the public are received e.g. families/friends can still 

legitimately have a picnic in the open space on the proviso that no complaints 

are received.  

Page 130



  LR533 
 

 

 

 

11.8 PSPO’s are not intended to target individuals for anything other than alcohol 

related anti-social behaviour which is having an unreasonable and detrimental 

effect on a person’s quality of life. A full Equality Impact Assessment has been 

completed to ensure we adhere to the Human Rights of all, taking a balanced 

view with regards to enforcement procedures at all times. 

 

11.9 The PSPO provides uniformed police officers with the power to require a 

person to stop drinking in a public place and as appropriate to surrender their 

alcohol if their behaviour is directly linked to their drinking. The order states 

that ‘it is an offence to drink alcohol in public within this area when asked not 

to do so by a police officer’. 

 

11.10 Where Licensed premises have responsibility for land adjacent to a curtilage 

or where consumption is associated with tables and chairs placed on the 

highway with the Council’s consent e.g. pub gardens, cordoned areas, 

eateries it will not be considered to warrant the use of PSPO enforcement 

legislation because there are already powers available within the statutory 

licensing regulations.  

 

11.11 Historically, a local agreement with Winchester City Council and District Police 

Commander was put in place which allowed for the temporary disbandment of 

the order whilst events in the city take place, with a condition that it resume 24 

hours after it ends e.g. the Hat Fair. It is proposed that this condition will not 

change within the extension. 

 

11.12  Section 72 Allows for openness and accountability so before making, varying, 

extending or discharging a PSPO, the council must carry out the necessary 

publicity and necessary notification (if any) in accordance with section 72(3) of 

the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 – This has been 

completed  (Appendix 1)  

 

11.13 We have considered the discretion to widen the powers within the PSPO, the 

current data does not support using the powers for anything other than 

alcohol related ASB.  

 

11.14 Throughout the last 2 years alcohol related ASB has generally shown a 

reduction in incidents as recorded by the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner. This supports the case that early intervention is beneficial in 

the context of the extension of the PSPO. (Appendix 1)   

 

 

Page 131



  LR533 
 

 

 

12   OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

There is an option to not extend but this was rejected as not extending would remove 
the ability to use early intervention such as the confiscation of alcohol and may 
increase public order. This allows the Police to deal with lower level alcohol fuelled 
anti-social behaviour at the offset. Should they not have these powers the anti-social 
behaviour would need to escalate before the next level was appropriate and more 
robust interventions put in place.  
 
Recommendations   
• Extend for another three years as outlined in this report as not extending the 
Public Space Protection Order may result in: 
a) Reduced public confidence 
b) There is also a lack of other powers to remove alcohol 
c) Increase in alcohol related crime 
• Evidence would suggest that the current Public Space Protection Order is 
used weekly and that the power to take possession of open vessels to prevent 
alcohol related behaviour can remove the risk of serious harm and voluntary disposal 
of alcohol when approached by Police. 
• Using the information provided from Police analysts, interviews, surveys, 
anecdotal evidence and unanimous agreement from the Strategic Partnership that 
the current Public Space Protection Order is fully supported in the extension past 
October 2020. 
 

13  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Public Space Protection Order – Guidance for Councils – LGA    
https://www.local.gov.uk/public-spaces-protection-orders-guidance-councils 

LR211 EXTENSION OF THE ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION DESIGNATION ORDER 

MARCH 2007 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/data/licensing%20&%20regulation%20committ
ee/200703011830/agenda/lr0211-aezreport.pdf 

LR223 EXTENSION OF THE ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION DESIGNATION ORDER JUNE 
2007https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/data/licensing%20&%20regulation%20committee/
200706071830/agenda/lr0223-alcoholdesignationorderextensionreportplusapps.pdf 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1.   PSPO Report 

Appendix 2.   Alcohol Control Zone Map 

Appendix 3.   Equality Impact Assessment (Full version) 

Appendix 4.   Winchester Alcohol Exclusion Zone – Review May 2009 
 
Appendix 5.   Alcohol Exclusion Designated Order 2007 

Page 132

https://www.local.gov.uk/public-spaces-protection-orders-guidance-councils
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/data/licensing%20&%20regulation%20committee/200703011830/agenda/lr0211-aezreport.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/data/licensing%20&%20regulation%20committee/200703011830/agenda/lr0211-aezreport.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/data/licensing%20&%20regulation%20committee/200706071830/agenda/lr0223-alcoholdesignationorderextensionreportplusapps.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/data/licensing%20&%20regulation%20committee/200706071830/agenda/lr0223-alcoholdesignationorderextensionreportplusapps.pdf


 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Space  

Protection  

Order  

Review and 

Extension 2020 
Report by: Davina Domone-Hollands - Neighbourhood Services 

Officer Winchester City Council - 2020 

 

Page 133



 

1 
 

Introduction 

The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, came into force October 

2014, one of the amendments within the Act was to disband the Designated Public 

Place Order (DPPO) and replace it with a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO).  

This means that the current Alcohol Control Zone (Appendix 3) was carried forward 

for 3 years as a DPPO and then automatically transferred to a PSPO in 2018 for a 

further period of 2 years. In accordance with Government Guidance this order now 

requires review and further authorisation. 

PSPO’s have been introduced to provide wider discretionary powers to deal with 

nuisance or problems which harm the local community’s quality of life. They provide 

local authorities with the necessary powers intended to deal with a specific nuisance 

or problem in a particular area that is detrimental to the local community’s quality of 

life. They are designed to ensure the law abiding majority can use and enjoy public 

spaces, safe from anti-social behaviour. The order imposes conditions on the use of 

that area which applies to everyone1.     

Breaking an order is a criminal offence, which can result in a fixed penalty notice 

(FPN) of £100 or proceed to prosecution. If prosecuted an individual could be fined 

up to a maximum of £1,000. Only those aged 18 or over can be issued with a FPN. 

In order to move forward support and feedback are sought for the current PSPO to 

be extended past 2020.Our constitution states that the Licensing and Regulation 

Committee will determine all applications to designate an area under Section 59 

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 so it needs to be established if 

our partners and the Committee are happy to proceed for the continuation of the 

PSPO in its present format.  

Methodology 

During the consultation process the following evaluation process was adopted: 

 Interview/Survey (attached) - sent out to partners for completion. 

 Anecdotal evidence - collected from partners in relation to the current Alcohol 

Control Zone (pro’s and con’s). 

 CCTV Statistics – from WCC CCTV Manager  

 Licensing Statistics - requested from Police Licensing Officer, Licensing and 

Alcohol Reduction Team. 

 Anecdotal evidence – provided by the acting police Ch. Insp. (District Police 

Commander Winchester) 

 Anecdotal evidence given from Bid Rangers (Venture Security) 

                                                           
1
 PSPO Order – in Winchester this equates to the current alcohol control zone. A new order will not affect 

those consuming alcohol in a public place unless they are deemed to be causing alarm harassment or distress 
to those in their immediate vicinity. 

Page 134



 

2 
 

 It was not practicable to contact owners/occupiers in the alcohol control zone 

area 

Surveys    

A survey containing 10 questions was sent out to partners who were identified 

because of their work within the current alcohol control zone. See appendix 1 for 

copy of the questionnaire. 

Partners interviewed included: 

 WCC Licensing Manager 

 Winchester University Security Manager 

 WCC Service Lead – Housing and Social Inclusion (interim) 

 Bid Rangers – Winchester Business Improvement District 

 Winchester Churches Night Shelter 

 Trinity Manager 

 Winchester Street Pastors 

 Office of the Police Crime Commissioner for Hampshire – not able to advise  

 Hampshire County Council - no reply received  

Partner agency survey responses showed the following results: 

Table 1. Question Responses: 

1. Are you aware of the current 
PSPO 

 
1) Yes 
2) No 

 

 
 

 86% Yes 

 14% Yes 

2. Which of the following applies to 
you in relation to the PSPO Zone? 
 
1) Walk Through 
2) Socialise 
3) Reside 
4) Work 
5) Non apply 

 

 
 
 

 86% Work 

 14% Walk through 

3. Do you agree or disagree that the 
introduction of the PSPO has 
helped to improve the quality of 
your life in the area? 
 
1) Strongly Agree 
2) Agree 
3) Disagree 
4) Strongly Disagree 

 
 
 
 
 

 28.5% Strongly agree 

 28.5% Agree 

 43% No opinion 

Page 135



 

3 
 

5) No opinion 
 

4. Do you think that the PSPO has 
reduced crime and disorder? 
 
1) A great deal 
2) Only slight 
3) It has made no difference 
4) Do not know 

 

 

 28.5% A great deal 

 28.5% Only slight 

 43% Do not know 

5. In your opinion does the PSPO 
make you feel safer? 
 
1) Very much safer during the day 
2) Very much safer during the 

evening 
 

3) Slightly safer during the day 
4) Slightly safer during the 

evening 
 

5) No difference during the day 
6) No difference during the 

evening 
 

7) Slightly less secure during the 
day 

8) Slightly less secure during the 
evening 
 

9) Much less secure during the 
day 

10)  Much less secure during the 
evening 
 

 

 28.5% Very much safer during 
the day 

 14.25% Very much safer during 
the evening 

 43% Slightly safer during the 
day 

 14.25% No difference during the 
day 
 

6. Do you think that the PSPO 
signage is adequate? 
 
1) Yes 
2) No 
3) Don’t know 

 

 

 28.5% Yes  

 57% No 

 14.5% Don’t know 
 

7. Do you think that anything could 
be improved with the PSPO, 
please comment. 
 

Following comments were made: 

 Raise awareness/promote 
reports on effectiveness 

 Awareness campaign 

 Bigger signage 

 Did not think that anything could 
be improved with PSPO 

 No  

Page 136



 

4 
 

8. Do you support or oppose the use 
of the PSPO? 
 
1) Support 
2) Oppose 

 
 
 

 100% Support 

9.  The following issues have 
previously been reported in the 
past; please indicate if they cause 
you any concern? 
 
1) Teenagers hanging around on 

the streets 
2) Underage Drinking 
3) Rubbish or litter lying around 
4) Vandalism, graffiti, and other 

deliberate damage to property 
or vehicles 

5) People being drunk or rowdy in 
public places 

6) People being insulted, 
pestered or intimidated in the 
street 

7) People fighting or arguing in 
the street 

8) People urinating in public 
9) People sleeping rough in the 

street 

 
 
 
 
 
Following comments were made: 

 Difficult to stop with known 
offenders 

 14% All of the issues 

 14% 2-9 of listed issues 

 14% 1,5,9 of listed issues 

 14% 3-8 of listed issues 

Partners providing supporting statements 

Listed below are key comments from the Police Licensing Officer, Acting District 

Commander for Hampshire Constabulary and Winchester BID City Rangers, 

Winchester Street Pastors. 

 The PSPO is an invaluable tool for preventing open consumption of alcohol in 
Winchester and has a positive impact on volume crime and disorder. 

 Issues with large student population preloading alcohol before leaving 

accommodation in Winchester for a night out. This behaviour can have 

negative impact on crime and disorder incidents. The PSPO serves to ensure 

this consumption cannot continue between home and licenced premises. 

 PSPO and the powers it provides directly: 

Reduce alcohol consumption in the streets of Winchester 

Reduces level of drunkenness 

Reduces vulnerability 

Reduces incidents of crime and disorder 

 PSPO is an important feature in Winchester as it allows Police, Council and 

other agencies to maintain a well behaved environment. 

 PSPO signage is very informative and it allows enforcement if necessary. 

Page 137



 

5 
 

 Winchester is rich in terms of service provision for some of the most 

vulnerable members of the community that have drug and alcohol 

dependencies. 

 Work has started at a tactical and strategic level in order to better understand 

the complexity of the issues. Nevertheless, it is important to have powers in 

place to deal with the possession of open vessels to prevent this behaviour, 

but also to deal with it proactively. We know from experience that alcohol 

related ASB is prevalent in the city and in some of our recreational areas, so 

we need to utilise every available tactic to keep the city safe for the 

community. 

 In terms of the application of this power. It is fair to say that it is used every 

week, not always culminating in a formal use of the power, but often leading 

to a volunteered disposal when the subjects are approached. For this reason, 

an anecdotal response is far more reflective that an evidence based 

submission. 

 As well as this behaviour, the power also provides us with a useful tactic 

during the night time economy. Customers leaving venues can be required to 

surrender glasses and bottles from their possession if not previously spotted 

by door staff. This removes the risk of serious harm being caused by them, or 

by others that may pick up their vessels and use them to cause serious 

wounding offences. 

Data from Hampshire Constabulary 

Hampshire Constabulary Police data for arrestable public order incidents reported for 

Winchester between 2016-2019 shows a 65% reduction in substance related public 

order offences. 

 

 

 

Page 138



 

6 
 

Police recorded stats from Interact (Tableau) which is a multi-agency data collection 

tool which is managed by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner showing 

reported ASB incidents related to Alcohol - 3 year trend. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 139



 

7 
 

CCTV data for proactive requests to log/monitor in ACZ and Public Order 

related incidents in Winchester 

CCTV data for Alcohol related incidents in Alcohol Control Zone and Public Order 

reported for monitoring/logging in Winchester between 01/10/2017 – 31/10/2018 

Classified in the following way: 

ACZ – Anyone that is in possession of an open container of alcohol but is behaving 

sensibly. 

Public Order – Any individual/group that is causing a disturbance, harassment, alarm 

or distress which includes alcohol related to members of the public. 

 

Month ACZ  Public Order 

October 2017 7 5 

November 
2017 

2 1 

December 
2017 

3 0 

January 2018 1 5 

February 2018 0 0 

March 2018 2 2 

April 2018 7 4 

May 2018 7 0 

June 2018 3 0 

July 2018 6 6 

August 2018 8 0 

September 
2018 

0 1 

October 2018 5 0 

TOTAL 51 24 

 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Government guidance required the completion of a full Equality Impact Assessment 

(EqIA) which are one tool for examining the main functions and policies of an 

organisation to see whether they have the potential to affect people differently. 

Their purpose is to identify and address existing or potential inequalities, resulting 

from policy and practice development. This has been completed and attached as 

(Appendix 2). 

Introduction: 

Important equality considerations; There is a requirement for a period of statutory 

consultation to be undertaken before a decision can be taken. It is important for the 

consultation to be both accessible and engaging with those likely to be affected by 

the order (positively and negatively). It must also consider the communication needs 

Page 140



 

8 
 

of those living within the designated area (i.e. larger BME population), and ensure 

that they have access to translation services as required. If the PSPO is 

implemented it will be important for authorised officers to consider the needs of the 

individuals and their personal circumstances in order to make an informed decision 

as to the appropriate action to take (i.e. recommendation for support, advice, fine, 

criminal justice approach). It will also be important for authorised officers to ensure 

that any action taken is proportionate to and balanced against any risks posed, either 

to the individual or the wider community. This includes the seriousness of the 

offence, past history, the consequences of non-compliance and the likely 

effectiveness of the various enforcement options. It has outlined the need for a 

consistent yet flexible approach to the application of the PSPO, which must be 

tailored to the individual’s needs and circumstances. It will be important to be able to 

evidence that the PSPO is not used, or is not perceived to be unfairly targeting 

young men who congregate within the different parts of the designated area. It is 

envisioned that some or all of the following factors will have a greater impact on the 

above individuals; the risk of further deprivation, destitution or homelessness, risk of 

criminalising behaviour, risk to health (for those physically dependant on 

substances), risk to community cohesion, restricted access to services located within 

the area for the duration of the order (i.e. pharmacies, GP, substance misuse 

treatment), if for example deemed unreasonable by the enforcing officer. 

Make Every Adult Matter 

MEAM supports 27 partnerships across the county to develop effective co-ordinated 

approaches to increase the wellbeing of those experiencing multiple disadvantages, 

reducing the cost to public services and improve lives. The Winchester district was 

recognised as a MEAM approach area in November 2018 this provides us with the 

opportunity to take a fresh look at how services in the area are delivered in a more 

effective way.  

With the opportunity to take learning and experience from other areas in the 

partnership and to influence policy making at a local and national level. 

Recommendations   

 Extend for another three years as outlined in this report as not extending the 

Public Space Protection Order may result in: 

a) Reduced public confidence 

b) There is also a lack of other powers to remove alcohol 

c) Increase in alcohol related crime 

 Evidence would suggest that the current Public Space Protection Order is 

used weekly and that the power to take possession of open vessels to prevent 

alcohol related behaviour can remove the risk of serious harm and voluntary 

disposal of alcohol when approached by Police. 

Page 141



 

9 
 

 Using the information provided from Police analysts, interviews, surveys, 

anecdotal evidence and unanimous agreement from the Strategic Partnership 

that the current Public Space Protection Order is fully supported in the 

extension past October 2020. 

 Encourage reporting of success and promotion in using the Public Space 

Protection Order. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 142



 

10 
 

Appendix: 1 

 

PSPO Survey Questions 

Table 1. Question Responses: 

1. Are you aware of the current PSPO 
 

3) Yes 
4) No 

 

 
 
 

2. Which of the following applies to you in 
relation to the PSPO Zone? 

 
1) Walk Through 
2) Socialise 
3) Reside 
4) Work 
5) Non apply 

 

 

3.  Do you agree or disagree that the         
            introduction of the PSPO has helped   
            to improve the quality of your life in 
 your area?         
 

1)  Strongly Agree 
2)  Agree 

           3)  Disagree 
3) Strongly Disagree 
4) No opinion 

 

 

4. Do you think that the PSPO has 
reduced crime and disorder? 

 
1) A great deal 
2) Only slight 
3) It has made no difference 
4) Do not know 

 

5. In your opinion does the PSPO make 
you feel safer? 

 
1) Very much safer during the day 
2) Very much safer during the 

evening 
3) Slightly safer during the day 
4) Slightly safer during the evening 

 
5) No difference during the day 
6) No difference during the evening 

 

Page 143



 

11 
 

 
7) Slightly less secure during the day 
8) Slightly less secure during the 

evening 
 

9)  Much less secure during the day 
10)  Much less secure during the 

evening 
 

6.  Do you think that the PSPO     
signage is adequate? 

 
1) Yes 
2) No 
3) Don’t know 

 

 

7. Do you think that anything could be 
improved with the PSPO, please 
comment. 

 

 

8. Do you support or oppose the use of 
the PSPO? 

 
1) Support 
2) Oppose 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 144



 

12 
 

Appendix: 2 

Winchester City Council  

Equality Impact Assessment  

Section 1 - Data Checklist  

When undertaking your Equality Impact Assessment for your policy or project, it is important that you take into consideration 

everything which is associated with the policy or project that is being assessed. 

The checklist below is to help you sense check your policy or project before you move to Section 2.  

  Yes/No Please provide details 

1 Have there been any complaints data related to the 
policy or project you are looking to implement? 

 
No 

This is linked to government guidance whereby we deleted 
the DPPO and replaced it with a PSPO in 2018 which 
expires in October 2020. We have received no complaints 
about the PSPO being in place. 

2 Have all officers who will be responsible for 
implementing the policy or project been consulted, 
and given the opportunity to raise concerns about 
the way the policy or function has or will be 
implemented?  

 
 
Yes 

 
Hampshire Constabulary have been consulted and are fully 
supportive of the proposal to extend the current PSPO. 

3 Have previous consultations highlighted any 
concerns about the policy or project from an 
equality impact perspective?  

 
No 

 
The original DPPO was in place from 2006 and to date we 
have not had any formal representation made about 
inequality impact. 

 

 

 

P
age 145

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/graphics/winchester_city_council_logo_2017.png


 

13 
 

4 Do you have any concerns regarding the 
implementation of this policy or project? 
 
(i.e. Have you completed a self-assessment and 
action plan for the implementation of your policy or 
project?) 

 
No 

A report following consultation with Strategic Partners using 
the following evaluation process; interviews/surveys, 
anecdotal evidence in relation to the current Alcohol Control 
Zone, Statistics from Strategic Partners. 

5 Does any accessible data regarding the area which 
your work will address identify any areas of 
concern or potential problems which may impact 
on your policy or project? 

 
No 

 
None on record  

6 Do you have any past experience delivering similar 
policies or projects which may inform the 
implementation of your scheme from an equality 
impact point of view? 

 
Yes 

 
The DPPO which will be replaced by the PSPO. 

7 Are there any other issues that you think will be 
relevant?  

No The current scheme will continue as is under a different 
legislation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 146



 

14 
 

Section 2 - Your Equality Impact Assessment form  

 
Directorate:  

 
Your Service Area: 
Housing Operations & 
Community Safety 

 
Team: Neighbourhood 
Services 

Officer responsible 
for this assessment: 
Davina-Domone-
Hollands  

 
Date of assessment: 
23/04/2020 

 

 Question Please provide details 

1 What is the name of the policy or project that is being 
assessed? 

Alcohol Control Zone - Public Space Protection Order 

2 Is this a new or existing policy? Existing policy 

3 Briefly describe the aim and purpose of this work. To manage alcohol related ASB in public spaces via the 
extension of the PSPO when it comes to fruition in October 
2020. 

4 What are the associated objectives of this work? To reduce the incidence of alcohol related ASB in public 
open space within the alcohol control zone. 

5 Who is intended to benefit from this work and in what way? All those that live, work or visit Winchester District, making it 
a safe environment in relation to alcohol fuelled ASB, 
causing alarm, harassment or distress.  

6 What are the outcomes sought from this work? As above. 

7 What factors/forces could contribute or detract from the 
outcomes? 

Lack of commitment by Hampshire Constabulary to robustly 
implement their powers to tackle alcohol related ASB within 
the PSPO. 

8 Who are the key individuals and organisations responsible 
for the implementation of this work?  

Community Safety and Hampshire Constabulary - The PSPO 
powers can only be issued if complaints from others who feel 
alarmed, harassed or distressed within the alcohol control 
zone are received. 

9 Who implements the policy or project and who or what is 
responsible for it? 

The Community Safety Partnership carries the responsibility 
as statutory duty. Day to day management will be a 
partnership between the police and city council (licensing 
committee approval will be required). 

P
age 147



 

15 
 

  Please select your answer in bold. Please provide detail 
here.  

10a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals or communities on the basis of race differently in 
a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

Government guidance is clear as to when the 
powers should be utilised. 

10b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

11a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals or communities on the basis of sex differently in a 
negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

11b  What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

12a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals or communities on the basis of disability 
differently in a negative way? 
 
(you may wish to consider: 

 Physical access 

 Format of information 

 Time of interview or consultation event 

 Personal assistance 

 Interpreter  

 Induction loop system 

 Independent living equipment 

 Content of interview) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Y 

 
 
 
 
 
 
N 

As above 

12b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO is the extension of a DPPO that came into force in 
2006 and the same guidance around the use of powers will 
still apply. 

 

P
age 148



 

16 
 

13a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals or communities on the basis of sexual orientation 
differently in a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

13b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

14a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals on the basis of age differently in a negative way? 

 
Y 
 

 
N 

As above 

14b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

15a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals or communities on the basis of religious belief 
differently in a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

15b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

16a Could this policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals on the basis of gender reassignment differently in 
a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

16b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

17a Could this policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals on the basis of marriage and civil partnership 
differently in a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

17b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

18a Could this policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals on the basis of pregnancy and maternity 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

P
age 149



 

17 
 

differently in a negative way? 

18b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

19 Could any negative impacts that you identified in questions 
10a to 15b create the potential for the policy to discriminate 
against certain groups on the basis of protected 
characteristics? 

 
Y 

 
N 

None identified. 

20 Can this negative impact be justified on the grounds of 
promoting equality of opportunity for certain groups on the 
basis of protected characteristics? Please provide your 
answer opposite against the relevant protected 
characteristic. 

 
 
 
 
Y 

 
 
 
 
N 

Race: 

Sex: 

Disability: 

Sexual orientation: 

Age:  

Gender reassignment: 

Pregnancy and maternity:  

Marriage and civil partnership: 

Religious belief:  

21 How will you mitigate any potential discrimination that may 
be brought about by your policy or project that you have 
identified above? 

The PSPO is in place to reduce alcohol related Anti-Social 
behaviour, so that it does not impact on an individual’s ability 
to access services. By reducing an individual’s anti-social 
behaviour we are promoting their role as part of an inclusive 
society. 
 
Any potential discrimination brought about by the extension of 
the PSPO will be overseen by our corporate safeguarding 
policy for adults. 

22 Do any negative impacts that you have identified above 
impact on your service plan? 

 
Y 
 

 
N 

 

 

 

P
age 150



 

18 
 

 
Signed by completing officer 
 

 

 
Davina Domone-Hollands  

 
Signed by lead officer  
 

 
Sandra Tuddenham 

 

P
age 151



 

19 
 

Appendix: 3 

Alcohol Control Zone Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 152



 

20 
 

Appendix: 4 

Anti-social Behaviour Satisfaction Survey 2019 

 

Introduction  

Each year Winchester Community Safety Partnership (CSP) directs the City 

Councils ASB lead to undertake an anti-social behaviour satisfaction survey.  

Tackling anti-social behaviour remains a statutory duty for CSPs and whilst we can 

show some sucess it’s important to note that the subject is complex and often 

requires a much broader partnership approach to tackle the issues. For example 

what might initially be reported as a single ASB concern, upon investigation flags a 

number of contributory factors e.g. mental health.  

In order to ensure we continue to evaluate the current process and meet the needs 

of those reporting ASB concerns, we asked residents and those who have used the 

service in the past year to complete the survey.  

As we are also in the process of reviewing the current Alcohol Control Zone we took 

the opportunity to consult those participating in the survey and ask for their view of 

how they think it works to reduce alcohol related ASB.  

Scope and Methodology 

This consultation was published on Citizen Space and sent as an electronic link to 

residents who reported an incident of anti-social behaviour in the previous 12 months 

alongside those who are members of Tact2. The results have been split in the report 

to enable the reader to see the separate responses. The consultation was open 

between the 5th and 24th December 2019.3 

Results 

The survey was sent to 88 individuals which resulted in 16 responses (18%). The 

following graphs and free text tables represent the collated responses. 

 

                                                           
2
 TACT is an independent group of tenants and leaseholders working in partnership with Winchester City 

Council. TACT stands for Tenants and Council Together. Formed in 1995 and are Winchester City Council's 
district-wide tenant and leaseholder forum. TACT includes representatives from Tenants' Associations, 
individual tenants and leaseholders, council officers and elected Members of the Council. 
2
 We will review the date the annual survey is sent out due to the low responses received this time. 

 

Page 153



 

21 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 154



 

22 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 155



 

23 
 

 

 

TACT Response Your Winch’/ASB Response4 Our Response5 

It was a sheltered 
housing issue 

The council tenants behind us are still 
continuing with ASB as its winter we 
don’t hear it as much. My house mate 
and myself were verbally abused we 
have sent in logs of the ASB, I have 
sent emails and letters saying nothing 
has changed and I have heard nothing 
back. It is clear that your service 
doesn’t work and you are quite happy 
to let people rent properties from you 
who abuse other people and treat 
their children badly and are happy with 
this. I feel your strategies in dealing 
with ASB are inefficient and continually 
pass the ‘buck’ as you are not prepared 
to take responsibility. However you are 
more than happy for others to suffer. 

We are aware that some cases require a 
broader partnership approach. This may 
manifest itself in a referral being made to 
another service e.g. Housing Tenancy and 
Environmental Health to ask they 
investigate further.  
 
We strive to improve the service to 
customers so we will identify how we can 
manage similar cases in the conclusion to 
this report. 
 

Feel no joined up 
responsibility 
within council 
accountability for 
what is unclear. 

I have no idea Winchester has a strong partnership 
ethos and the city council prides itself on 
collaborative working arrangements with 
our communities and partner agencies. 
However we will review our 
communication channels to ensure that 
those contacting us are made aware of 

                                                           
4
 Comments are as written in the responses. 

5
 Our Response – Your Winchester App reports do not always remain with Neighbourhood Services & 

Community Safety so whilst the response is worrying (we will try and look into the facts around this 
statement), it may have been passed to another partner agency outside of the city council if that was more 
appropriate. 

Page 156



 

24 
 

the joined up work being undertaken. 

It was dealt with 
by housing 
department via 
estates 
management 
team. 

Eventually but police involvement was 
needed. 

Hampshire Constabulary are key partners 
within the Community Safety Partnership 
and work with us to tackle some of the 
issues reported about ASB. 

 There are still problems. It is important that all ASB concerns are 
reported in a timely fashion either using 
Your Winchester App or via 101. 

 No feedback received. Presumably 
addressed as the nonsense stopped. 

We do endeavour to report back on any 
complaints being managed by the 
Neighbourhood Service team. However 
all complainants are encouraged to give 
us a call for an update about their 
specific case if they feel we have not 
responded as quickly as they would like. 

 They improved but couldn’t stop it. Pleased to read that the issues have 
improved.  

 

 

 

Page 157



 

25 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 158



 

26 
 

Alcohol Control Zone 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 159



 

27 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 160



 

28 
 

 

If there is anything else you would like to say about this survey, please use the space below. 

TACT Response Your Winch’/ASB Responses Our response 

We need more 
policing to disband 
groups if drug and 
alcohol users 
grouping which can 
be intimidating to all 
age groups. 

I think you need to be more 
proactive and have more 
consequences for those that have 
ASB I think your current 
suggestions are weak and don’t 
help those that are suffering the 
effects of ASB. 
We are being bullied and are 
unable to live in our house and 
use our garden particularly in the 
summer because of abusive 
neighbours we have behind us 
and yet you are quite happy for 
this to continue. You offer no 
solutions that actually work and I 
don’t think this is fair. 

The Neighbourhood Service Team have 5 
patrolling officers who identify hot spot 
locations for proactive patrols on a regular 
basis. It is important that all ASB concerns 
are reported in a timely fashion to ensure 
we are made aware of the issues and can 
action partnership support/patrol activity 
where it’s needed. 

It’s sometimes all the 
little anti-social 
behaviour that can 
have devastating 
effect. Is there a local 
best police officer, if 
yes not very visible? 

Why doesn’t anything ever get 
rectified? This city is visited by 
thousands of tourists each year. 
Why is it such a mess with BUFF 
graffiti in St Cross area? What 
must they think? 

The graffiti mentioned was reported to the 
relevant department but as the location in 
question is not owned by Winchester City 
Council we were unable to remove it. 

More publicity is 
needed on the 
alcohol control zone. 

People hang about ‘the usual 
areas’ like the ex-fountain by the 
Books, Winnall Moors and St 
John’s Church. Swearing and 
drinking and drug taking in public. 

We take a proactive approach to all 
concerns of public disorder and work with 
partners including Police, Winchester City 
Council Outreach and Inclusion to reduce 
the level of public drinking and drug taking 
within the City.  
 
The Alcohol Control Zone is in place within 

Page 161



 

29 
 

this area and the police do use their powers 
to confiscate alcohol. Inclusion will 
undertake outreach to areas where there is 
a particular problem so we can follow this up 
with them. 

 More liaison with the University 
over drunk students and drug 
dealers near university grounds 
especially at the start of a new 
term. 

This is core work for the community safety 
partnership and drug related issues are 
managed through Operation Fortress and 
other multi-agency meetings. 

Way Forward: 

 We are aware that some cases require a broader partnership approach. This 
may manifest itself in a referral being made to another service e.g. Housing 
Tenancy and Environmental Health to ask they investigate further.  

 Winchester has a strong partnership ethos and the city council prides itself on 
collaborative working arrangements with our communities and partner 
agencies. However we will review our communication channels to ensure that 
those contacting us are made aware of the joined up work being undertaken. 

 Hampshire Constabulary are key partners within the Community Safety 
Partnership and work with us to tackle some of the issues reported about ASB. 

 It is important that all ASB concerns are reported in a timely fashion either 
using Your Winchester App or via 101. 

 We endeavour to report back on any complaints being managed by the 
Neighbourhood Service team. However all complainants are encouraged to 
give us a call for an update about their specific case if they feel we have not 
responded as quickly as they would like. 

 The Neighbourhood Service Team have 5 patrolling officers who identify hot 
spot locations for proactive patrols on a regular basis. It is important that all 
ASB concerns are reported in a timely fashion to ensure we are made aware of 
the issues and as appropriate put in place partnership action/support/patrol 
activity where it’s needed.  

 We will continue to ensure that graffiti reported to us is referred to the relevant 
department and/or other agency. 

 We will continue to take a proactive approach to all concerns of public disorder 
by working with partner agencies; including Police, Winchester City Council 
Outreach and Inclusion to reduce the level of public drinking and drug taking 
within the City.  

 We will continue to ensure that we work closely with the University through the 
community safety partnership and that drug related issues are managed, 
reported and dealt with through Operation Fortress6 and other multi-agency 
meetings. 

 The Alcohol Control Zone is in place within the city and surrounding areas and 
the police do utilise their powers to confiscate alcohol. Inclusion services 
undertake outreach to areas where there is a particular problem so we will 
continue to follow up reports with them. 

                                                           
6
 Operation fortress – a multi-agency meeting designed to discuss county lines (transient drug dealing) and 

other drug related issues. 

Page 162



The Alcohol Control Zone
© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 

Ordnance Survey Winchester City Council 
License100019531. 

You are permitted to use this data solely to 
enable you to respond to, or interact with, 
the organisation that provided you with the

data. You are not permitted to copy, 
sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data 

to third parties in any form

±

WEEKE/HYDE

STANMORE

BADGER FARM

WINNALL/HIGHCLIFFE

CITY CENTRE

1:22,500Scale: Legend
Alcohol Control Zone

P
age 163



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Winchester City Council  

Equality Impact Assessment  

Section 1 - Data Checklist  

When undertaking your Equality Impact Assessment for your policy or project, it is important that you take into consideration 

everything which is associated with the policy or project that is being assessed. 

The checklist below is to help you sense check your policy or project before you move to Section 2.  

  Yes/No Please provide details 

1 Have there been any complaints data related to the 
policy or project you are looking to implement? 

 
No 

 
This is linked to government guidance whereby we deleted 
the DPPO and replaced it with a PSPO in 2018 which 
expires in October 2020. 

2 Have all officers who will be responsible for 
implementing the policy or project been consulted, 
and given the opportunity to raise concerns about 
the way the policy or function has or will be 
implemented?  

 
 
Yes 

 
 
Hampshire Constabulary have been consulted and are fully 
supportive of the proposal to extend the current PSPO. 

3 Have previous consultations highlighted any 
concerns about the policy or project from an 
equality impact perspective?  

 
No 

 
The original DPPO was in place from 2006 and to date we 
have not had any formal representation made about 
inequality impact. 

4 Do you have any concerns regarding the 
implementation of this policy or project? 
 
(i.e. Have you completed a self-assessment and 
action plan for the implementation of your policy or 
project?) 

 
No 

I have completed a report following consultation with 
Strategic Partners using the following evaluation process; 
interviews/surveys, anecdotal evidence in relation to the 
current Alcohol Control Zone, Statistics from Strategic 
Partners. 

5 Does any accessible data regarding the area which   

P
age 165

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/graphics/winchester_city_council_logo_2017.png


your work will address identify any areas of 
concern or potential problems which may impact 
on your policy or project? 

No None that I am aware off. 

6 Do you have any past experience delivering similar 
policies or projects which may inform the 
implementation of your scheme from an equality 
impact point of view? 

 
Yes 

 
The DPPO which will be replaced by the PSPO. 

7 Are there any other issues that you think will be 
relevant?  

No The current scheme will continue as is under a different 
legislation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 166



 

Section 2 - Your Equality Impact Assessment form  

 
Directorate:  

 
Your Service Area: 
Housing Operations & 
Community Safety 

 
Team: Neighbourhood 
Services 

Officer responsible 
for this assessment: 
Davina-Domone 
Hollands  

 
Date of assessment: 
23/04/2020 

 

 Question Please provide details 

1 What is the name of the policy or project that is being 
assessed? 

Alcohol Control Zone - Public Space Protection Order 

2 Is this a new or existing policy? Existing policy 

3 Briefly describe the aim and purpose of this work. To manage alcohol related ASB in public spaces via the 
extension of the PSPO when it comes to fruition in October 
2020. 

4 What are the associated objectives of this work? To reduce the incidence of alcohol related ASB in public 
open space within the alcohol control zone. 

5 Who is intended to benefit from this work and in what way? All those that live, work or visit Winchester District, making it 
a safe environment in relation to alcohol fuelled ASB, 
causing alarm, harassment or distress.  

6 What are the outcomes sought from this work? As above. 

7 What factors/forces could contribute or detract from the 
outcomes? 

Lack of commitment by Hampshire Constabulary to robustly 
implement their powers to tackle alcohol related ASB within 
the PSPO. 

8 Who are the key individuals and organisations responsible 
for the implementation of this work?  

Community Safety and Hampshire Constabulary - The PSPO 
powers can only be issued if complaints from others who feel 
alarmed, harassed or distressed within the alcohol control 
zone are received. 

9 Who implements the policy or project and who or what is The Community Safety Partnership carries the responsibility 

P
age 167



responsible for it? as statutory duty. Day to day management will be a 
partnership between the police and city council (licensing 
committee approval will be required). 
 

 

  Please select your answer in bold. Please provide detail 
here.  

10a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals or communities on the basis of race differently in 
a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

Government guidance is clear as to when the 
powers should be utilised. 

10b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

11a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals or communities on the basis of sex differently in a 
negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

11b  What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

12a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals or communities on the basis of disability 
differently in a negative way? 
 
(you may wish to consider: 

 Physical access 

 Format of information 

 Time of interview or consultation event 

 Personal assistance 

 Interpreter  

 Induction loop system 

 Independent living equipment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Y 

 
 
 
 
 
 
N 

As above 

P
age 168



 Content of interview) 

12b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO is the extension of a DPPO that came into force in 
2006 and the same guidance around the use of powers will 
still apply. 

13a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals or communities on the basis of sexual orientation 
differently in a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

13b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

14a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals on the basis of age differently in a negative way? 

 
Y 
 

 
N 

As above 

14b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

15a Could the policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals or communities on the basis of religious belief 
differently in a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

15b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

16a Could this policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals on the basis of gender reassignment differently in 
a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

16b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

17a Could this policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals on the basis of marriage and civil partnership 
differently in a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

17b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 

P
age 169



you have for this? from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

18a Could this policy or project have the potential to affect 
individuals on the basis of pregnancy and maternity 
differently in a negative way? 

 
Y 

 
N 

As above 

18b What existing evidence (either presumed or otherwise) do 
you have for this? 

The PSPO only comes into force if we receive complaints 
from others who feel alarmed, harassed or distressed within 
the alcohol controlled zone. 

 

19 Could any negative impacts that you identified in questions 
10a to 15b create the potential for the policy to discriminate 
against certain groups on the basis of protected 
characteristics? 

 
Y 

 
N 

None identified. 

20 Can this negative impact be justified on the grounds of 
promoting equality of opportunity for certain groups on the 
basis of protected characteristics? Please provide your 
answer opposite against the relevant protected 
characteristic. 

 
 
 
 
Y 

 
 
 
 
N 

Race: 

Sex: 

Disability: 

Sexual orientation: 

Age:  

Gender reassignment: 

Pregnancy and maternity:  

Marriage and civil partnership: 

Religious belief:  

21 How will you mitigate any potential discrimination that may 
be brought about by your policy or project that you have 
identified above? 

The PSPO is in place to reduce alcohol related Anti-Social 
behaviour, so that it does not impact on an individual’s ability 
to access services. By reducing an individual’s anti-social 
behaviour we are promoting their role as part of an inclusive 
society. 
 
Any potential discrimination brought about by the extension of 
the PSPO will be overseen by our corporate safeguarding 
policy for adults. 

P
age 170



22 Do any negative impacts that you have identified above 
impact on your service plan? 

 
Y 
 

 
N 

 

 

 
Signed by completing officer 
 

 

 
Davina Domone-Hollands  

 
Signed by lead officer  
 

 
Sandra Tuddenham 

 

P
age 171



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



 

ALCOHOL EXCLUSION DESIGNATION ORDER     

SECTION 12 CRIMINAL JUSTICE AND POLICE ACT 2001 

Winchester City Council has made an order under the above provisions, extending the 
existing designation (which already covers parts of Winchester City Centre) to cover the 
whole of the Winchester Town area, together with parts of Kings Worthy, Harestock, Badger 
Farm, and Oliver’s Battery. The extension order covers the following areas:- 

Part of St. John and All Saints Ward (that part of the Ward to the west of the M3) 
 
Part of Itchen Valley Ward (that part to the south east of the A34) 
 
Part of Kings Worthy Ward (that part between the southern ward boundary, the A34 
and Worthy Road) 
 
Part of Littleton and Harestock Ward (that part between the ward boundary, Andover 
Road North and Harestock Road) 
 
The whole of St. Bartholemew, St. Barnabas, St. Michael, St. Paul Ward, St. Luke 
Ward, and Oliver’s Battery And Badger Farm Wards 
 
Part of Compton and Otterbourne Ward (that part north of Badger Farm Road and the 
Hockley Link) 
 
Part of Colden Common and Twyford Ward (north of the M3) 
 

The order covers any “public place” (as defined in the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001). 
All streets and local authority land within that area are covered, and any other land which 
falls within the statutory definition such as churchyards.  

The effect of the order is to allow a police constable to require a person who is, has been or 
intends to, consume alcohol within the designated area:- 

a) not to consume alcohol in that place; 

b) to surrender to the police constable any alcohol in open containers. 

A person failing to comply with such a requirement is liable to a fine not exceeding £500. 

Licensed premises, the curtilages of licensed premises, and tables and chairs lawfully on the 
highway under a Highways Act 1980 Section 115E permission are excluded from these 
controls.  

The order will take effect on Wednesday 27 June 2007. 

Howard Bone 

Head of Legal Services 

21 June 2007 

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Friday, 6 December 2019 
Attendance: 

 
Councillors 

 
Mather (Chairperson) 

 
Bentote 
 

Clementson 
 

 
 

Other Councillors in attendance who addressed the meeting: 
 
Councillor Russell Gordon-Smith 
 
Officers in attendance: 
 
Miss B Appletree, Licensing Officer 
Mrs C Tetstall, Licensing Solicitor 
Mr I Myers, Licensing Officer 
 
 

 
1.    VARIATION TO PREMISES LICENCE - ALRESFORD MUSIC FESTIVAL, 

ARLEBURY PARK, ALRESFORD  
 

  
(Report LR529 refers) 

 

 The Chairperson welcomed all those present to the meeting: 

 

Representing the Applicant – (M3 Productions) 

 James Mitchell (Designated Premises Supervisor)    
 

 Responsible Authorities 

 Abigail Toms on behalf of Environmental Health, Winchester City 
Council  

 

Interested Parties 

 Mr and Mrs Wragg 

 Jacquie and John Frampton 

 Gary Smith 

 Councillor Russell Gordon Smith (speaking on behalf of Councillor 
Margot Power). 

 

Page 201

Agenda Item 8



 
 

 
 

The Licensing Officer introduced the report which set out the details of the 
application. In summary, she explained that the application was for a 
variation of a Premises Licence under Section 34 of the Licensing Act 
2003 in relation to Alresford Music Festival, Arlebury Park, Alresford, 
Hampshire, SO24 9EA. 
 
The Licensing Officer explained that the application was to permit the 
Festival to take place across a period of two days per calendar year, as 
opposed to one day per calendar year as permitted by the current 
Premises Licence. This application proposed licensable activities to be 
permitted on the second day in addition to the existing Licence.  
 
The application proposed amplified Live Music both indoors and outdoors 
and the Supply of Alcohol (for consumption on and off the premises) to 
take place on the second day. The proposed licensable hours were as 
follows: 
 
1. The hours the premises may be used for regulated entertainment 

shall be as follows. The hours in italics/underlined are already 
permitted under the current Premises Licence.  

 
Live Music (Indoors and Outdoors) 

 
(i) Saturday 1000 to 2345     

  (currently licensed for 1000 to 0000) 
 

(ii) Sunday 1100 to 2130 
 

Recorded Music 
 
  (i) Saturday 1000 to 0000     
   (permitted under current licence) 
 
 

2.  The hours the premises may be used for late night refreshment 
 shall be as follows. The hours in italics/underlined are already 
 permitted under the current Premises Licence. 

 
  (i) Saturday 2300 to 2345 
   (permitted under current licence) 
 

3. The hours the premises may be used for the sale of alcohol shall 
be: 

 
(i) Saturday 1100 to 2345 
 (permitted under current licence) 

 
(ii) Sunday 1100 to 2200 
 

4. The hours the premises may open for other than Licensable 
 Activities shall be: 

Page 202



 
 

 
 

 
(i) Saturday 1000 to 0000 

 
(ii) Sunday 1000 to 2230 

 
 
Members were informed that full details of the current licence could be 
read on pages 47 to 55 of the officer’s report and that the application to 
vary the licence could be read on pages 23 to 34. 

 
The Committee was advised that Hampshire Constabulary had made a 
representation against the application with regard to the prevention of 
crime and disorder and the protection of children from harm licensing 
objectives. During the consultation period, a number of conditions had 
been agreed between Hampshire Constabulary and the applicant, and the 
representation was subsequently withdrawn. Winchester City Council’s 
Environmental Health team had made a representation against this 
application with regard to the prevention of public nuisance licensing 
objective which could be seen at Appendix 2 of the officer’s report. 
Further, seven valid representations had been received from ‘Other 
Persons’, all of which were against the application. These representations 
were set out in Appendix 3 and primarily related to the prevention of 
public nuisance licensing objective.  
 
Finally, the Licensing Officer asked if there was any objection to an 
additional map plan (referred to as Appendix 6A) being introduced and no 
objections were made. 
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Mitchell, speaking on behalf of the 
applicant, addressed the Sub-Committee and outlined the background to 
the proposed variation of the premises licence. In summary, Mr Mitchell 
explained that the second day of the Festival would allow local individuals 
and groups to take an active part in the Festival and that the variation to 
the licence was required in part to make this second day financially viable.  
Mr Mitchell also outlined a number of points that he felt dealt with the 
concerns that had been raised within the representations from interested 
parties. Members of the Sub-Committee asked Mr Mitchell for clarity 
regarding: 
 

 Noise levels and soundproofing 

 Timings for the playing of music on the 2nd day 

 The current and anticipated attendance figures 

 Ticketing arrangements 

 Vehicle Parking arrangements 
 

The Environmental Protection Manager, Winchester City Council, 
addressed the Sub-Committee. She advised that the location of the event 
was surrounded by noise-sensitive properties, which were extremely 
close to the boundary of the site. She felt that it would be impossible to 
attenuate noise from outdoor stages sufficiently as to prevent any noise 
disturbance given such close distances. Whilst complaints from local 

Page 203



 
 

 
 

residents were low historically, she felt that this was likely due to the event 
being held for one-day and as such there was a degree of acceptability 
within the community. Given that it would be impossible to attenuate noise 
levels significantly, a one day event was always considered to represent 
an appropriate balance between the interests of the event organiser and 
protection of the community.  She believed that a whole weekend of 
live/recorded music would tip this balance and present an unacceptable 
level of noise resulting in public nuisance and significant complaints. 

 
The Chairperson then invited any interested parties to address the 
Committee.  
 
Mr and Mrs Wragg addressed the Sub-Committee and referred Members 
to their representation shown on page 39 of the officer’s report which 
referred to their concerns of excessive noise levels. In addition, Mrs 
Wragg stated that she felt the noise nuisance from live and recorded 
music was equally disturbing to residents.  
 
Jacquie and John Frampton then addressed the Sub-Committee and 
referred Members to their written representation on page 40 of the 
officer’s report. They made specific reference to the noise impact for 
residents of Arle Close. 
 
Gary Smith addressed the Sub-Committee and referred Members to his 
representation on pages 44 -45 of the officer’s report. He made specific 
references to the impact of noise to the local elderly population. Mr Smith 
suggested that a more suitable venue could be sought to hold the Festival 
in the future. 
 
Finally, Councillor Russell Gordon Smith (speaking on behalf of Councillor 
Margot Power) addressed the Committee. He also felt that this largely 
residential area was not an appropriate venue for such a Festival and 
described how many local residents suffer from the noise nuisance. 
 
The Sub-Committee retired to deliberate in private.   

 
The Sub-Committee reconvened and in her closing remarks, the 
Chairperson stated that the Sub-Committee had carefully considered the 
Application and the representations made by the applicant, the 
responsible authorities and the interested parties, relating to the 
prevention of public nuisance. It had taken into account the duties under 
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the rights set out in the Human 
Rights Act 1998. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 204



 
 

 
 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the application for a variation of the Premises Licence be 
refused. 

 
 

REASON   
 

A two-day event in this residential location would have a 
disproportionate and unreasonable effect on the amenity of people 
living and working in the surrounding area. The Sub-Committee 
accepted the professional judgement of the Environmental 
Protection Manager that nuisance from amplified sound could not 
be adequately mitigated on this site and considered that a one-day 
festival balanced the interests of the event organiser with the 
protection of the local community. 

 
 

The Chairman thanked all those present for attending the meeting and 
explained to all parties that they would be formally notified of the decision 
in writing in due course and of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ 
Court within 21 days from the date of the decision letter.  

 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 11.20 am 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 205



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 20 January 2020 
Attendance: 

 
Councillors 

 
Mather (Chairperson) 

 
Bentote 
 

Laming 
 

 
 

Officers in attendance: 
 
Miss B Appletree – Licensing Officer 
Ms C Tetstall –Licensing Solicitor 
 
Others in attendance who addressed the meeting: 
 
Councillors Porter and Power 
 
Others in attendance who did  not address the meeting: 
 
Councillors Gordon-Smith and Gottlieb 
 
Audio recording of the meeting 
 
A full audio recording of this meeting is available via this link: 
 
Full audio recording 
 
In addition, a link to an individual item’s audio recording is also available under  each 
of the respective minute headings below. 
 
 

 
 
 

1.    NEW PREMISES LICENCE - THE GRANGE, GRANGE PARK, 
NORTHINGTON, HAMPSHIRE, SO24 9TG (LR530)  
(Report LR530 refers and full audio recording) 
 

The Chairperson welcomed all those present to the meeting: 

Representing the Applicant – (Brand Events TM Ltd) 

 Neil Levene  

 Cheryl Carroll    
 

 

Page 207

Agenda Item 9

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=2192&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=2192&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

Responsible Authorities 

 Abigail Toms on behalf of Environmental Health, Winchester City 
 Council  

 

Interested Parties 

 Councillor Jackie Porter 

 Councillor Margot Power 

 John Mitchell (representing Northington Parish Council) 

 Mike Bounds 

 Steve Richards 
 

 The Licensing Officer introduced the report which set out the details of the 
application. In summary, she explained that the application was for a New 
Premises Licence under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for The Grange, 
Grange Park, Northington, Hampshire, SO24 9TG. 

 
 The Licensing Officer explained that the application proposed regulated 
entertainment, late night refreshment and the supply of alcohol and was to 
permit licensable activities, limited to a period of three consecutive days per 
calendar year (Friday, Saturday and Sunday, or a Saturday, Sunday and Bank 
Holiday Monday) in either July or August for a food festival with entertainment 
for a total of 12,000 people in the first year, and 19,999 people in subsequent 
years, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report. 

 
 The Committee was advised that Hampshire Constabulary had made a 
representation against the application with regard to the prevention of crime and 
disorder, public safety and the protection of children from harm licensing 
objectives. During the consultation period, a number of conditions had been 
agreed between Hampshire Constabulary and the applicant, and the 
representation was subsequently withdrawn.  

 
 Furthermore, Winchester City Council’s Environmental Health team had also 
made a representation against this application with regard to the prevention of 
public nuisance licensing objective. During the consultation period a number of 
conditions had been agreed between Environmental Health and the applicant, 
and their representation had also been withdrawn.  The Environmental 
Protection Manager, Winchester City Council was in attendance to address any 
points of clarification. The conditions agreed by both parties with the applicant 
were set out in Section 5 of the report 

 
 In addition, representations had been received from ten Other Persons, raising  
objection to the application, primarily in relation to the prevention of public 
nuisance licensing objective.  These representations were set out in full in 
Appendix 2 to the report.  

 
 The Licensing Officer drew Members’ attention to the map set out on page 71 of 
the report which outlined the address locations of those Other Persons who had 
made representations in relation to the premises. In addition, supporting 
information has been submitted by the applicant that had been made available 

Page 208



 
 

 
 

within the statutory timescale for consideration, this was set out in Appendices 5 
and 6.  

 
 The Sub-Committee were advised that several of the representations received 
made reference to how the application would negatively impact on traffic in the 
local area. Members were reminded that this was not a material consideration 
under the Licensing regime and was dealt with by the Police and the Highways 
Authority under separate legislation.  

 
 In conclusion, the Licensing Officer stated that if the Sub-Committee were 
minded to approve the application,  there were conditions to consider, as set out 
in Section 5 of the report, including those conditions agreed by the responsible 
authorities and the applicant (set out in italics) which the Sub-Committee could 
reword as appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. 

 
 At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Levene, speaking on behalf of the 
applicant, addressed the Sub-Committee and outlined the background and 
experience of the applicant in running large scale events and provided full 
details of the event (ChefStock - a national fine dining event) taking place over a 
three day weekend period including music and entertainment (no live music 
beyond 2300 hours). It was emphasised that the applicant’s priority was to 
promote the licensing objectives of this application.  Mr Levene also outlined a 
number of points that he felt dealt with the concerns that had been raised within 
the representations from interested parties 

 
 In summary, Mr Levene explained that if the event was successful, the 
applicants would seek to return to host further yearly events.  He emphasised 
that experts had been engaged on all aspects of the event, including health and 
safety, emergency procedures, crowd management, counter terrorism and 
design, in line with the safety management plan and also in relation to noise 
management and traffic management to take on board the specific concerns of 
residents and ensure compliance with the conditions agreed.  

 
 Mr Levene clarified that the safety management plan was be prepared in 
consultation with the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) where any further 
amendments could be made prior to approval.   

 
 In respect of the capacity numbers, initially it had been agreed to run the event 
with a reduced number of 12,000 people in the first year, this figure included 
traders, performers and staff, resulting in approximately 8,000 to 9,000 ticketed 
visitors. Future event numbers had been proposed at 19,999 people but there 
was uncertainty that the event would reach this figure at this stage, although he 
stated the venue could adequately accommodate this. In addition, Mr Levene 
confirmed that a robust alcohol management policy was in place, to ensure that 
any bar operating at the event only had trained personal licence holder and 
trained staff in place.  

 
 In conclusion, Mr Levene stated that letters had been issued to residents 
advising that the application was in place and that meetings could be facilitated 
if necessary to address any concerns.  Mr Levene clarified that the detailed 
event plans would be made available 90 days prior to the event to the event 

Page 209



 
 

 
 

safety group, who were experts in the operation of events and could propose 
any changes to the plan that may be required at this time. 

  
 Members of the Sub-Committee asked Mr Levene for clarity regarding: 
 

 Operating hours  

 Proposed ticket prices and visitor numbers 

 Noise levels and the nature of the recoded music 

 The provision of late night refreshments  

 Base level limits.  

 Stages locations 

 Traffic volumes, routes and management  

 Public transport options and promotion 

 Layout of the event 
  
The Environmental Protection Manager, Winchester City Council, addressed the 
Sub-Committee.  In summary, she advised that this was a different scale of an 
event to the Boomtown festival. Conditions had been agreed with the applicant 
allowing for live music to finish at 2300 hours, with an additional half an hour for 
any over runs at which stage the event would move to the inside of the site.  
The Environmental Protection Manager clarified the noise levels set during the 
day at a 15 minute ‘average’ level that should not exceed 65dB, taken from the 
Code of Practice on environmental noise national guidance.   . 

 
 The Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to an omission in the report that 
Environmental Health had agreed a change to the operating hours for recorded 
music with the applicant that this would now cease at 0100 and not 0200 as 
stated on page 15 of the report.  

 
 The Environmental Protection Manager stated, that if minded to grant the 
application and the applicant was in agreement, the Sub-Committee could 
decide to impose an addition to condition PN6 to control bass levels, to state 
that, between the hours of 1100 and 0100, noise levels from music shall not 
exceed 65db (Leq, 15 minutes) in the octave bands with a centre frequency of 63Hz 
and 125 Hz and could also consider an additional condition to limit the size of 
the festival area.   

 
 In response, Mr Levene stated that, in principle, he did not have an issue with 
these additional conditions suggested.  

 
 The Chairperson then invited any interested parties to address the Committee. 
All the points raised were answered by the Licensing Officer and Mr Levene 
accordingly. 

 
 Councillor Jackie Porter addressed the Sub-Committee and referred to matters 
of public nuisance due to the event covering a period of potentially three days 
for up to 20,000 people. She stated that Northington and Swarraton were quiet, 
tranquil areas and highlighted the importance of receptor site qualities so the 
effect on sites in the surrounding area were understood due to sound travelling 
and the impact of one or more events occurring at the same time resulting in a  
detrimental impact to the health of residents. In addition, Councillor Porter made 

Page 210



 
 

 
 

reference to safety concerns from the traffic on the B3046, in the absence of the 
traffic management plan, the lack of public transport in this area and suggested 
that drug mitigation be considered. In conclusion, Councillor Porter stated that 
the advertisement of the application over the Christmas period was unfortunate 
as she suggested that not all Parish Council’s would have been aware of this 
application. If granted, Councillor Porter considered that a Community 
Stakeholder Group to be established to ensure that all stakeholders were 
assured prior to the first event, followed by a wash up meeting once this had 
taken place. 

 
 Councillor Margot Power addressed the Sub-Committee and raised concern that 
it would not be possible to search every person or vehicle that enters the site for 
alcohol due to the size of the perimeter of the site (as set out in condition CD3)., 
She supported the addition to PN6 to control bass levels, and suggested that 
the provision of noise monitoring equipment be supplied, particularly if concerns 
were expressed following the first event. Councillor Power also made reference 
to the high volume of traffic that would be using the B3046 which was not fit  for 
larger vehicles, and the absence of the traffic management plan. 

 
 John Mitchell (representing Northington Parish Council) addressed the Sub-
Committee and referred Members to his representation shown on page 59 of 
the officer’s report which referred to concerns regarding the large number of 
participants, the long hours of licensed activity, traffic control, setting up, public 
safety and crime and disorder. In addition, Mr Mitchell considered that there had 
been no substantive consultation with residents to allow for a full and proper 
response to the application. In conclusion, he suggested that if the Sub-
Committee were minded to grant the licence that this be for no more than 5,000 
participants and be subject to a thorough review after the first year.  

 
 Mike Bounds addressed the Sub-Committee and referred Members to his 
written representation on page 63 of the officer’s report. He made specific 
reference to the expected volume of traffic, the existing traffic issues for those 
accessing the site and the noise impact for residents. 

 
 Steve Richards addressed the Sub-Committee and referred Members to his 
representation on pages 56 of the officer’s report. He made specific references 
to site access and traffic volumes the impact of intrusive noise disturbance to 
local residents and the accuracy of the maps submitted by the applicant, as set 
out in Appendix 6 of the report.  

 
 The Sub-Committee retired to deliberate in private. 
 
 In her closing remarks, the Chairperson stated that the Sub-Committee had 
carefully considered the application, the representations made by local 
residents, Councillors and the Parish Councils regarding traffic, noise and other 
matters and the Applicant’s evidence received.  It had taken into account the 
duties under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the rights set out in the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 

 

Page 211



 
 

 
 

 The Sub-Committee concluded that the application should be granted, with the 
conditions set out in pages 15 to 19 of the report, with the following 
amendments and additions: 

 
1. The operating hours, as set out in 1. Recorded Music on page 15  
 should be Friday to Monday 1100 to 0100 hours’. 

   
2. An additional condition A10, that the applicant shall liaise with local  
 Parish Councils to set up Community Stakeholder Group meetings  
 for the discussion of issues. 

 
3. An addition to condition PN6, that between the hours of 1100 and 0100, 
 noise levels from music shall not exceed 65db (Leq, 15 minutes) in the 
 octave bands with a centre frequency of 63Hz and 125 Hz. 

 
4. An additional condition PN8, that all music stages shall be sited within 
 the area outlined in blue on the proposed festival site plan, as set out 
 on page 51 of the report.  

  
 The Chairman thanked all those present for attending the meeting and 
explained to all parties that they would be formally notified of the decision in 
writing in due course and of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 
21 days from the date of notification of the decision. 

 
  RESOLVED: 
 
   1.         That the application be granted, subject to the conditions 
 set out on pages 15 to 19 of the report, and the amended and  
 additional conditions, as set out in 1 to 4 above, for the following 
 reasons:  

 
   

REASON  
 

 The Sub-Committee considered that the proposed conditions as 
amended, would minimise the potential for public nuisance.  The Sub- 
Committee recognised that its role was to promote the four licensing 
objectives and considered that the proposed conditions strike a balance 
between the rights of the landowner to use the land for the event and the 
impact of the event on those that live and work in the area.   

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10am and concluded at 12:20pm.         
 

Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
1.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 212



 
 

 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

3 March 2020 
Attendance: 

 
Councillors 

 
Green (Chairperson) 

 
Bentote 
 

Gordon-Smith 
 

 
Officers in attendance: 
 
Mr I Myers – Licensing Officer 
Miss C Stefanczuk – Licensing Manager 
Ms C Tetstall –Licensing Solicitor 
 
Others in attendance who did not address the meeting: 
 
Councillor Williams 
 
Audio recording of the meeting 
 
A full audio recording of this meeting is available via this link: 
 
Full audio recording 
 
 

 
Prior to the commencement of the meeting, the Chairman announced that the 
meeting would be adjourned to commence at 10.30am to allow all parties to 
be in attendance. 
 

1. NEW PREMISES LICENCE – KASSIA LOUNGE, HAMBLEDON ROAD, 
DENMEAD, PO7 6NU  
(Report LR531) 

 

 The Chairperson welcomed all those present to the meeting: 

Applicant  

 Fasu Miah  
 

 Responsible Authorities 

 Sara Hayes-Arter on behalf of Environmental Health, Winchester City 
Council  

 

Interested Parties 

 Ian Cameron  

Page 213

Agenda Item 10

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=2207&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

 Kevin Andreoli 

 Lydia Merriman (on behalf of Denmead Parish Council) 

 Mrs J Isaac 

 Paula Langford-Smith 
 

The Licensing Officer introduced the report which set out the details of the 
application. In summary, he explained that the application was for a New 
Premises Licence under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for Kassia 
Lounge, Hambledon Road, Denmead, Hampshire, PO7 6NU. 
 
The Licensing Officer explained that the application described the 
premises as a restaurant and bar serving Indian food, seeking to provide 
live music, recorded music, late night refreshment, sale of alcohol (for 
consumption on and off the premises) and a change to opening hours, as 
set out in appendix 1 to the report.   
 
The Committee was advised that Hampshire Constabulary had made a 
representation against the application with regard to the prevention of 
crime and disorder and protection of children from harm licensing 
objectives. During the consultation period, a number of conditions had 
been agreed between Hampshire Constabulary and the applicant, and the 
representation was subsequently withdrawn.  These conditions were set 
out in section 5 of the report. 
 
Furthermore, Winchester City Council’s Environmental Health team had 
also made a representation against this application with regard to the 
prevention of public nuisance licensing objective. This was set out in 
appendix 2 to the report. The allocated Environmental Protection Officer, 
Winchester City Council was in attendance to address the Sub Committee 
in respect of this objection.  
 
In addition, representations had been received from 26 Other Persons, 
raising   objection to the application, primarily in relation to the prevention 
of public nuisance licensing objective.  These representations were set 
out in full in appendix 3 to the report.  
 
The Licensing Officer drew Members’ attention to the revised map 
(appendix 4) set out on page 3 of the supplementary agenda, which had 
been updated and included the location of the premises and the address 
locations of those Other Persons who had made representations in 
relation to the premises.  
 
The Sub-Committee were advised that several of the representations 
received made reference to the hours of use set out in the planning 
permission and Members were reminded that planning and licensing were 
separate regimes. For clarification, the Licensing Officer advised that the 
hours of use agreed within the planning permission were approved as 
follows: 
 
 

Page 214



 
 

 
 

Sunday to Thursday 0900 – 2230  
Friday to Saturday 0900 – 2300  
 
In conclusion, the Licensing Officer stated that if the Sub-Committee were 
minded to approve the application,  there were conditions to consider, as 
set out in Section 5 of the report, including those conditions agreed by 
Hampshire Constabulary and the applicant (set out in italics) which the 
Sub-Committee could amend as appropriate to promote the licensing 
objectives. 
 
In response to questions from the Sub-Committee, the Licensing Officer 
and the Applicant clarified that the garden area was not included within 
the licensable area and that live music would only take place inside the 
building. 
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, the applicant, Mr Miah, addressed the 
Sub-Committee and outlined his background and experience in running 
eight reputable restaurants in Hampshire. Mr Miah confirmed the opening 
hours that had been permitted within the planning application and stated 
that once the restaurant had proved its successful operation over some 
time and local residents were satisfied that their concerns regarding the 
restaurant had been resolved, he would be able to apply to amend the 
opening hours to close 1130hours Sunday to Thursday and 0000 hours 
Friday and Saturday. Mr Miah advised that he was seeking longer 
operating hours within the licensing application to take account of this as 
a longer term aspiration for the restaurant and to prevent the need to also 
reapply for a change to his premises licence.  
 
Mr Miah stated that he was aware that he must adhere to existing 
planning permission and that he would not be able to operate outside of 
the hours agreed by that process, regardless of the decision granted by 
the Sub Committee.  He would have to resubmit an amendment to the 
planning application for this to be formally considered and approved prior 
to any changes to the operating hours taking place.  
 
Mr Miah made reference to the opening hours of the other local 
businesses in the vicinity who mainly closed at 2300 hours and stated that 
he viewed the premises as a community restaurant and he would be 
happy to work with local residents to address any concerns they may 
have and indicated his willingness to compromise on the licensing 
activities he was requesting. 
 
In respect of the operating hours for Christmas Eve and New Years Eve, 
Mr Miah clarified that although he had requested this to finish at 0300 
hours; it was not his intention to open until this time unless there was a 
demand for this. 
 
In response to questions from the Sub-Committee, Mr Miah clarified that 
live music takes place once a week at his other premises. The style of the 
live music was tailored to the venue and that as Denmead was a quiet 
area, it was his intention for this to take the form of a pianist or a jazz 

Page 215



 
 

 
 

singer at a background level.  This would also be dependant on the 
demand of patrons. Recorded music would ordinarily be played at a 
background level in the absence of live music to provide an atmosphere in 
the restaurant. In respect of concerns regarding noise emanating from the 
building and to the living accommodation above, Mr Miah stated that the 
building had been sound proofed and fully insulated following the 
professional advice of a sound engineer to minimise any possible 
disturbance. 
 
For clarification, the Licensing Officer referred the Sub-Committee to the 
guidance regarding the Deregulation Act 2015.   
 
The Environmental Protection Officer, Winchester City Council, addressed 
the Sub-Committee.  In summary, she advised she had initially dealt with 
the premises when the planning application came forward and had 
previously raised objection in relation to noise and odour. Following 
discussions with the applicant to reduce the opening hours, it was 
deemed acceptable on planning grounds if the revised hours agreed were 
adhered to. Due to the local public houses in that area closing at 2300 
hours, the primary concerns with the opening hours proposed until 0100 
hours on a Friday and Saturday were movement of patrons from the 
public houses to the premises with excessive noise levels inside and 
outside the premises.  In addition there was concern of the setting of 
precedent in the area as proposed opening hours were beyond any other 
existing establishment in Denmead, although the improvements to internal 
sound proofing were now noted.  
 
In response, the applicant stated that he did not consider that there would 
be an issue regarding noise in this area and that appropriate signage 
asking patrons to please leave quietly and have respect for neighbouring 
properties would be displayed. He considered that the restaurant would 
improve security with the presence of people in the locality which he 
considered would deter crime in the area. 
 
The Chairperson then invited any interested parties to address the 
Committee. All the points raised were answered by the Licensing Officer 
and the applicant accordingly. 
 
Ian Cameron addressed the Sub-Committee and referred Members to his 
representation shown on page 68 of the report which referred to the 
ownership of the house in Lavinia Mews which formed an enclosed space 
directly alongside the premises.  With the agreement of the Sub-
Committee and the applicant, Mr Cameron circulated photographs of the 
adjoining property in Lavinia Mews.  
 
In summary, Mr Cameron’s primary concerns related to the proposed 
extended operating hours and the use of amplified music being used in 
the garden at the premises. In response, the applicant provided 
clarification that he would not be using speakers for loud music outside of 
the premises.  There were no plans to use the garden but that an 
extension to the premises had been approved by planning. It was 

Page 216



 
 

 
 

anticipated that bi-fold doors would be installed to the front of the 
premises with the possibility to open the restaurant up in the summer 
months allowing for a few tables to be placed outside during this period. In 
addition, Mr Miah also clarified that, as stipulated in the planning consent, 
the kitchen extraction fan system was required to be switched off at 2230 
hours. 
 
Kevin Andreoli addressed the Sub-Committee and referred Members to 
his representation shown on page 75 of the report. He made reference to 
the public safety licensing objective with proposed long hours of live and 
recorded music which he considered would be damaging to the health 
and wellbeing of local residents and staff employed at the premises. In 
addition, he raised concerns regarding public nuisance in respect of the 
proposed opening hours which he stated were excessive in comparison to 
other businesses in the area. In conclusion, Mr Andreoli stated that he 
was not against the business, just the hours proposed in the application. 
 
Lydia Merriman (representing Denmead Parish Council) addressed the 
Sub-Committee and referred Members to her representation shown on 
page 72 of the report which referred to the detrimental impact on local 
residents, particularly in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder 
and the prevention of public nuisance licensing objectives. This was due 
to the business operating in an area directly adjacent to residential 
properties. She stated that the opening hours as set out in the licensing 
application were at odds with the planning permission already granted 
and if permitted, would result in a breach of condition one of the planning 
application.  
 
In response to questions, Mr Miah clarified that infrared CCTV had been 
installed at the premises to act as a deterrent and reduce crime and 
disorder in the area. 
 
Mrs Isaac addressed the Sub-Committee and referred Members to her 
representation shown on page 55 of the report. She expressed concern 
regarding noise and odours, patrons leaving the premises into the garden 
area and the submission of an additional planning application requesting 
an extension to the opening hours which she considered would be 
inappropriate in this residential area.  
 
Paula Langford-Smith addressed the Sub-Committee and referred 
Members to her representation shown on page 67 of the report. She 
stated that whilst she believed the restaurant would be a welcome 
addition to Denmead, she had concerns in respect of the prevention of 
public nuisance licensing objective due to the proposed opening hours 
requested. She stated that the location of the premises was in a small 
parade of shops in a quiet residential area where no other businesses 
operated beyond 2300 hours and therefore suggested it was reasonable 
for the licensing application to match the opening hours agreed in the 
planning consent.  
 

Page 217



 
 

 
 

In conclusion, Ms Langford-Smith wished to make the Sub-Committee 
aware that a business noise abatement notice had been issued to Kassia 
by Portsmouth City Council in respect of the premises in their area due to 
the noise of loud music which resulted in the closure of that premises. 
 
In summing up and in response to the Licensing Officer, Mr Miah 
confirmed that the proposed extension formed part of the original planning 
application and was contained within the plan, as set out in the report. 
 
The Sub-Committee retired to deliberate in private. 
 
In the closing statement, the Senior Democratic Services Officer on behalf 
of the Chairperson stated that the Sub-Committee had carefully 
considered the application, the representations made by Environmental 
Health, the persons who made representations and the Applicant’s 
evidence received.  It had taken into account the Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy, the Home Office guidance issued under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003, the duties under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
and the rights set out in the Human Rights Act 1998. 
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that the application should be granted, 
with the conditions set out in paragraph 5 of the report (pages 11 to 15 of 
the report), with the following amendments to the operating hours on page 
13 of the report, and the following amendments and an additional 
condition to the licensing objectives (all changes highlighted in bold 
below) as follows: 
 

 Operating Hours 

 
 1. The hours the premises may be used for regulated entertainment 

shall  be: 
 

Live or recorded music (or a combination of both) to be allowed 
once a week between the hours as follows, and in addition, to be 
permitted on Christmas Eve and New Years Eve as follows:   

 
  Live Music   Sunday to Thursday  1100 to 2300 
     Friday and Saturday  1100 to 2330  
     Christmas Eve   1100 to 0030  
     New Years Eve   1100 to 0030 
  
  Recorded Music  Sunday to Thursday   0900 to 2300  
     Friday and Saturday   0900 to 2330  
     Christmas Eve   0900 to 0030  
     New Years Eve   0900 to 0030 

 
 2.  The hours the premises may be used for late night refreshment 
shall be: 

       
     Friday and Saturday   2300 to 2330  
     Christmas Eve   2300 to 0030  
     New Years Eve   2300 to 0030 

Page 218



 
 

 
 

 
 3. The hours the premises may be used for the sale of alcohol (on 

and off the premises) shall be: 
 
     Sunday to Thursday   0900 to 2300 
     Friday and Saturday   0900 to 2330  
     Christmas Eve   0900 to 0030  
     New Years Eve   0900 to 0030 
 

 
 4. The hours the premises may open for other than Licensable 
Activities shall be: 

 
   Sunday to Thursday   0900 to 2330 
   Friday and Saturday   0900 to 0000 

    Christmas Eve  0900 to 0100 
    New Years Eve  0900 to 0100 
 

All Licensing Objectives 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 

 CD2: The premises licence holder shall ensure that recordable CCTV is in 
 place when any licensable activity is taking place. This must be of a  
 standard acceptable to the local Police. There shall be sufficient
 cameras to cover all primary public areas in addition to cameras 
 covering the entrance, exit and external smoking areas. 

   
 Public Nuisance 
 
 PN1: The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that signage requesting 
 customers to leave quietly and respect neighbours is displayed at the 
 premises. 
 

 PN3 All doors and windows to be kept closed except for access 
and egress when live or recorded music is being played. 
 
The Chairperson thanked all those present for attending the meeting and 
explained to all parties that they would be formally notified of the decision 
in writing in due course and of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ 
Court within 21 days from the date of notification of the decision. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the application be granted, subject to the conditions set out on 

pages 11 to 15 of the report, with the amendments to the operating 
hours on page 13 of the report, and the amendments and additional 
condition to the licensing objectives (all changes highlighted in bold 
below) as set out in full above, for the following reasons:  

 
REASON 

 

Page 219



 
 

 
 

 The Sub-Committee considered that the conditions as amended, 
strike a balance between the applicant’s right to run his business 
and the concerns of the local community.   

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.30 am and concluded at 12.45 pm 
 

Chairperson 

Page 220


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Review of Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Policy Phase 2 (LR535)
	LR535 Appendix 1_Draft Statement of Taxi   Private Hire Licensing Policy
	LR535 Appendix 2 – Full Consultation report by SMSR – May 2020

	6 Introduction of 'Pavement Licence' under Business & Planning Act 2020 (LR534)
	LR534 Appendix 1 - Pavement Licensing Policy
	LR534 Appendix 2 - Equality Impact Assessment
	LR534 Appendix 3 - Data Protection Impact Assessment

	7 Public Space Protection Order Review (LR533)
	LR533 Apdx 1 - PSPO REPORT 2020
	LR533 Apdx 2 Alcohol Control Zone Map Aug 2020
	LR533 - Apdx 3 - Equality Impact Assessment (full new version) - signed copy
	LR533 - Apdx 4 - Winchester Alcohol Exclusion Zone Review May 2009
	LR533 Apdx 5 Alcohol Exclusion Designation Order 2007

	8 Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 6 December 2019
	9 Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 20 January 2020
	10 Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 3 March 2020

